
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

 
Time 
 

10.00 am Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Pensions 

Venue 
 

Council Chamber  

Membership 
 
Chair Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Craig Collingswood (Lab) 
 

Labour Conservative  

Cllr Keith Inston 
Cllr Phil Page 
Cllr Clare Simm 
Cllr Tersaim Singh 
Cllr Paul Sweet 
Cllr Rashpal Kaur 
Cllr Stephen Simkins 
 

Cllr Paul Singh 
Cllr Andrew Randle 
 

 

District Members Trade union observers 
Cllr Angela Sandison (Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council.) 
Cllr Bally Singh (Coventry City Council) 
Cllr Alan Taylor (Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council) 
Cllr Vera Walters (Walsall Council) 
Cllr Peter Allen (Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council) 
 
 
 

Malcolm Cantello 
Martin Clift 
Ian Smith 
Janice Wadrup (GMB) 
 

Quorum for this meeting is eight Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Fabrica Hastings 
Tel/Email Tel:01902 552699 or Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk 

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 550320 

 

http://wolverhampton.cmis.uk.com/decisionmaking
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 

 



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

Agenda 
 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence (if any)  
 

2 Notification of substitute members  
 

3 Declarations of interests (if any)  
 

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14) 
 [For approval.] 

 
 

5 Matters arising  
 [To consider any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meetings.] 

 

6 Pensions Committee Annual Governance (Pages 15 - 28) 
 [To approve the Annual Governance matters of Pensions Committee.] 

 

7 Governance and Assurance (Pages 29 - 56) 
 [To receive an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme.] 

 

8 Statement of Accounts 2020-2021 (Pages 57 - 82) 
 [To approve the draft Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2021.] 

 

9 Pensions Administration Report to 31 March 2021 (Pages 83 - 120) 
 [To receive an update on the routine operational work undertaken by the pensions 

administration service areas during the period 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2021.]  
 

10 Customer Engagement Update (Pages 121 - 172) 
 [To receive an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1 January 

2021 to 31 March 2021.] 
 

11 Annual Report of the Local Pensions Board (Pages 173 - 180) 
 [To note the report from the Local Pensions Board.] 

 

12 Internal Audit Annual Report 2020-2021 (Pages 181 - 192) 
 [To receive an outline of the work programme for internal audit during 2020 – 

2021.] 
 

13 Budget Monitoring and Quarterly Accounts to 31 March 2021 (Pages 193 - 
202) 

 [To receive an update on the forecast out-turn against operating budget and 
present the quarterly accounts to 31 March 2021.] 
 

14 Quarterly Investment Report to 31 March 2021 (Pages 203 - 224) 



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 [To receive an update on developments in investment markets, asset allocation 
and investment performance over the latest quarter in relation to the West Midlands 
Pension Fund (Main Fund and Admitted Body Sub Funds).  
 

15 Responsible Investment Activities (Pages 225 - 238) 
 [To receive an update on the work undertaken in relation to responsible investment 

activities.]  
 

16 Exclusion of press and public  
 [To pass the following resolution: 

 
That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 3 
of Schedule 12A to the Act.] 
 

PART 2 - EXEMPT ITEMS, CLOSED TO PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
17 Investment Strategy and Activity Update (Pages 239 - 246) 
 [To receive an update on the investment strategy and activity in the WMPF and 

Admitted Body Sub Funds over the quarter.] 
 

18 CEM Benchmarking (Pages 247 - 268) 
 [To receive a report on the Fund’s Investment Management Benchmarking 

exercise.] 
 

19 Annual Report on the Investment Advisory Panel (Pages 269 - 274) 
 [To note the work of the Investment Advisory Panel for 2020 – 2021.] 

 

20 Fund Structure Update (Pages 275 - 284) 
 [To provide an update on staffing developments and requirements to support the 

Fund service delivery.] 
 

21 LGPS Central Pool (Pages 285 - 304) 
 [To receive an update on the outcomes of a review of the LGPS Central pool and 

the case for pooling in the context of the West Midlands Pension Fund.] 
 



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

Pensions Committee 
Minutes - 24 March 2021 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Pensions Committee    Trade Union observers 
 
Cllr Stephen Simkins 
Cllr Jasbinder Dehar 
Cllr Keith Inston 
Cllr Phil Page 
Cllr John Reynolds 
Cllr Clare Simm (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Paul Singh 
Cllr Muhammad Afzal (Birmingham City Council 
Cllr Rose Martin (Walsall Metropolitan Borough Council) 
Cllr Bally Singh (Coventry City Council) 
Cllr Councillor Alan Taylor (Dudley MBC) 
Cllr Joe Tildesley (Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council) 
 

Malcolm Cantello (Unison) 
Martin Clift (Unite) 
Victor Silvester (Unite) 
Ian Smith (Unite) 
 

 

Employees  

Rachel Brothwood Director of Pensions - West Midlands Pension Fund 
Rachel Howe Head of Governance and Corporate Services - West Midlands 

Pension Fund 
Amy Regler Head of Operations 
Holly Slater 
Simon Taylor  
Tom Davies  
Darshan Singh 
Hayley Reid   

Governance Officer 
Assistant Director – Pensions 
Assistant Director – Investment Strategy 
Head of Operations 
Regulatory Governance Manager     

 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence (if any) 

Apologies were received from Councillor Milkinder Jaspal, Councillor Harman 
Banger, Claire Nye, Director of Finance and Martin Clift, Trade Union 
Representative.  
 
It was agreed that the Vice-Chair of Pensions Committee, Councillor Clare Simm 
would Chair the meeting in Councillor Milkinder Jaspal’s absence. The Committee 
gave their best wishes for his ongoing recovery. A minute silence was held to pay 
respect to Councillor Sandra Hevican who had passed away earlier in the month 
following a short period of illness.  Councillor Hevican served as representative of 
Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council on the Pensions Committee for six years. It 
was noted that the Committee’s condolences had been sent to the member’s 
husband and family. 

Page 5

Agenda Item No: 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 
2 Declarations of interests (if any) 

Councillor Stephen Simkins declared an interest as the Cabinet Member for City 
Economy for item 10 of the agenda, Corporate Plan 2021-2026. 
 

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 9 December 2020 be approved as 
a correct record. 
 

4 Matters arising 
Ian Smith, Trade Union Representative, advised the group, as per item 4 of the 
minutes of the previous meeting, that work had been conducted between himself, 
Councillor Muhammed Afzal and Simon Taylor, Assistant Director - Pensions and 
that a report would go to Birmingham City Council at the end of the month to support 
resolution of the issue around delayed employer admission and payment of benefits 
to members. 
 

5 Customer Engagement Update 
The Assistant Director - Pensions, presented the report on the Fund’s customer 
engagement activity from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020 and the planned 
customer engagement activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement 
Strategy. 
 
The Assistant Director - Pensions commented that ongoing development had been 
underway to widen the Fund’s social media presence alongside other methods of 
communication used by the Fund. Councillor John Reynolds emphasised the 
importance of continued use of paper and face to face communication methods to 
ensure accessibility across the Fund membership.  
 
The Fund’s Customer Engagement Plan had been updated to include planned 
events for all stakeholders up to 31 March 2022. 
 
The Committee were advised that the Fund had continued an on-going campaign to 
raise member awareness on the importance of retirement planning, with bulk emails 
circulated to active members. Bulk mailing to members of the Fund had also been 
circulated, to raise further awareness on the risks of pensions scams.  
 
The Committee expressed their thanks to the Assistant Director - Pensions and his 
teams for the ongoing development and delivery of customer engagement activity.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Communications Policy March 2021 in Appendix E, be approved.  
2. That the engagement activity and informed service development be noted. 

 
6 Pensions Administration Report from 1 October to 31 December 2020 

Amy Regler, Head of Operations, presented the report on the routine operational 
work undertaken by the pension administration service areas during the period 1 
October to 31 December 2020. 
 
The Committee were advised that although the Fund saw an increase in volume of 
case work relating to membership deaths throughout December 2020 and January 
2021,the Fund had been monitoring workloads and ensured that resources were re-

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

allocated where required to maintain service delivery and mitigate the impact on 
timescales and performance relative to KPI targets.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the 12 applications for admission from employers into the Fund be 
approved and the 3 cases approved by urgent decision by the Director of 
Pensions, be noted. 

2. That the updated Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure be approved. 
3. That the write-offs detailed in section 13 of the report be approved. 
4. That the performance and workloads of the key pension administration 

functions be noted. 
5. That the development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers 

be noted. 
6. That the ongoing work to improve efficiency and ensure consistency of 

processing and record keeping be noted. 
7. That the Fund’s pledge to the Pension Regulator to combat pension scams 

and protect scheme members be noted. 
 

7 Governance and Assurance 
Rachel Howe, Head of Governance and Corporate Services, presented the report on 
the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme. 
 
The Committee were advised that the Fund continued to monitor potential risks to the 
Fund, noting the ongoing review of potential regulatory change in the LGPS with the 
launch of the Regulator’s single code of practice. 
 
It was noted that the Fund continued to operate a mix of office and home working to 
ensure all vital services of the Fund continued. Employee wellbeing had been a key 
focus for the Fund and staff were encouraged to take lateral flow testing twice a 
week. The Fund’s response would continue to be assessed following any changes to 
Covid regulations issued by the Government.   
 
Resolved: 

1. That the latest strategic risk-register and areas being closely monitored in the 
current environment be noted. 

2. That the compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter be 
noted. 

3. That the Fund’s Key Performance Indicators and the action taken to support 
service delivery be noted. 

4. That the steps taken by the Fund in response to the Covid pandemic and the 
ongoing assessment of service delivery impact be noted. 

 
8 Regulatory Update 

The Head of Governance and Corporate Services presented the report on the key 
developments impacting the regulatory environment in which the Fund operated. 
 
The Committee were advised that as of 25 February 2021, Central Government had 
revoked the Exit Payment Regulations, previously issued to the public sector for 
implementation on 4 November 2020. The Fund anticipate a revised approach to exit 
payments for the public sector to be announced, followed by consultation later in the 
year. 
 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

On 15 February 2021 the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) published phase three of 
the SAB Good Governance Review. This includes a number of recommendations 
that the Fund are currently reviewing. 
 
Committee we also advised the consultation on the Pensions Regulator’s code of 
practice had now been released and that the Fund were currently reviewing with a 
view to developing a response. 
 
The Committee were further advised that a HM Treasury consultation on increasing 
the normal minimum pension age from age 55 to age 57 from April 2028 was running 
to 22 April 2021. The impact on the LGPS would be subject to MHCLG review and 
amendment of scheme regulations, including consideration of protected pension 
ages. 
 
Following discussion, the Head of Governance and Corporate Services reassured 
members that the Fund continue to monitor consultations and look to respond to 
those that affect the Fund and its members. The Fund would continue to monitor and 
communicate with members in the event of Scheme change.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the updates to the current regulatory environment within the LGPS and 
how the Fund had been responding to change and emerging developments 
within the Scheme and wider pensions industry be noted. 

 
9 Funding Strategy Statement Review 2021 

The Assistant Director - Pensions, presented the report on the proposed changes to 
the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) following the publication of amendments to 
LGPS Regulation which enabled employer funding flexibility. 
 
The Committee were advised that changes to the Strategy had been made to 
incorporate policy enabling utilisation of new employer flexibility regulations and an 
informal consultation with the Fund’s Employer Peer Group on the recommended 
changes took place during March 2021 with a formal consultation with scheme 
employers commencing in April 2021 for a period of 4-6 weeks. The Committee were 
advised that as per section 7.3 of the report, subject to consultations responses, the 
target date for publication of the revised FSS was 1 June 2021.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the proposed changes to the Funding Strategy Statement incorporating 
revised Termination Policy and Policy on Contribution Reviews Inter-Valuation 
as new addendums following enabling change to the LGPS regulations, be 
approved. 

2. That delegation to the Director of Pensions to finalise the 2021 Funding 
Strategy Statement in consultation with the Chair and/or Vice Chair of 
Pensions Committee, following completion of the consultation to include 
participating employers, be approved. 

 
10 Corporate Plan 2021-2026 

The Head of Governance and Corporate Services, presented the report covering the 
Fund’s Corporate Plan 2021 – 2026, which includes areas of focus and drivers for 
change over the next five years together with the goals and ambitions for continued 
development in the Fund and the continued delivery of high-quality services to 
customers. Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 
The Committee were advised that the Fund has consulted with stakeholders, 
customers, members, employers and both the Pensions Committee and Pensions 
Board on the proposed Corporate Plan for 2021-2026. The figures within the report 
would be updated, prior to publication, to include March 2021 figures. Following 
questions from Malcolm Cantello (Unsion), the Head of Governance and Corporate 
Services confirmed to the Committee that the Fund were continuing to progress 
plans for changes to the Fund office arrangements.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Corporate Plan 2021 – 2026 be approved and adopted. 
 

11 Budget Monitoring 2020-2021 and Quarterly Accounts 31 December 2020 
Darshan Singh, Head of Finance, presented the report on the forecast out-turn 
against operating budget for 2020 - 2021 and the quarterly accounts to 31 December 
2020. 
 
The Committee were advised that the estimated value for the Fund at 31 December 
2020 had been £18.7 billion, an increase of £3.4 billion from 31 March 2020. The 
Fund anticipated a forecast outturn in excess of budget which was attributable to 
implementation of change to the investment strategy and the increase in asset 
values during the year.  
 
Following queries in regard to the estimated increase in investment management 
costs, the Committee were advised that estimated costs had increased in line with 
Fund assets value and that cost needed to be considered in context of performance. 
Committee were informed that independent global benchmarking on value add from 
investment activity had been commissioned again for 2021 and would be reported to 
Committee at a future meeting.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the quarterly accounts for the period ending 31 December 2020 which 
estimated the value of West Midlands Pension Fund at this date to be £18.7 
billion, an increase of £3.4billion (22%) since 31 March 2020, be noted. 

2. That the West Midlands Pension Fund forecast out-turn for the year against 
operating budgets as at the end of December 2020 was an overspend of £2m 
primarily attributable to increased estimates for investment management costs 
on implementation of planned changes to the investment strategy be noted. 

 
12 Budget 2021/2022 and Financial Plan to 2025/2026 

The Head of Finance presented the report on Operating Budget for 2021- 2022 and 
the Medium-Term financial plan for the five years up to and including 2025 - 2026. 
 
The Committee were advised that an increase of £0.6million be provided to operating 
budget, to increase capacity to delivery customer-facing services and support 
implementation of statutory changes to the Scheme and member benefits as a result 
of the McCloud remedy. Following questions from Malcom Cantello, Rachel 
Brothwood, Director of Pensions advised the Committee that following a period 
where the Fund’s the membership numbers had increased membership rates had 
now levelled off and allowance for this had been made in budget forecasts of cost 
per member.  
 

Page 9



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

Following Councillor Afzal’s concerns with regards to the projected increase in 
management costs, Tom Davies, Assistant Director - Investment Strategy, advised 
the Committee that a 5% per annum growth rate had been applied to Fund assets 
which in turn was reflected in projected costs.   The Committee were advised that 
further work continues to be undertaken to collect and analyse investment cost data 
to increase transparency in manager reporting and Fund disclosure and inform future 
investment decision making.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Operating Budget for 2021 - 2022 be approved. 
2. That the Medium-Term financial plan for the period to 2025 - 2026 be 

approved. 
 

13 Accounting Policies 2020/2021 
The Head of Finance presented the report on the accounting policies to be used in 
preparing the Funds’ accounts for the 2020 - 2021 financial year. 
 
The Committee were advised that CIPFA had issued an updated 2020 - 2021 Code 
of practice which had been reviewed and there were no changes within this which 
impacted materially on the approach undertaken by the Pension Fund. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the West Midlands Pension Fund accounting policies for the 2020 - 2021   
financial year be approved. 

 
14 External Audit Plan 2021 

The Head of Finance presented the report on the plan for the external audit of the 
Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2020 - 2021. 
 
The Committee were advised that the outcome from Grant Thornton’s work would be 
included as part of the Fund’s annual statement of accounts and annual report. The 
audited statement of accounts would be brought for Committee approval in 
September 2021 ahead of the extended statutory publication deadline of 30 
September 2021.  
 
Following questions from Malcolm Cantello (Unison), in regard to Covid-19 health 
and safety regulations and the audit process the Head of Finance, advised that the 
2020 year-end audit work had all been conducted remotely and this arrangement 
would continue for the audit for 2020 - 2021.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the management responses to questions from the external auditors, 
Grant Thornton LLP, as part of their audit planning, be approved. 

2. That Delegated authority to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pensions Committee 
to approve the final publication of the 2020 - 2021 Statement of Accounts 
following audit in September and approval of the draft by Committee in June 
2021, be approved. 

3. That the external audit plan for the 2020 - 2021 Annual Report and Accounts 
as prepared by Grant Thornton, be noted. 

 
 
 
 Page 10



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

15 Internal Audit Plan 2021-2022 
Peter Farrow, Head of Audit, presented the report on the outlined work programme 
for internal audit during 2021 – 2022. 
 
The Committee were advised that the plan had been developed taking into account 
the revised programme of audit work undertaken over 2020 - 2021, the changing 
regulatory environment and the Fund’s latest strategic risk register. The Committee 
would be kept up to date on any changes/developments to the risks.  
 
Following a question from Malcolm Cantello (Unison), in regard to cyber security and 
the audit plan the Head of Audit, advised the Committee that an internal audit on 
cyber security had been completed as part of the 2020 -2021 programme of work. 
The Head of Operations confirmed to the Committee that Internal Audit had 
conducted a review of the Fund’s cyber security and that details of the outcome were 
scheduled for presentation at the next Committee meeting.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Internal audit plan for 2021 - 2022 be noted. 
 

16 Quarterly Investment Report to 31 December 2020 and Investment Strategy 
Statement Review 2021 
The Assistant Director - Investment Strategy presented the report on the 
developments in investment markets, asset allocation and 
investment performance over the latest quarter in relation to the West Midlands 
Pension Fund (Main Fund and Admitted Body Sub Funds). 
 
The Committee were advised that the main Fund’s assets had delivered a positive 
return of 6.0% in the latest quarter, therefore achieving a total return of 6.8% for 
2020.   
 
The Committee were advised that minor changes were proposed to be made to the 
Investments Strategy Statement (ISS) following its annual review and that these 
changes were detailed in the report. 
 
Following a question from Malcolm Cantello (Unison), about the levels of cash held 
by the Fund, the Assistant Director - Investment Strategy advised that the Fund 
would start to see a decrease over the next couple of months following recent 
allocations, but a level of cash would be required to be held by the Fund and this 
would be monitored and managed closer to the target weight as those commitments 
were drawn down over time.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the completion of the annual review of the WMPF’s Investment Strategy 
Statement (ISS), with only very minor changes proposed, be approved.  

2. That the global market and investment update paper prepared by the Fund’s 
Investment Consultant, Redington, be noted.  

3. That the Asset Allocation and Performance Reporting for the West Midlands 
Pension Fund (WMPF), Main Fund and Admitted Body Sub Funds, be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 Page 11



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

17 Responsible Investment Activities 
The Director of Pensions presented the report on the work undertaken in relation to 
responsible investment activities since the last Pensions Committee meeting. 
 
The Committee were advised that Rachael Lem, had been appointed as a 
Responsible Investment Officer within the Fund and would provide the Committee 
with updates moving forward. The Committee were advised that MHCLG looked to 
follow the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) guidance published on the 
climate risk reporting and governance regulations for pension funds in January 2021. 
The Fund has responded to DWP consultations and is participating in discussion on 
this these may apply to the LGPS, with further consideration of the Fund approach to 
be reviewed following publication of MHCLG proposed changes to LGPS regulations 
and consultation.  
 
The Committee were advised that the Responsible Investment Framework had been 
reviewed and updated to reflect the regulation changes that have occurred since its 
last review.  
 
Following a question from Malcolm Cantello (Unison), the Director of Pensions 
advised the Committee that human rights had been included within one of the four 
engagement themes. It was agreed that details on company pledges and their 
progress would be included as and when received in future Committee reports. 
 
Following a query from Councillor Bally Singh, the Director of Pensions advised that 
all correspondence received would be responded to and information would be sign 
posted accordingly.  
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Responsible Investment Framework March 2021 (Appendix A) be 
approved. 

2. That the Fund’s engagement and voting activity for the three months ending 
31 December 2021 (Appendices B and C) be noted. 

3. That the issues discussed by LAPFF are set out in the Quarterly Engagement 
Report which is available on the LAPFF website be noted: 
https://lapfforum.org/wpcontent/uploads/2021/01/LAPFF_QER4_2020_final.pd
f 

 
18 Exclusion of press and public 

Resolved: 
That in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business as 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within the paragraph 3 
of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

19 Investment Strategy and Activity Update 
The Assistant Director - Investment Strategy presented the report on the investment 
strategy and activity over the quarter. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the update on the development and implementation of investment 
strategies for the main Pension Fund and Admitted Body Sub Funds be noted. 

2. That the product developments and planned transitions to the LGPS Central 
pool be noted. Page 12

https://lapfforum.org/wpcontent/uploads/2021/01/LAPFF_QER4_2020_final.pdf
https://lapfforum.org/wpcontent/uploads/2021/01/LAPFF_QER4_2020_final.pdf


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 
20 LGPS Central Pool Shareholder Update 

The Director of Pensions presented the report on the matters considered and 
presented to Shareholders at the LGPS Central Limited General Meeting on 10 
February 2021 and the company and pool progress.  
 
The Committee were advised that further dialogue on the outcome measures for the 
six focus areas and potential for operational efficiencies was planned ahead of the 
Company AGM in September 2021. 
 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Director’s update on Shareholder business relating to LGPS Central 
Limited be noted. 

2. That the Shareholder approval of the Company’s 2021 - 2022 business plan 
and budget be noted. 

 
21 Procurement Programme 

The Head of Operations presented the report on the programme of work to procure 
key systems and professional services / advisors.  
 
Resolved:  

1. That the status of the programme of procurement activities currently being 
undertaken by the Fund, which would see the review and appointment of a 
number of key providers and advisers to the Fund over the next 12 months, be 
noted. 

2. That the work of the Fund in supporting the development of the National 
LGPS Frameworks, in particular the establishment of the Custodian 
Framework; the on-going review of the Actuarial and Benefits Consultancy 
Framework and the upcoming review of the Stewardship Framework, be 
noted. 

 
22 Cyber Security 

The Head of Operations presented the report on the Fund’s Cyber Security Strategy 
and the activity undertaken in 2020 - 2021 in relation to protect the Fund’s data and 
assets against cybercrime. 
 
It was noted that the City of Wolverhampton Council’s ICTS provided the services 
and support to the Fund. They provided the Fund with an annual assurance report on 
any activity undertaken and any concerns/risks were incorporated into the Committee 
reports.  
 
Resolved:  

1. That the Fund’s Cyber Security Strategy 2021- 2022 be approved. 
2. That the work undertaken in 2020 - 2021 by the City of Wolverhampton 

Council as the Fund’s ICTS provider be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 13



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

23 Guaranteed Minimum Pension Reconciliation 
The Assistant Director – Pensions presented the report on the rectification of 
members’ pensions in payment following the reconciliation of members contracted 
records held by HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) with the member data held on 
the Fund’s pension administration system. 
 
Resolved:  

1. That proposals to reduce pensions identified as overpaid, with no recovery of 
overpayments be approved.  

2. That proposals to increase pensions identified as underpaid, with payment of 
arrears with interest be approved.  

3. That proposals to apply a minimum threshold of change for review of GMP 
records be approved.  

4. That delegation to the Director of Pensions to review individual cases where a 
broader review of circumstances may be required prior to change of pension 
in payment be approved. 

5. That the action taken by the Fund on GMP rectification be noted. 
 

Page 14



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

 

Recommendations for action or decision: 

 
The Pensions Committee is recommended to:  
 

1. Approve the revised Terms of Reference for the Pensions Committee. 
 

2. Confirm the re-appointment of the Unite and Unison Trade Union representatives and the 
appointment of the GMB representative to the Committee for the municipal year 
2021/2022: 

 Martin Clift and Ian Smith – Unite 

 Malcolm Cantello – Unison 

 Janice Wadrup – GMB  
 

3. Approve the revised Training Policy developed for members of the Fund’s governing 
bodies.  

 

Recommendation for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to: 
 

1. Note the following dates and time of the meetings of the Pensions Committee:  
 
Pensions Committee – 10am     

 29 September 2021 
15 December 2021 
30 March 2022 

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

 

Report title 

 
Pensions Committee Annual Governance  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable 

employee 

Rachel Howe 

Tel: 

Email: 

Head of Governance & Corporate Services 

01902 55 2091 

Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

Rachel Brothwood 

Tel: 

Email: 

Director of Pensions  

01902 55 1715 

Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item No: 6

mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 
 

 
1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 To seek approval for the Annual Governance matters of Pensions Committee, ensuring 

effective due diligence in decision making through regular review of delegated powers, 

terms of reference and the continued engagement of the Fund’s stakeholders on its 

governing bodies.  

 
2.0  Pensions Committee Terms of Reference 

 

2.1 In accordance with best practice, the Fund, in conjunction with the Chair of Committee, 

has reviewed the terms of reference for Pensions Committee to ensure they remain 

effective, and compliant with the changing regulatory environment in which the Fund 

operates. The terms of reference have been drafted to effect efficient decision making 

with transparent accountability to the Fund’s stakeholders. 

 

2.2 In consideration of the changing environment in which the Fund operates, and noting the 

potential changes which may bear out from national review (such as the introduction of 

the Pensions Regulators Singular Code of Practice, the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good 

Governance Review and forthcoming changes to the CIPFA knowledge and skills 

requirements), the Terms of Reference have been developed and expanded to ensure 

such regulatory changes are incorporated and clearly referenced in the Council’s 

constitution, however it is noted that these elements are still under consultation and may 

require further changes once formally effected (with statutory guidance) later in the year.  

 

2.3 The draft revised terms of reference are presented at Appendix A; changes include 

increasing the minimum quorum to nine voting members to ensure political balance and 

representation from all participants as outlined in the proposed representation policy.  

 

3.0 Appointment of Trades Union observer representatives 

 
3.1 Trade Union member representatives are invited to sit on the Committee to represent the 

Pension Fund members. Trade Unions Representatives are invited observers, they may 
participate in debate, but hold no voting rights on the matters presented.  

 
3.2  Following receipt of nominations from the Trades Unions, the Committee is asked to;  
 

 confirm the reappointment of the following Trade Union observer representatives 
to the Pensions Committee for the 2020/2021 Municipal Year: 

o Martin Clift and Ian Smith – Unite 
o Malcolm Cantello – Unison 

 

 confirm the appointment of Janice Wadrup to the vacant Trade Union 
representative seat following nomination from the GMB Union.   

 
 

Page 16



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 
 
 
4.0 Governing Bodies Training Policy  
 
4.1 The West Midlands Pension Fund believes a well governed scheme is led from the top, 

by its governing bodies and decision makers. To support the members of those bodies in 
their roles, equipping them with the knowledge and understanding of relevant issues the 
Fund has established a formal training policy which details the minimum requirements 
expected of governing body members to support and enable policy decision and 
oversight of implementation, where delegated. 

 
4.2 The Pensions Regulator (tPR) have released a draft singular code of practice which 

include knowledge and skills expectations for members of Pensions and Committee. In 
addition, the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good Governance Review has recommended 
that knowledge and understanding requirements apply to all LGPS decision-making 
bodies (previously requirements only applied to the Local Pension Board). The Fund has 
developed its training policy in accordance with these requirements.   

 
4.3  In addition, members are advised to note that the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy (CIPFA) are currently in the process of reviewing their Knowledge and 
Skills Framework, the Fund has provided input for this review through the CIPFA 
Pensions Panel and will continue to update and enhance its policies in accordance with 
any new requirements.  

 
4.4  Recognising the importance of training in the developing landscape of the Scheme, the 

Fund have included details on the training requirements of the Governing Bodies within 
its Governance Compliance Statement. The Fund reviews its training policy on an annual 
basis to ensure it remains compliant with best practice and delivers a comprehensive 
suite of opportunities for the Committee (and the Local Pensions Board) to develop 
knowledge and understanding. Outlined in the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good 
Governance Review is also a recommended requirement for funds to report Senior 
Officer training, this will be built into the Fund’s annual reporting as this requirement 
becomes effective during the year.   

 
4.5  Committee are asked to consider and approve the training policy, included at 

Appendix B. 
 

5.0 Dates and times of meetings for 2021/2022 
 
5.1 The Committee are asked to note the following dates and times of meetings of the 

Committee for the remainder of the current Municipal Year: 
 

Pensions Committee – 10am     
 29 September 2021 

15 December 2021 
30 March 2022 
  

Page 17



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

5.2  The Local Pensions Board also meet four times a year, meetings continue to be held two 
to four weeks after Pensions Committee, when outcomes from the Committee, together 
with any matters the Committee would like the Board to consider are raised.  Any points 
raised by the Board for consideration by the Committee will be reported to the Committee 
for consideration no later than the next scheduled Committee meeting.  

 

6.0 Financial implications 

 

6.1 The Fund have established a budget for Governing Body training which is reported on 

and monitored in accordance with Fund procedures.  

 

7.0 Legal implications 

 

7.1 Failure by the Fund to comply with the legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in 

enforcement action and a fine from both the Pensions Regulator and the Courts via 

judicial review.  

 

8.0 Equalities implications 

 

8.1 All Fund policies are subject to an equalities impact assessment, undertaken by Fund’s 

Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion Opportunity group.  

 

9.0  All other implications 

 

9.1  There are no other direct implications. 

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

10.1 The Pensions Regulator Singular Code of Practice Consultation  

 

10.2  Scheme Advisory Board – Good Governance Review – Phase 3 Report  

 

11.0 Schedule of appendices 

 

11.1 Appendix A: Pensions Committee Terms of Reference 

 

11.2 Appendix B: Governing Bodies Training Policy  

 

 

 

Page 18

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/consultations/new-code-of-practice
https://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Good_Governance_Final_Report_February_2021.pdf


 

 

Delegations to the Pensions Committee 
DELEGATIONS TO THE PENSION COMMITTEE 
 

 To exercise all those functions of City of Wolverhampton Council which are 
required to be performed by it in its role as Administering Authority for the Local 
Government Pension Scheme under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (and 
any associated legislation) adhering to the principles required by Statutory 
Guidance and the Code of Practice issued by the Pensions Regulator. 
 

 Under Section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 the Scheme Manager 
for the Administering Authority shall be the City of Wolverhampton Council’s 
Pensions Committee. The Administering Authority shall at Full Council every year 
approve the delegation of Scheme Manager under Section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to the Pensions Committee and appoint representatives to 
sit on the Committee for that year. 
 

 To exercise all the general powers and duties of the Council granted to the 
Cabinet and Cabinet Panels and Regulatory or other Committees provided that 
those parts of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and Contracts Procedure 
Rules which relate to the acquisition and disposal of land, Fund Investment 
transactions, custody of assets, appointment of advisors and approval of 
expenditure and their related activities, shall not apply in relation to such 
acquisitions and disposals and expenditure in connection with the West Midlands 
Pension Fund.  
 

 The Council’s financial procedure rules, contract procedure rules and internal 
financial limits concerning procurement do not relate to the Pensions Committee 
who, by delegation from Council, has authority to enter into contracts, procure 
services, purchase goods and manage financial investment through the internal 
controls of the West Midlands Pension Fund and in compliance with all 
applicable legislation. 

 

 To ensure that consideration is given to the impact which the Committee’s 
policies and provision of services have with regard to environmental matters. 
Provided such considerations are in line with the duty of the Pension Committee, 
as Scheme Manager, to manage investments in accordance with fiduciary duty 
and the overall duty to secure investment returns. 
 

 The Pensions Committee may call upon the Local Pensions Board to seek 
assistance on matters to be discussed at the committee meeting. Where such 
assistance is sought it must be considered as part of the decision-making 
process. 
 

 Any reference within the Council’s constitution that refers to Council or Cabinet 
and includes powers relevant to the work of the Pensions Committee should be 

Page 19



 

 

read to include Pensions Committee, including the setting of the Budget and 
Policy framework of the West Midlands Pension Fund. 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 The Pensions Committee shall adhere to the Standing Orders of the City of 
Wolverhampton Council and all matters of due process so far as they do not 
conflict with the statutory duty of Scheme Managers. 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 The membership of the Pensions Committee shall consist of the following;  

 10 City of Wolverhampton Council elected Councillors, nominated by Full Council 
at the Annual Council Meeting in each year.  

 The Pensions Committee will invite, in each municipal year, one representative 
from each of the six district councils to sit as a member of Pensions Committee 
for that year. 6 District representatives, one elected Councillor from each of the 
Metropolitan District Councils participating within the West Midlands Pension 
Fund. District council representatives are invited to will sit as full members of the 
committee with debate and voting rights on the matters presented. 

 In addition, the Pensions Committee will invite each municipal year, four 4 Trade 
Union member representatives to sit as observers to its committee meetings are 
invited as observers from three main trade unions from across the region. Trade 
Union representatives are invited observers to the committee meetings, they may 
participate in debate but hold no voting rights on the matters presented. 
 

 The quorum for a Committee meeting is eight 9 voting members. 
 

 Due to the statutory knowledge and capacity requirements, there will be no 
substitutions accepted to Pensions Committee. 
  

 Should an elected Councillor no longer be a member of their Authority, their 
appointment on the Committee shall cease and a further nomination will be 
sought from that Authority. 
 

 The Committee shall meet on a formal basis a minimum of 4 times a year with 
additional informal meetings throughout the year as required. 
 

 Councillors appointed to the Committee will be bound by their own authority’s 
Code of Conduct when undertaking their public roles. Councillors sitting on the 
Pensions Committee do so as a representative of the West Midlands Pension 
Fund, taking decisions in the best interest of the Fund. Whilst politically balanced, 
the Committee meets on a non-political basis with all members meeting 
collectively in compliance with statutory duties as outlined in legislation and 
statutory guidance.  
 

Page 20



 

 

 Trade Union representatives who observe committee meetings will adhere to the 
formal meeting process, and have regard to the Nolan Principles of Public Life 
when in attendance and the expected behaviours for Governing Body members 
as set out by regulatory bodies.  
 

 Persons sitting on the Committee are expected to make themselves available to 
attend committee meetings. Persons who fail to attend three or more events (to 
include committees and training) may be asked to leave removed from the 
committee and a replacement sought from their nominating body, unless there 
are exceptional reasons for their failure to attend. Such reasons to be considered 
by the committee, notably the Chair and Vice-Chair. 
 

 Persons sitting on the Committee are required to undertake training in line with 
the Scheme Manager’s adopted training policy.  
 

 Trade Union observers are invited to attend training session to assist in informing 
debate in committee meetings. 

 
CHAIRING THE COMMITTEE 

 It will be the first business of the Committee at its annual meeting to receive 
nominations of a Chair and Vice Chair from Full Council who will sit for the term 
of one year.  The Chair and the Vice Chair of the Committee will be appointed by 
Full Council at the Annual General Meeting.  

 

 In the event of a tie of votes, the Chair will have the casting vote. 
 

 In the event the Chair is not present for the meeting, the Vice Chair will assume 
the role of the Chair for that meeting. Should neither the Chair or the Vice Chair 
be present, a Chair will be nominated from the Elected Members present at the 
meeting, providing always that the quorum for the meeting is met. 

 
URGENT DECISIONS 

 The Chair, Vice Chair or nominated person in consultation with the Director of 
Pensions shall be able to exercise the powers of the Committee in any matter of 
immediate urgency which cannot wait until the next meeting. Decision made 
under this provision will be reported to the next available meeting of the 
Committee.  

 
DUTIES OF THE PENSION COMMITTEE 

 To adhere to the principles set out in the Statutory Guidance and Codes of 
Practice issued by the Scheme Advisory Board and the Pensions Regulator and 
undertake its duties in compliance with the obligations imposed on it as Scheme 
Manager. 
 

 To approve the Fund’s operational budget and receive reports on matters of 
staffing and employment where significant budget implications occur. To 

Page 21



 

 

determine staffing structures, changes to vacant posts or the establishment of 
new posts and to receive reports on matters of staffing and employment of 
officers within the Fund where significant budget impacts occur. Always in 
consideration of their obligations from statutory guidance to ensure the Fund has 
adequate resource and skill to perform their duties. 
 

 To communicate with represent the views of members of the Fund keeping 
accurate records and publishing information as required about the Fund and its 
work in the management and administration of the Fund. 
 

 To ensure that equality issues are addressed in the development of policies and 
the provision of services and are appropriately monitored. 
 

 To determine the asset allocation investment strategy and supporting responsible 
investment policy and framework of the Fund in consideration of the long-term 
liabilities and duties to pay pension benefits. 
 

 To monitor investment activity and the performance of the Fund’s investments. 
To take independent and specialist advice on matters to be determined, including 
advice from Senior Officers of the Fund, adhering to the advice given when 
taking decisions. 
 

 To provide independent assurance to members of the Fund of the adequacy of 
the ensure effective operational and financial risk management framework and 
the associated control environment, responsible for the Fund’s financial and non-
financial performance to the extent that it affects the Fund’s exposure to risk. and 
to receive reports on actions identified in the Fund’s internal control framework.  
 

 Reviewing and adopting the statutory policies of the Fund, in accordance with the 
Fund’s policy framework. including the; 

o Investment Strategy Statement 
o Funding Strategy Statement 
o Administration Policy (Discretions) 
o Pension Administration Strategy 
o Governance Assurance Statement 
o Communication and Customer Engagement Strategy 

 

 On an annual basis to receive and approve the Annual Report and Accounts. 
 

INVESTMENT POOLING 

 To select, appoint and dismiss an investment pool operator to manage the 
collective investment of assets in line with Statutory Requirements. 

 To include provisions for investment pooling in the Fund’s Investment Strategy 
Statement. 

Page 22



 

 

 To nominate on an annual basis the representative on the Joint Committee of the 
investment pool operator 

 Ensuring that appropriate measures are in place to monitor and report on the 
ongoing costs of investment pooling as they apply to West Midlands. 

 Ensuring the responsible investment, corporate governance and voting policies 
of the Fund are delivered effectively both in the Fund’s direct/indirect investments 
and those collectively invested in the pool. 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT 

Governing Bodies Training Policy  

 

Scope 

The Fund is required by law (section 248a of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013), 

and statutory guidance (Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice and Scheme Advisory 

Board Statutory Guidance), to ensure that members of its Governing Bodies (the 

Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board), have an appropriate level of 

knowledge and understanding, to undertake the roles and functions of the positions they 

have been appointed to. 

 

As such, this policy applies to individuals appointed to both the West Midlands Pension 

Fund’s Local Pensions Board and the Pensions Committee as outlined in their terms of 

reference. 

 

Background 

Individuals appointed to the Local Pensions Board or Pensions Committee must be 

conversant with: 

 the rules of the scheme, and 

 any document recording policy about the administration of West Midlands 

Pension Fund which is for the time being adopted in relation to the scheme. 

 

In addition, individuals must have knowledge and understanding of: 

 the law relating to pensions, and 

 any other matters which are prescribed in regulations and statutory guidance. 

 

The degree of knowledge and understanding required is that appropriate for the 

purposes of enabling the individual to properly exercise the functions of the role that 

they have been appointed to. Individuals are required to invest sufficient time in their 

learning and development in order to meet required standards relating to knowledge 

and understanding. These standards are applicable from appointment and apply to both 

individuals and the Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board as a whole. 

However, the Fund acknowledges that individuals are not expected to become technical 

experts, and levels of knowledge will vary depending on experience. Governing Body 

members should have the ability to interpret and challenge the information provided by 

Fund Officers and contribute effectively to discussions and decisions made. 

 

The aim of this policy is to: 

 Outline the duties and responsibilities of persons appointed to the Pensions 

Committee or Local Pensions Board in relation to knowledge and understanding  

Page 25



 

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT 

 Outline how the Fund complies with meeting statutory expectations on 

knowledge and understanding through a tailored and structured programme of 

knowledge development  

 Assist individuals in meeting these requirements through an effectively managed 

programme of development. 

 

In conjunction with this policy, the Fund has established an annual training plan linked 

to both CIPFA’s Knowledge and Skills Framework and the items considered as key, as 

outlined by the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice.  

 

Implementation 

Upon appointment, members of the Pensions Committee and Local Pensions Board will 

be provided with a Governing Body handbook, outlining the statutory elements of their 

role and highlighting information they are required to be conversant with. They will be 

invited to attend an in-house induction training session facilitated by Fund Officers 

which will provide an overview of their role and responsibilities (including those related 

to training) together with details of key policies and current issues.  

 

An annual training plan will be produced by Fund Officers, linked to both CIPFA’s 

Knowledge and Skills Framework and the items outlined in the Pensions Regulator’s 

Code of Practice, to ensure that training is delivered effectively and focusses on key 

knowledge areas. Regular opportunities will be provided for members to feedback on 

the training programme and highlight individual training needs to identify gaps in 

knowledge, areas for further development and to take into account any changes to 

regulation, together with individual’s own self-assessment of their knowledge and 

understanding of the issues they are being asked to consider at their regular meetings. 

 

Members of the Pensions Committee and Local Pensions Board are requested to 

commit to undertaking minimum training requirements annually, in order to fulfil 

knowledge and understanding requirements.  

 

Training will include a mixture of face to face, independent learning, briefing notes with 

regular opportunities to engage and to network with colleagues and counterparts from 

other LGPS Funds, as well as through independent reading. Further support will be 

available through the facilitation of regular training sessions, and the production of 

briefing notes providing updates, key issues and Fund developments. 

 

Where training is being delivered on specialist topics the Fund may invite external 

stakeholders and experts to deliver sessions where appropriate. 

 

Page 26



 

 

Sensitivity: PROTECT 

Reporting 

The Fund will maintain appropriate records of all learning and development activities 

undertaken by individual members and the Pensions Committee and the Local 

Pensions Build as a whole. In accordance with statutory guidance and best practice this 

information (individual training hours) will be reported in both the Fund’s Governance 

and Compliance statement, and Annual Report and Accounts with regular updates 

reported to the Chair of Pensions Committee and the Chair of the Local Pensions 

Board. 

 

Support 

To support members of the Pensions Committee and Local Pensions Board undertake 

their role, the Fund has an established Governance team who have responsibility for 

day-to-day engagement with members, offering support and information to help them 

achieve their training requirements. 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

Recommendations for decision: 

 

The Pensions Committee is recommended to approve: 

 

1. The Governance and Compliance Statement.  

2. The Fund’s Representation Policy.  

3. Establishment of a Special Appointment Committee with membership to be agreed with 

the Chair and Vice Chair of the Pensions Committee, to support in the appointment of the 

Assistant Director of Investment and Stewardship to the Fund. 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The latest strategic risk-register and areas being closely monitored in the current 

environment.  

2. The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter. 

3. The Fund’s Key Performance Indicators and action taken to support service delivery.  

4. Updates on potential regulatory changes and statutory guidance emerging from the 

LGPS and wider pensions industry.  

 

 

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021  

  
Report title Governance and Assurance   
  

Originating service Pension Services  

Accountable employee Rachel Howe 

Tel 

Email 

Head of Governance and Corporate 

Services 

01902 55 2091 

Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

  

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Rachel Brothwood 

Tel 

Email  

Director of Pensions 

01902 55 1715 

Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 29

Agenda Item No: 7

mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

1.0     Purpose 

 

1.1  To provide Committee with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed 

scheme. 

 

2.0     Governance Compliance Statement and Representation Policy 

 

2.1 In accordance with Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations the Fund is required 

to produce a Governance and Compliance Statement confirming its Governance 

arrangements, outlining the functions and responsibilities of its Governing Bodies (the 

Pensions Committee and the Local Pension Board).  A copy of the Fund’s Governance 

Compliance statement for 2021/2022 is attached at appendix A, the statement has been 

updated to reflect changes in governance arrangements. 

 

2.2 Proposed changes to statutory guidance recommended by the Scheme Advisory Board’s 

Good Governance review will require LGPS Fund’s to publish a policy on representation 

of scheme members and non-administering authority employers on its Governing Bodies 

(the Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board).  To demonstrate its 

commitment to Good Governance the Fund have established a Representation Policy 

alongside the review of its Governance and Compliance Statement and the delegations 

to its Governing Bodies, the Fund’s Representation Policy is attached for approval at 

appendix B.   

 

3.0      Special Appointments Committee 

 

3.1  In line with the City of Wolverhampton Council’s Constitution, an appointments 

committee is required and will be established on a representative and politically balanced 

basis, to support with the appointment to the post of Assistant Director - Investment and 

Stewardship. The role is currently being advertised following a vacancy emerging in 

January 2021 and review of the future requirements for the role.  Applications 

forthcoming will be reviewed to create a long list in late June, shortlist during early July 

and, subject to suitable applications and shortlisting, final interview is proposed with the 

appointments committee before the summer recess. 

 

3.2 Subject to finalising arrangements with the Chair and Vice Chair, the committee will 

comprise of the Chair and Vice Chair, together with up to five other Pensions Committee 

members, including district and trade union representatives, advised by the Director of 

Pensions and HR Business Partner. A report, updating on progress, will be provided to 

the full Pensions Committee in September 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

4.0 Risk Management  

  

4.1  Strategic Risk Register   

 

4.1.1 The Fund continues to evolve its Risk Management practices to ensure effective 

management and mitigation of risk, both operational, financial and potential risk on the 

horizon which may arise from statutory change.  

 

4.1.2 In line with its Risk Management framework, the Fund holds operational risk maps for 

each service area, each map is owned by individual Senior Managers and is bespoke to 

the risks and impacts of that service area. While risks may be cross functional across all 

service areas and therefore repeated in operational risk maps (resourcing being one) the 

effect of that risk and the impact is individual to each with each having individual 

mitigants to manage the impact.  

 
4.1.3 From this, themes have been identified which are compiled on the attached strategic risk 

register. This is where there is overlap of risks across service areas, with the highest 
rating of risk from the risk maps (noted in the risk ID column) leading the rating on the 
strategic risk register. As the risks are now themed, the register also notes the current 
driver for that risk which represents the current area of concern. It is anticipated that the 
themes of risk on this strategic register will not change however there will be varying 
drivers throughout the year that may change the rating on the theme. 

 
4.1.4 This approach makes the management of risk much more live and means that over the 

course of the year, the movement of risk will be reflective of the environment in any 
reporting period.  

 

4.1.5 The Strategic Risk Register is attached at Appendix C. This quarter, focus remains on 

the changing regulatory environment, the Fund’s ability to resource and recruit key roles 

with some senior roles being advertised at this time.   

 

5.0 Compliance Monitoring  

 

5.1 Data Protection  

This quarter the Fund is reporting nine data breaches, an increase of four since the 

previous quarter, the Governance team have attributed this rise to the recently re-issued 

annual data-protection training which has heightened awareness amongst our 

colleagues. This is a comparative trend each year with the launch of annual training. All 

of the breaches were minor and involved minimal amounts of data with the majority 

raising concerns rather than true breaches. This reporting is welcomed as it supports 

good data management and affords pre-emptive action prior to a formal breach 

occurring. The Governance Team continue to identify actions in order to improve 

procedures and prevent further instances, and work with colleagues across operational 

teams to enhance data management processes.   

  

 

Page 31



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

5.2 Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests  

This quarter the Fund received six FOI requests, all of which have been responded to 

within the deadlines set by Wolverhampton City Council, who operate in accordance with 

statutory timescales.  

 

5.3 Subject Access Requests (SARs) 

This quarter the Fund has received four Subject Access Request, an increase of one 

since the previous quarter.  In addition, seven third party requests for member 

information have also been received.  As reported previously, the majority of third-party 

requests for information were received from claims companies seeking information in 

connection with a member’s decision to transfer out their pension to another provider. 

 

5.4 Cyber Risk Management  

Following the recent report to Committee at the March meeting, the Fund continues to 

develop its programme of activity to ensure effective management of Cyber risk. As part 

of this the Fund has taken part in an independent assessment by consultants AON, 

alongside other Funds to measure the controls and activities in place to manage cyber 

risk. The initial report received shows that the Fund scored higher than the average of 

the other local government Funds, in particular around the areas of governance, 

technology, member data and dealing with members. Since undertaking this assessment 

the Fund has implemented a number of additional activities to further increase this 

score.   

 

 

6.0 Key Performance Indicators  

 

6.1 Attached at Appendix D are the Fund’s Key Performance Indicators at the year-end 

which note a continued upward trend in operational and workload performance indicators 

at quarter four, this is despite the increase in work volumes over the three months 

leading to the year end, the majority of KPI’s remain either within or close to target.   

 

6.2  Attached at Appendix E is an overview of performance year or year, this shows that on 

the whole performance is in line with last year and that   KPI’s remain on target despite 

the current environment in which the Fund continue to operate as a result of the Covid-19 

pandemic. The Fund has seen a drop in performance for the timely completion of IDRP 

cases, however this is due to factors outside of Fund control where delay has occurred in 

the receiving of medical reports, attributable to the current Covid environment.  

 

7.0    Regulator Activity   

 

7.1.   The Pensions Regulators (TPR) Single Code of Practice  

 

7.1.1  TPR released their consultation on the single code of practice during April, as previously 

reported, TPR are reviewing their 15 codes with the intention of creating one single code 

of practice. The Fund have responded to the consultation and a copy of the Fund’s 

response is available on the website. Details of the TPR’s response will be reported to a 

Page 32



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

future meeting of the Pensions Committee, along with details of the work being 

undertaken by the Fund in respect of preparation for the introduction of the single code of 

practice.  

 

7.2 TPR Corporate Plan 

 

7.2.1  TPR have released their three year Corporate Plan, the plan outlines the regulator’s 

priorities for the next three years which have been linked to five strategic priorities; 

Security, Value for Money, Scrutiny of decision making, embracing innovation and bold 

and effective regulation, these themes run through the goals and ambitions set out in the 

Fund’s Corporate Plan, presented to Committee at its meeting in March.  

   

8.0 Financial implications 

 

8.1 Poor management of the Fund’s data, financial information and assets can result in 

additional costs and detract from investment returns. Effective monitoring of the 

management arrangements, facilitated by timely disclosure of information, is required to 

ensure the Fund is well placed to ensure the delivery of its administration, funding and 

investment strategy.  

 

8.2 Failure by the Fund to meet statutory requirements of effective governance and 

administration could result in fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator (tPR).  

 

 

9.0 Legal implications 

 

9.1 Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in 

enforcement action and fine from both tPR and the Courts via judicial review.  

 

10.0 Equalities implications 

 

10.1 There are no implications  

 

11.0 Other Potential implications 

 

11.1 There are no other potential implications 

 

12.0 Schedule of background papers  

 

12.1 Fund’s Corporate Plan 2021-2026  

 

12.2  TPR Single Code 

 

12.3 TPR Corporate Plan 

   

 

 

Page 33

https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s171375/Appendix%20A%20-%20Corporate%20Plan%202021-2026.pdf
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s162062/Covid-19%20Response%20Update.pdf


This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

13.0 Schedule of appendices 

 

13.1 Appendix A: Governance and Compliance Statement  

 

13.2  Appendix B: Representation Policy  

 

13.3 Appendix C: Strategic Risk Register 

 

13.4 Appendix D: KPI’s Quarter Four 

 

13.5 Appendix E: KPI’s year on year   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE 
STATEMENT    
JUNE 2021

West Midlands Pension Fund

Page 35



INTRODUCTION 

The Fund is required to publish a Governance and Compliance Statement under Regulation 55 
of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) and review that 
statement on an ongoing basis.  This statement sets out the Fund’s Governance Structure, 
scheme of delegation, and the terms of reference for its Governing Bodies, the Pensions 
Committee and the Local Pensions Board. 

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY 

– THE CITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON COUNCIL  

The City of Wolverhampton Council (CWC) is the Administering Authority for the West 
Midlands Pension Fund (the Fund) under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 
2013 and is the Scheme Manager as defined by Section 4 of the Public Service Pension Act 
2013.  CWC are required, by virtue of the statutory provisions in the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 to manage the 
Pension Fund’s assets and liabilities separately to those it holds to perform its functions as a 
local government authority and to carry out all other activities associated with the 
management and administration of the scheme, in accordance with legislation and statutory 
guidance for the benefit of its members, employers and other stakeholders. 

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

Under its constitution and in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 
CWC have delegated responsibility for the management of the Fund to the Pensions 
Committee and the Director of Pensions.  As required by the Public Service Pensions Act 
2013, CWC have also established a Local Pensions Board to assist in the good governance of 
the scheme by ensuring compliance with legislation and statutory guidance. The Fund’s 
Governance arrangements are outlined in the diagram below.  

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Local Pensions Board Pensions Committee

CWC

Director of Pensions

Senior Officers and 
Advisors

Page 36



THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

The Pensions Committee is responsible for exercising all of the functions that are required as 
an Administering Authority for a Local Government Pension Scheme under the Public Service 
Pensions Act 2013.  Adhering to the principles required by Statutory Guidance, The Pensions 
Regulator’s (TPR) Code of Practice and performing the duties set out in the Terms of 
Reference for the Pensions Committee as detailed in CWC’s Constitution available on its 
website.   

Members of the Pensions Committee are responsible for the Fund’s activities, ensuring that 
the Fund is managed in the best interest of all its members, employers, and beneficiaries. This 
can sometimes mean that members may have to make decisions in a non-political context.  

The key duties of the Pensions Committee as set out in the terms of reference are as follows:  

• To exercise all those functions of City of Wolverhampton Council which are required to be 
performed by it in its role as Administering Authority for the Local Government Pension 
Scheme under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (and any associated legislation) 
adhering to the principles required by Statutory Guidance. 

• To adhere to the principles set out in the Statutory Guidance and Codes of Practice issued 
by the Scheme Advisory Board and the Pensions Regulator and undertake its duties in 
compliance with the obligations imposed on it as Scheme Manager. 

• To approve the Fund’s operational budget and receive reports on matters of staffing and 
employment where significant budget implications occur.  

• To represent the views of members in the management and administration of the Fund. 

• To ensure that equality issues are addressed in the development of policies and the 
provision of services and are appropriately monitored. 

• To determine the investment strategy and supporting responsible investment policy and 
framework of the Fund in consideration of the long-term liabilities and duties to pay 
pension benefits. 

• To monitor investment activity and the performance of the Fund’s investments. To take 
independent and specialist advice on matters to be determined, including advice from 
Senior Officers of the Fund, adhering to the advice given when taking decisions. 

• To ensure effective operational and financial risk management and to receive reports on 
actions identified in the Fund’s internal control framework.  

• Reviewing and adopting the statutory policies of the Fund, in accordance with the Fund’s 
policy framework.  

•   On an annual basis to receive and approve the Annual Report and Accounts 

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Page 37



The membership of the Pensions Committee is detailed in the diagram below. 

The 10 CWC Councillors and six District Councillors are all voting members of the Committee, 
whilst the four TU Representatives are invited to represent the Fund’s members as observers 
who can participate in debate but do not have voting rights.  Further details about the Pension 
Committee Membership can be found in the Fund’s Representation Policy which is available 
on the Fund’s website.   The Pensions Committee meet on a quarterly basis and are managed 
and operate as a Section 101 delegated Committee. 

THE LOCAL PENSIONS BOARD 

As required by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, CWC as administering authority 
established the Local Pensions Board to assist in the good governance of the scheme by 
ensuring the Fund’s compliance with legislation and statutory guidance.  The terms of 
reference for the Local Pensions Board are available on the Fund’s website.  

The role the local Pensions Board is to assist in the good governance of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme through the monitoring of compliance with statutory regulation and guidance 
and to act as a representative both for and on behalf of the employer and member base 
ensuring effective governance and administration in the management and payment of pension 
benefits. 

Pension Board members are non-political, they represent the Funds members and employers 
(not political group, trade union or individual employer) and must consider the Fund’s 
overriding objective, which is to pay members benefits when they fall due.   

As detailed in the diagram below, the Pensions Board consists of 6 employer and 6 member 
representatives, 2 of which (one from each category) are CWC elected Councillors.

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Page 38



Each member of the Board has a right to vote on matters brought before it.  The positions of 
Chair and Vice Chair are appointed to annually by vote of the membership, with a rotation of 
employer and member representatives each year.  Further information with regards to 
representation on the Local Pensions Board can be found in the Representation Policy which 
is available on the Fund’s website.   Appointments to the Local Pensions Board are made in 
accordance with the  Fund’s Local Pensions Board Appointments process which is also 
available on the website. In line with Pensions Committee, the Board also meet on a quarterly 
basis.   

The Board establishes an annual programme of work focused on the Fund’s governance and 
administration processes, monitoring the Fund’s compliance with statutory and regulatory 
guidance and working with officers to ensure the highest standards are met. The workplan 
covers the broad range of functions undertaken by the Fund including data management, 
financial management, funding policy and investment governance and stewardship.  A report 
on the work of the Pensions Board is provided to the Pensions Committee on an annual basis. 

INVESTMENT POOLING  

ROLE OF INDIVIDUAL ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY  

In compliance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of 
Funds) Regulations 2016, the West Midlands Pension Fund has outlined its approach to 
investment pooling in its Investment Strategy Statement. Working collectively with Partner 
Funds, the West Midlands Pension Fund created and owns LGPS Central Limited, an FCA 
regulated company responsible for product development and offerings to the 8 Administering 
Authorities as its clients.  

In conjunction with its Partner Funds, West Midlands Pension Funds takes 2 roles in this structure: 

• Role as Shareholder  

To oversee, challenge and ensure the company’s goals, ambitions and overall performance 
achieve the objectives set out in its annual business plan (including the budget), ensuring 
such business plan is fit for purpose in the context of its customers, their needs and 
ambitions, including the creation and delivery of products which meet those needs.  

• Role as Client/Customer  

To receive services (under agreement) and to manage the performance of that agreement 
in line with contract management processes.  

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Page 39



DIRECTOR OF PENSIONS  

In accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act responsibility for the day to 
administration, and investment management for the Fund within the policy’s and strategies 
agreed by the Pensions Committee is delegated to the Director of Pensions.      

The Director of Pensions has lead responsibility for the West Midlands Pension Fund in 
accordance with the statutory provisions imposed on Administering Authorities who hold a Local 
Government Pension Scheme function, as governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 
(and associated legislation).  The delegations to the Director of Pensions are reviewed on annual 
basis by the Pensions Committee to ensure ongoing compliance with regulation and statutory 
guidance. The full delegations to the Director of Pensions are available in CWC’s constitution.  

The Director of Pensions may authorise Senior officers from within the Fund to exercise on 
their behalf the functions delegated to them. Any decisions taken under this authority shall 
remain the responsibility of the Director of Pensions who shall remain accountable and 
responsible for such decisions. 

ACCOUNTABILITY AND PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION  

Details of Pensions Committee and Local Pension Board meetings, including minutes agendas 
and reports presented are publicly available on the Administering Authority’s website.  Members 
of the Local Pensions Board have full access to the information presented to the Pensions 
Committee and visa-versa.  

Meetings of the Pensions Committee are open to members of the public.  

The Pensions Board workplan is published on the Fund’s website and a report on the work of the 
Pensions Board is presented annually to the Pensions Committee, this report is published on 
CWC’s website. 

The Fund prepares and publishes a Corporate Plan and an Annual Pension Fund Report and 
Accounts detailing Fund activities and performance during the year.  The Annual Report includes 
details of the training records for members of the Fund’s Governing Body’s (The Pensions 
Committee and Local Pensions Board), with copies available on the Fund website.  

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Local Pensions Board Scheme Manager / 
Pensions Committee

Administering 
Authority

Practitioner’s 
Advisory ForumShareholder Forum

LGPS Central Ltd 
Shareholder Meetings

Joint Committee

LGPS Central Ltd 
Client Relationship

Page 40



GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

GOVERNING BODY KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS  

The Fund is required by law (section 248a of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013), and 
statutory guidance (Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice and Scheme Advisory Board 
Statutory Guidance), to ensure that members of its Governing Body’s (the Pensions Committee 
and the Local Pensions Board), have an appropriate level of knowledge and understanding, to 
undertake the roles and functions of the positions they have been appointed to.   

The Fund have established a Governing Bodies training policy which is available on its 
website, the policy sets out the Fund’s approach to supporting Governing Body members to 
meet statutory expectations with regards to knowledge and understanding through a tailored 
and structured training programme and evidencing compliance with these expectations. 

GOVERNING BODY CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is likely to prejudice a 
person’s ability to undertake the functions of the role they have been appointed to.  A conflict 
could arise where an individual has been appointed to a Governing Body (the Pensions 
Committee or Local Pensions Board) who at the same time has a separate personal interest or 
responsibility (financial or otherwise) in a matter being discussed.  The Fund have established a 
Conflicts of Interest policy that sets out its approach to identifying, monitoring, and managing 
conflicts which is available on its website.  Members of the Pensions Committee and Local 
Pensions report are required to complete annual declarations of interest and the Fund maintain 
a register of interest declared.  Declaration of Interests is also a standing agenda item at all 
meetings of both The Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board. In addition, elected 
members are expected to follow the polices agreed by their Local Authority, including the 
relevant Councillor Code of Conduct. 

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT   

The Fund fully complies with the best practice guidelines on governance, issued by the Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), for details see the table below. 

Principle Fully Compliant

A – Structure

The Management of the administration of benefits and strategic 
management of fund assets clearly rests with the main committee 
established by the appointing Council.

✓
That representatives of participating LGPS employers, admitted bodies 
and scheme members (including pensioner and deferred members) are 
members of either the main or secondary committee established to 
underpin the work of the main committee.

✓

That where a secondary committee or panel has been established, the 
structure ensures effective communication across both levels. ✓
That where a secondary committee or panel has been established, at 
least one seat on the main committee is allocated for a member from the 
secondary committee or panel.

✓
Page 41



GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Principle Fully Compliant

B – Representation

That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be 
represented within the main or secondary committee (the Local 
Pensions Board) structure. These include; 

• Employing authorities (including non-scheme employers (e.g. 
admitted bodies)) 

• Scheme members (including deferred and pensioner scheme 
members) 

• Independent professional observers 

• Expert advisers

✓

That where lay members sit on a main or secondary committee, they 
are treated equally in terms of access to papers and meetings, training 
and are given full opportunity to contribute to the decision-making 
process, with or without voting rights.

✓

Selection and role of lay members 

Principle Fully Compliant

That committee or panel members are made fully aware of the status, 
role and function they are required to perform on either a main or 
secondary committee

✓
That at the start of any meeting, committee members are invited to 
declare any financial or pecuniary interest related to specific matters on 
the agenda

✓
Voting

The policy of individual administering authorities on voting rights is clear 
and transparent, including the justification for not extending voting rights 
to each body or group represented on main LGPS committees

✓

Page 42



GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Training/Facility Time/Expenses Fully Compliant

That in relation to the way in which statutory and related decisions are 
taken by the Administering Authority, there is a clear policy on training, 
facility time and reimbursement of expenses in respect of members 
involved in the decision-making process

✓

That where such a policy exists, it applies equally to all members of 
committees, sub- committees, advisory panels or any other form or 
secondary forum

✓
Meetings

That the Administering Authority’s main committee or committees meet 
at least quarterly. ✓
That an Administering Authority’s secondary committee or panel meet 
at least twice a year and is synchronised with the dates when the main 
committee sits.

✓
That Administering Authorities who do not include lay members in their 
formal governance arrangements, provide a forum outside of those 
arrangements by which the interests of key stakeholders be represented

✓
Access

That subject to any rules in the council’s constitution, all members of 
main and secondary committees or panels have equal access to 
committee papers, documents and advice that falls to be considered at 
meetings of the main committee.

✓

Scope

That administering authorities have taken steps to bring the wider 
scheme issues within the scope of their governance arrangements. ✓
Publicity

That administering authorities have published details of their governance 
arrangements in such a way that stakeholders with an interest in the 
way in which the scheme is governed, can express an interest in 
wanting to be part of those arrangements.

✓

Page 43



GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

Version Author Document Title Approved By Approval Date Next Review

1 Rachel 
Howe

Governance and 
Compliance 
Statement 2020

Pensions 
Committee 

25 March 2020 March 2021

2 Hayley 
Reid

Governance and 
Compliance 
Statement 2021

Page 44



GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT  • JUNE 2021

West Midlands Pension Fund 
PO Box 3948 
Wolverhampton 
WV1 1XP 
 
 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Representation Policy 

Background 

In accordance with best practice the Fund has established a policy on representation 

of scheme members and non-administering authority employers on its Governing 

Bodies (Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board) detailing its approach 

to representation and voting rights for each party.  

Pensions Committee  

The City of Wolverhampton Council’s Pensions Committee have delegated 

responsibility to undertake the role of the Scheme Manager in accordance with 

Section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 

The Committee is responsible for; exercising all of the functions that are required as 

an Administering Authority for a Local Government Pension Scheme under the 

Public Service Pensions Act 2013, adhering to the principles required by Statutory 

Guidance, The Pensions Regulators (tPR) Code of Practice and performing the 

duties set out in the Terms of Reference for the Pensions Committee as detailed in 

the Administering Authority’s Constitution available, on it’s website.  

 

Members of the Pensions Committee are accountable for all the Fund’s activities and 

are responsible for ensuring that the Fund is managed in the best interest of all its 

employer’s, member’s and beneficiaries (employees of the public sector within the 

West Midlands region).   

The membership of the Pensions Committee consists of;  

• Ten City of Wolverhampton Council elected members who are nominated by the 

Full Council at the Annual Council Meeting. The Chair and Vice Chair of the 

Committee are appointed annually from these members by Full Council. 

• Six District Council elected members, one representative from each of the six 

districts within the Fund (Birmingham City Council, Dudley MBC, Coventry City 

Council, Sandwell MBC, Solihull MBC and Walsall MBC).  

• Four Trade Union ‘member representatives’ invited from the three main trade 

unions of the Administering Authority and nominated by their respective Union.   

 

Page 47

https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s174726/Part%203a%20-%20Responsibility%20for%20Functions.pdf


 

 

 

 

Elected members sit as full members of the Committee with debating and voting 

rights on all matters presented. Trade Union representatives are invited to sit on the 

Pensions Committee as observers on behalf of pension scheme members.  

Therefore, they may participate in debate and have the same access to papers, 

meetings and training opportunities but hold no voting rights. Trade Union 

representatives are invited to participate in training events in order to assist in 

informing debate. 

The quorum for the Pensions committee is nine, this is to ensure that the committee 

remains politically balanced with best endeavours to ensure at least one District 

Council representative at each meeting to ensure adequate representation. Trade 

Union representatives do not count towards quorum however, every effort is made to 

ensure at least one individual is in attendance for each meeting.  

Pensions Board  

In accordance with Section 5 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and under 

regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as 

amended), the Fund have established the West Midlands Local Pension Board (The 

Board). The role of the Board is to assist in the good governance of the scheme 

through the monitoring of Fund performance.  

The Pensions Board has 12 members, six employer representatives and six 

members representatives and is structured as follows;  

• Five Employer Representatives, five officer seats, from each of the category 

of employers within the Fund. 

• Five member representatives invited from three main trade unions of the 

Administering Authority, the number of seats for each trade union are based 

on the membership from the administering authority. Trade Union members 

are nominated by their respective union.  

• Two elected member seats, one employer representative and one member 

representative selected by the Administering Authority at the Full Council 

meeting at the beginning of each municipal year. In line with statutory 

provisions, an elected Councillor who sits on pensions board, cannot also sit 

on the Pensions Committee and must be a member or employer 

representative.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

 

 

Each member of the Board has a right to vote on matters brought before it. The 

nominations to Chair and Vice Chair are appointed to annually, with a rotation of 

employer and member representatives each year.  

 

 
 

The Fund has established a Local Pensions Board appointments process, available 

here which details its approach to appointing members of the Board, brief details are 

outlined below: 

• The Fund seeks nominations to two of its seats, one employer and one 

member annually at the start of each democratic year.   

• The process for selecting which seats are up for nomination is determined at 

the Board meeting in January and should be instigated as follows;  

o Members who have been unable to adhere to their responsibilities 

with regards to attendance and training. 

o Vacant seats (including vacancies which may arise before the end of 

the year) 

o Rotation based on length of service, one from each group.  

• This process allows for natural movement within the Board whilst retaining 

knowledge and experience.  

• As detailed above, member representative nominations are invited from the 

three main trade unions at the administering authority.  

• Employer nominations are invited through communication with the Fund’s 

employer base, following formal advert and recruitment to the Fund’s 

employer contacts. The Fund endeavours to ensure it has representation 

across the different employer types within including education authorities, 

local authorities scheduled bodies and admitted bodies.  

• In accordance with the appointments policy an appointments panel is 

convened to agree nominations.  

 

 

 

 

Wider Representation   

Page 49

https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17723&p=0
https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17723&p=0


 

 

 

Customer Engagement Strategy and Customer Engagement Plan 

The Fund publishes an annual Customer Engagement Plan aligned ot the customer 

Engagement Strategy, setting out how the Fund will engage, consult and involve 

customers (members, employers, partner organisations, trade unions and statutory 

bodies), and stakeholders, including its Governing Bodies. The Customer 

Engagement Strategy encourages engagement and feedback from customers which 

serves to inform our delivery, enhancing overall outcomes.  A copy of the Customer 

Engagement strategy is available here. 

An annual Customer Engagement Plan detailing planned engagement activities with 

Fund stakeholder’s (Employers, Members (active, deferred and pensioner) and 

Governing Body members) is also prepared and published on the Fund’s website, 

available here.  

Employer Peer Group  

The Fund have established an Employer Peer Group, consisting of a group of 

representatives from the Fund’s employer base.  The Employer Peer Group has an 

open invitation to all employers, the primary focus of the group is listed in their terms 

of reference which is available here and includes enabling collaborative working with 

employers, sharing best practice and discussion on current issues within the LGPS 

and their impact. Items discussed by the employer peer group are relayed to the 

wider employer base through the Employer Brief (newsletter) at the Fund’s Mid-Year 

Review and Annual General Meetings and the Fund’s website.  

The Wider LGPS 

As a leader across the LGPS, our role on national bodies ensures the voices of our 

customers are heard by the those with responsibility for change, placing our 

members and employers at the centre of decisions which impact their futures.   

 

Page 50

https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17493&p=0
https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17701&p=0
https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17843&p=0


Risk Issue Area of Concern Current Driver Rating 

Risk ID (from 

operational 

risk map) 

 Annual Benefit Statement run due to take 

place May through to August 

  

McCloud data cleansing is an ongoing 

project which will require additional data 

cleansing work by both the Fund and 

Employers 

ongoing challenge to manage and process 

high volumes of investment related data

2 Governance processes and structure 

The Fund is not able to update and effect its 

processes to ensure ongoing compliance with 

regulatory requirements. 

Forthcoming regulatory change and 

statutory guidance redefining reporting 

requirements for the Fund (Pension 

Regulator Single Code, Good Governance, 

Investment data reporting and oversight) 

G1, F2, F3, 

OP2, F4, F8, 

OP8, PS1, PS2, 

INV1

Current Covid environment and the 

reliance on home networks to support 

service delivery 

Global concern on Cyber risk is heightened 

in the current environment

Competition in the market for skilled roles 

following a year of a closed recruitment 

market which is now picking up pace. 

Ongoing medium term reliance on interim 

roles to support service delivery where 

key roles are pending recruitment. 

Change in reporting requirements and the 

presentation of compliance forthcoming 

from the Regulator and Scheme Advisory 

Board. 

ongoing challenge to manage and process 

high volumes of investment related data

 Current recruitment risk 

Multitude of regulatory change in the 

operational and reporting requirements of 

Funds 

Software updates to support automation 

and process efficiencies are led by the 

software provider 

 

Employers own resource risk limits ability 

to deliver requirements for the Fund 

West Midlands Pension Fund Strategic Risk Register 

Quarter 1 2021

1 Data Management 

Data Quality and the ability of the Fund to 

produce statutory requirements for reporting 

together with meeting current legislative drivers. 

G1, F7, OP1, 

INV2

3 Business Continuity and Cyber Risk The Fund is unable to perform its functions 

G3, G4, F11, 

OP5

4 Resourcing service delivery 

IT Systems ability to cope with workload 

demands and the impact of manual processes 

pending automation enhancements from third 

party suppliers. 

People resource risk and the ability to recruit to 

vacant roles with adequate skills G5, F1, OP4, 

OP7, PS7, PS8

5 Internal Controls 

The Fund is not able to effectively monitor and 

report on its compliance with regulatory 

requirements with a need to conduct a full 

review of those in place due to ongoing 

regulatory change 
F6, F10, F12, 

F13, PS6, 

OP6,PS1, INV1

6 Service Delivery - Fund 

The Fund is unable to deliver its services due to 

the impact of adequate resourcing or focus on 

other areas in response to regulatory change. 

F9, PS3, PS5, 

INV3

7 Service Delivery - Third Parties 
The Fund is unable to deliver its services due to 

the reliance on third parties 

OP3, F5, PS4

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



#

Operations - Benefit Operations Processes
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 % Hit

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % Hit % Hit Trend % Hit Trend % Hit Trend

Refund Notification
Notify member of Refund within 10 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 97.20% 95.16% 93.91% 94.76% 95.12%

Refund Payment
Refund payments processed within 5 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 99.62% 98.80% 98.66% 97.97% 98.75%

Retirement Quote Notification of Estimated Benefits within 15 days of retirement date Monthly 90% 76.80% 90.67% 92.14% 98.91% 89.88%

Retirement Notification
Notification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member 

option form (Retirement Notification)
Monthly 90% 98.32% 99.33% 99.57% 93.99% 97.70%

Retirement Payment
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of 

receiving election form (Retirement)
Monthly 90% 96.27% 98.89% 98.92% 99.80% 98.47%

Deferred Retirement Quote
Issue quote letter within 30 days of the members eligible payment date 

or receipt of request from member
Monthly 90% 91.86% 89.23% 80.05% 90.64% 87.61%

Deferred Retirement Notification
Notification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member 

option form (Deferred Retirement Notification)
Monthly 90% 96.61% 96.20% 97.58% 95.84% 96.57%

Deferred Retirement Payment
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of 

receiving election form (Deferred Retirement)
Monthly 90% 92.32% 94.59% 95.16% 95.20% 94.39%

Transfer In Quote
Transfer in quotations processed within 10 days of receiving all the 

required information
Monthly 90% 100.00% 95.60% 94.20% 100.00% 97.62%

Transfer In Payment
Transfer notification of transferred in membership to be notified to the 

scheme member within 10 days of receiving payment
Monthly 90% 100.00% 95.52% 94.92% 100.00% 97.76%

Transfer Out Quote
Transfer out quotations processed within 20 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 100.00% 99.59% 99.39% 98.26% 99.23%

Transfer Out Payment
Transfer out payments processed within 20 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 100.00% 96.30% 91.43% 97.96% 96.71%

Deaths Acknowledgement Acknowledgement of a death within 5 days of receiving the notification Monthly 90% 98.32% 98.17% 99.24% 92.64% 96.77%

Deaths Notification of Benefits Payable
Notification of benefits payable to dependents will be issued within 5 

days of receiving the required information
Monthly 90% 94.70% 91.28% 90.18% 96.08% 93.22%

Deaths Payment
Payment of death lump sum will be made within 10 days of receipt of all 

the required information
Monthly 90% 100.00% 100.00% 99.21% 100.00% 99.82%

Pension Services - Service Calls
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 % Hit

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % Hit % Hit Trend % Hit Trend % Hit Trend

Customer Services Calls Calls received to the customer helpline to be answered Monthly 85% 78.66% 86.57% 87.59% 79.07% 82.77%

Employer Services Calls Calls received to the employer helpline to be answered Monthly 85% 96.47% 95.97% 95.64% 96.45% 96.12%

Pension Services - Customer Satisfaction
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 % Hit

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % Hit % Hit Trend % Hit Trend % Hit Trend

Customer Satisfaction Customer satisfaction Quarterly 90% 100.00% 95.42% 88.80% 90.00% 93.56%

Pension Services - Web Portal Registrations
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 Regs

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target Regs Regs % inc Regs % inc Regs % inc

Web Portal Registrations Web Portal Registrations Monthly 90000 97339 101834 4.62% 104901 3.01% 108133 3.08% 108133

Operations - Web Portal Availability
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 %

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % % Trend % Trend % Trend

Web Portal Availability
Pensions Portal to be available 95% of the time (based on working hours 

as monitored)
Monthly 95% 98.80% 100.00% 99.91% 98.98% 99.42%

Employer Portal Availability
Employer Portal to be available 95% of the time (based on working 

hours as monitored)
Monthly 95% 98.56% 99.79% 99.87% 99.19% 99.34%

Pension Services - Complaints Monitoring
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 % Hit

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % Hit % Hit Trend % Hit Trend % Hit Trend

Member Complaints
All member complaints to be responded to within 20 working days of 

receipt
Monthly 100% 97.67% 97.14% 93.33% 92.86% 95.52%

Employer Complaints
All employer complaints to be responded to within 20 working days of 

receipt
Monthly 100% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% N/A 100.00%

Pension Services - Complaints Monitoring
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 <1 %?

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target
<1 %? <1 %?

Total 

Complaints
<1 %?

Total 

Complaints
<1 %?

Total 

Complaints

Member Complaints less than 1% No of member complaints to be less than 1% of total membership Monthly <1% 70 59 27

Employer Complaints less than 1%
No of employer complaints to be less than 1% of total employer 

membership
Monthly <1% 1 20 0

Governance - Effective Decision Making
Governance - Effective Decision Making T Yr

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target 20/21

Pensions Committee Training Training hours of Pensions Committee Biannually 22 hours pp 155.33%

Pensions Board Training Training hours of Pensions Board Biannually 22 hours pp 86.81%

Total PC/PB Training Total training hours of Pensions Committee and Board Biannually 22 hours pp 131.93%

Governance - Effective Decision Making
Governance - Effective Decision Making T Yr

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target 20/21

Pensions Board Attendance Attendance rate of Pensions Board Biannually 4 per year 73.68%

Pensions Committee Attendance Attendance rate of Pensions Committee Biannually 4 per year 80.56%

Total PC/PB Attendance Total attendance rate of Pensions Committee and Board Biannually 4 per year 78.18%

Governance - Statutory Response Timeliness
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 % Hit

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % Hit % Hit Trend % Hit Trend % Hit Trend

Combined Statutory Timeliness Overall statutory response timeliness Monthly 100% 100.00% 100.00% 90.91% 100.00% 98.57%

Investments - Investment Returns
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 %

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % % Trend % Trend % Trend

Main Fund ROI Main Fund - Returns to be 0.5% above the benchmark (3 Yr. Rolling) Monthly +/- 0.5% -1.50% -1.47% -0.63% N/A -1.20%

Governance - Data Quality
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 %

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % % Trend % Trend % Trend

Common Data Common Data Monthly 99% 97.00% 97.27% 97.45% 97.52% 97.31%

Operations - Data Improvement
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 % 20/21 % Inc

Run 1 Run 2 Run 2 Final run Final run

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % % % Inc % % Inc

ABS ABS produced for 100% of active member records Annually 100% 78.00% 85.08% 7.08% 89.18% 4.10% 89.18% 89.18%

DBS DBS produced for 100% of deferred member records Annually 100% 86.31% 89.00% 2.69% 90.17% 1.17% 90.17% 90.17%

Only run Q1-Q3

Finance - Contributions Received
T Yr Values

20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 20/21 % Rec

Q1 Q2 Q2 Q3 Q3 Q4 Q4

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target % Rec % Rec Trend % Rec Trend % Rec Trend

Contributions
Main Fund - Contributions received from employers and validated by 

accountancy statement
Monthly 98% 99.74% 99.62% 99.49% 99.23% 99.52%

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 

M
an

ag
e

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 

C
o

st
 

Tr
an

sp
ar

e
n

cy

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
En

ga
ge

m
e

n
t 

an
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

D
at

a 
M

an
ag

e
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
n

d
 R

is
k

St
ra

te
gi

c 
A

ss
e

t 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
an

ce

Not yet 

received

West Midlands Pension Fund - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

En
ga

ge
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

En
ga

ge
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



#

Operations - Benefit Operations Processes T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Refund Notification
Notify member of Refund within 10 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 95% 95%

Refund Payment
Refund payments processed within 5 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 100% 99%

Retirement Quote Notification of Estimated Benefits within 15 days of retirement date Monthly 90% 89% 90%

Retirement Notification
Notification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member 

option form (Retirement Notification)
Monthly 90% 97% 98%

Retirement Payment
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of 

receiving election form (Retirement)
Monthly 90% 97% 98%

Deferred Retirement Quote
Issue quote letter within 30 days of the members eligible payment date or 

receipt of request from member
Monthly 90% 94% 88%

Deferred Retirement Notification
Notification of the actual benefits within 5 days of receiving member 

option form (Deferred Retirement Notification)
Monthly 90% 98% 97%

Deferred Retirement Payment
Payment of lump sum and creation of payroll record within 5 days of 

receiving election form (Deferred Retirement)
Monthly 90% 96% 94%

Transfer In Quote
Transfer in quotations processed within 10 days of receiving all the 

required information
Monthly 90% 98% 98%

Transfer In Payment
Transfer notification of transferred in membership to be notified to the 

scheme member within 10 days of receiving payment
Monthly 90% 99% 98%

Transfer Out Quote
Transfer out quotations processed within 20 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 100% 99%

Transfer Out Payment
Transfer out payments processed within 20 days of receiving required 

information
Monthly 90% 99% 97%

Deaths Acknowledgement Acknowledgement of a death within 5 days of receiving the notification Monthly 90% 94% 97%

Deaths Notification of Benefits Payable
Notification of benefits payable to dependents will be issued within 5 

days of receiving the required information
Monthly 90% 99% 93%

Deaths Payment
Payment of death lump sum will be made within 10 days of receipt of all 

the required information
Monthly 90% 100% 100%

Pension Services - Service Calls T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Customer Services Calls Calls received to the customer helpline to be answered Monthly 85% 82% 83%

Employer Services Calls Calls received to the employer helpline to be answered Monthly 85% 98% 96%

Pension Services - Customer Satisfaction T Yr T Yr Qrt

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Customer Satisfaction Customer satisfaction Quarterly 90% 100% 94%

Pension Services - Web Portal Registrations T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Web Portal Registrations Web Portal Registrations Monthly 90000 93946 108133

Operations - Pension Portal Availability T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Web Portal Availability
Pensions Portal to be available 95% of the time (based on working hours 

as monitored)
Monthly 95% 99% 99%

Operations - Pension Portal Downtime Occurences T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Web Portal Downtime Occurences Number of occurrences Web Portal is unavailable to reduce year on year Monthly 0 27 11

Operations - IDRP Monitoring T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

IDRP Combined All IDRP cases completed within 2 months Monthly 100% 40% 36%

Pension Services - Complaints Monitoring T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Member Complaints
All member complaints to be responded to within 20 working days of 

receipt
Monthly 100% 97% 96%

Employer Complaints
All employer complaints to be responded to within 20 working days of 

receipt
Monthly 100% 77% 100%

Pension Services - Complaints Monitoring T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Member Complaints less than 1% No of member complaints to be less than 1% of total membership Monthly <1%

Employer Complaints less than 1%
No of employer complaints to be less than 1% of total employer 

membership
Monthly <1%

Governance - Effective Decision Making T Yr T Yr Qrt

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Total PC/PB Training Total training hours of Pensions Committee and Board Biannually 22 hours pp 100% 132%

Governance - Effective Decision Making T Yr T Yr Qrt

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Total PC/PB Attendance Total attendance rate of Pensions Committee and Board Biannually 4 per year 79% 78%

Governance - Statutory Response Timeliness T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Combined Statutory Timeliness Overall statutory response timeliness Monthly 100% 93% 99%

Governance - Data Breaches Recorded T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Data Breaches Recorded Decrease in data breaches recorded Monthly
Red high 

Green low
55 25

Investments - Investment Returns T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Main Fund ROI Main Fund - Returns to be 0.5% above the benchmark (3 Yr. Rolling) Monthly +/- 0.5% -1% -1%

Governance - Data Quality T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Common Data Common Data Monthly 99% 97% 97%

Operations - Data Improvement T Yr T Yr Qrt

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

ABS ABS produced for 100% of active member records Annually 100% 89% 89%

DBS DBS produced for 100% of deferred member records Annually 100% 90% 90%

Finance - Contributions Received T Yr MMM

19/20 20/21

KPI Summary KPI Description Frequency KPI Target

Contributions
Main Fund - Contributions received from employers and validated by 

accountancy statement
Monthly 98% 98% 100%Fi

n
an

ci
al

 

M
an

ag
em

e
n

t 

an
d

 C
o

st
 

Tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

St
ra

te
gi

c 
A

ss
et

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

P
er

fo
rm

a
n

ce

D
a

ta
 M

an
ag

em
e

n
t 

an
d

 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

West Midlands Pension Fund - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

En
ga

ge
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

En
ga

ge
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

En
ga

ge
m

e
n

t 
an

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

n
d

 R
is

k

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

 

Recommendations for action or decision: 

 

The Pensions Committee is recommended to approve: 

 

1. The draft Statements of Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2021. 

2. Delegation of authority to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pensions Committee to approve 

the final Statement of Accounts once the audit is completed in September. 

3. Delegation of authority to the Chair and Vice Chair of Pensions Committee to approve 

the final publication of the Fund’s 2020-2021 Annual Report after approval of the draft by 

Pensions Committee in September 2021. 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The draft accounts have been certified by the Section 151 Officer as required by 

regulations. 

2. The draft Statement of Accounts (and the Annual Report) for West Midlands Pension 

Fund will now be subject to audit by the Fund’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, with 

the final version, including their audit opinion, to be reported to the Committee in 

September. 

3. The Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2021 (SI no 2021/263) have extended 

the statutory accounting deadlines for completion of the draft and final Statement of 

Accounts for 2020/2021 and 2021/2022. 

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

  
Report title Statement of Accounts 2020/2021 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Darshan Singh 

Tel 

Email 

Head of Finance 

01902 55 2768 

darshan.singh@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Rachel Brothwood      

Tel                               

Email                           

 

Director of Pensions 

01902 55 1715 

rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Page 57

Agenda Item No: 8

mailto:darshan.singh@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Committee’s approval of the draft Statement of 

Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2021 together with delegations to finalise and 

enable publication of the Statement of Accounts and Annual Report following Committee 

approval of the draft in September 2021. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds are required by law to produce a 

Statement of Accounts by 31 May each year. These must be subject to external audit 

and published no later than 31 July. 

 

2.2 In view of the ongoing COVID-19 disruption, timescales for closing and auditing of 

accounts for the current year have again been extended. With effect from 31 March 2021 

and applicable to the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 the 

Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2021 extend the above statutory 

accounting deadlines to 1 August and 30 September 2021 respectively. 

 

2.3 In preparing their accounts, Funds must have regard to proper practice and to any 

guidance which has the effective standing of ‘statutory guidance’. These are for the 

Statement of Accounts, ‘The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2020/2021’ (CIPFA) (‘the Code’). 

 

2.4 As well as being published in the Fund’s own Annual Report, its accounts must be 

included in the Statement of Accounts of the Administering Authority (for the West 

Midlands Pension Fund, the City of Wolverhampton Council). It is important to note that 

the transactions and balances of the Funds are completely separate and not combined 

with those of the Administering Authority. 

 

2.5 This year, the draft accounts are required to be certified by the Section 151 Officer on or 

before 1 August 2021. This certification was provided by the City of Wolverhampton 

Council’s Director of Finance during June 2021. 

 

2.6 The Committee will receive a further report in September presenting the final version of 

the Statement of Accounts for publication along with the draft Annual Report and the 

findings of the external auditor’s work including their audit opinion. Under the City of 

Wolverhampton Council’s constitution, formal approval of the audited Statement of 

Accounts rests with its Audit Committee; this does not apply to the other parts of the 

Annual Report which will be presented to Pensions Committee for approval. 

 

3.0 Accounts Closure and Preparation of the Annual Report 

3.1 Despite challenging times and a number of conflicting pressures, the Fund has 

succeeded in preparing its draft Statement of Accounts well within the revised statutory 

deadline. This is due to careful planning, resource management and close monitoring. 

 

Page 58



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

3.2 An Annual Report will be prepared to include the finalised version of the Statement of 

Accounts and presented to the September 2021 meeting of the Pensions Committee.  

 

3.3 The Fund’s external auditors have already undertaken interim audit work with the Fund 

prior to year end to include testing samples of investments and benefits payment 

transactions to the end of December 2020. The main audit visit has commenced 

(remotely again) in mid June.  

 

4.0 Draft Statement of Accounts 2020/2021 

4.1 The purpose of the Statement of Accounts is to report the Fund’s financial performance 

for the year and its balances and reserves at the year-end. There are two primary 

statements: the Fund Account, which is concerned with transactions during the year and 

the Net Assets Statement which reports balances at the year-end. These are 

supplemented by a series of notes to the accounts which expand on items in the primary 

statements or provide further information about the Fund. 

 

4.2 The draft Statement of Accounts show the estimated value of the Fund increased by 

some £3.6bn over the year due to gains in the value of investment assets (£3.1bn) and a 

surplus of contributions income over benefits expenditure (£0.5bn).   

 

4.3 There are two main reasons behind the increase. Global investment markets suffered 

sharp and unexpected falls in the last few weeks of the prior financial year due to the 

impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the valuation of the Fund’s investments was 

some £1.4bn lower than had originally been forecast for end of March 2020. During 

2020/2021, investment markets have experienced a ‘bounce back’ making significant 

recoveries which pushed valuations back up to pre-COVID levels and then beyond. This 

is reflected in the reported £3.1bn of net investment return. 

 

4.4 Secondly, the balance of contributions income over benefits expenditure, £0.5bn, is 

positive this year because most of the Council bodies opted to pay three years worth of 

Future Service and Past Service Deficit contributions in advance in April 2020 following 

the results of the March 2019 triennial Actuarial Valuation. These significant cash 

receipts have been accounted for fully in this year’s Statement of Accounts.   

 

4.5 The figure for contributions receivable also includes £10.9m paid by employers to cover 

early retirement strain costs, reflecting the additional contributions received as a result of 

employer staffing decisions taken during the year.   

 

4.6 Net assets of the Fund at 31 March 2021 stood at £18.9bn, up from £15.3bn at 31 March 

2020. This comprises investment assets of £18.7bn, an insurance contract valued at 

£200m and working balances of £31m.  

 

4.7 The Fund has taken the option under the Code to disclose the present value of all fund 

employer pension liabilities in a note to the accounts. This value, calculated on an IAS 19 

basis, stood at £29.9bn at 31 March 2021. This is an increase on the 31 March 2020 

figure of £23.1bn due to adjustments to the actuarial assumptions. 

Page 59



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

4.8 The draft Statement of Accounts for the West Midlands Pension Fund is attached at 

Appendix A and has now been passed across to the external auditors. 

 

5.0 Investment Management Costs 2020/2021 

 

5.1 CIPFA guidance, introduced in 2014, requires the disclosure of all investment 

management costs including fees which are deducted at source by external investment 

managers. External investment management costs deducted at source saw a significant 

increase on the prior year at £80.7 million up from £67.2 million, whilst some of this 

reflects growth in assets under management and performance fees, additional 

transparency on ‘hidden expenses’ has meant the Fund has been able to capture greater 

detail on costs. 

 

5.2 The Fund continues to take a transparent approach with investment management costs 

using still relatively new industry-wide cost capture templates to obtain even higher levels 

of cost transparency from the investment managers most notably, in the recording of 

transaction costs associated with turnover within individual portfolios. The following table 

analyses the total investment management costs reported above: 

 

 

Actual 

2019/20 

Actual 

2020/21 

 £m £m 

External Investment Management Costs – Invoiced 10.5 14.5 

External Investment Management Costs – Deducted at 

Source 
67.2 80.7 

External Investment Management Costs – LGPS Central 4.0 4.7 

Total External Investment Management Costs 81.7 99.9 

Internal Investment Management Costs 0.9 0.8 

Total Investment Management Costs 82.6 100.7 

 

 Transparency and reporting of investment management costs 

 

5.3  The Fund has undertaken additional data collection and analysis over the last few 

months to scrutinise cost transparency templates received as the Fund continues to 

strive to get full transparency over investment costs and capture those which hitherto, 

have not been transparent. The Fund has received more reporting templates and 

information again this year and discloses all costs information received including 

performance fees. Although there is a growing number of Funds and schemes aspiring to 

do the same, many other Pension Fund accounts do not currently include amounts close 

to full disclosure. 

 

5.4  It should be noted that actual investment management costs are heavily influenced by 

market movements and investment performance and are therefore expected to fluctuate 

during the year and between years. Not all managers have returned cost reporting 

templates in time for review ahead of publication of the Statement of Accounts. Where 

there are gaps, base management fees (the largest element of cost) have been 

Page 60



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

estimated but not other potential fees, as the Fund does not hold information to estimate 

with any accuracy. Portfolio changes during the year and asset allocation or strategic 

changes will also impact the development of costs over time. 

 

5.5 Further analysis of the Fund’s investment performance and costs undertaken by CEM 

global benchmarking is incorporated within a separate paper to the Committee for 

discussion later in the meeting. 

 

5.6  The challenges of cost data collection and comparison were highlighted in research by 

the Cost Transparency Initiative (CTI) published by the PLSA in May this year – 

coverage, consistency and accuracy appear to be barriers to wider use in reporting but 

there is an increased call for mandatory adoption and guidance on disclosure to improve 

consistency and benchmarking to enable pension schemes to be better equipped to 

challenge their investment managers. 

 

6.0 Financial implications 

 

6.1 The financial implications are discussed in the body of the report. 

 

7.0 Legal implications 

 

7.1 The Statement of Accounts of the Administering Authority (of which the Fund’s accounts 

form part) must be prepared in accordance with the statutory framework established by 

the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The audit of the financial statements will be 

undertaken in accordance with the statutory framework established by sections 3 and 20 

of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.  

 

7.2 The Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2021 came into force on 31 March 

and extend the publication date for local authority audited accounts to 30 September 

2021 with the public inspection period starting on the first working day of August 2021. 

 

7.3 Under LGPS Regulations, Administering Authorities are required to produce and publish 

a pension fund annual report, including information about the management and financial 

performance of the Fund by 1 December each year. 

 

8.0 Equalities implications 

 

8.1 This report has no direct equalities implications. 

 

9.0 All other implications 

 

9.1 This report has no other direct implications. 

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

10.1  Budget Monitoring 2020/2021 and Quarterly Accounts to 31 December 2020, Report to 

Pensions Committee, 24 March 2021 

Page 61



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

10.2 External Audit Plan 2020/2021, Report to Pensions Committee, 24 March 2021 

 

10.3 Perceptions of the CTI Framework – research published by the PLSA in May 2021 

 CTI-Perceptions-Report-May-2021.pdf (plsa.co.uk)  

 

11.0 Schedule of appendices 

 

11.1 Appendix A: Draft WMPF Statement of Accounts 2020/2021  

 

 

Page 62

https://www.plsa.co.uk/Portals/0/Documents/Policy-Documents/2021/CTI-Perceptions-Report-May-2021.pdf


Fund Account

Note

Contributions & Benefits
353.2            Contributions Receivable P8 1,182.7                 
31.2              Transfers In P9 22.3                      
14.3              Other Income P10 13.9                      

398.7            1,218.9                 

(637.8)           Benefits Payable P11 (646.8)                   
(40.0)             P12 (31.0)                     
(0.9)               Other Payments (0.4)                      

(678.7)           (678.2)                   

(280.0)           540.7                    

(91.5)             Management Expenses P13 (110.2)                   

491.7            P9 -                       

Returns on Investments
178.2            Investment Income P14 84.8                      

(745.1)           P16 3,123.8                 
20.7              P17 (14.1)                     

(546.2)           Net return on investments 3,194.5                 

(426.0)           3,625.0                 

15,714.1        15,288.1               

15,288.1        18,913.1               

Net Assets Statement

Note

Investment Assets (at Market Value) P15
494.0            Bonds 508.4                    
28.9              UK Equities 27.0                      

1,408.8         Overseas Equities 2,567.5                 
10,869.9        Pooled Investment Vehicles 13,640.8               

965.1            Property 1,014.0                 
11.7              Derivatives - Futures -                       
-                Derivatives - Forward Foreign Exchange 3.1                        

582.5            Foreign Currency Holdings 399.6                    
569.6            Cash Deposits 498.2                    
75.8              Other Investment Assets                                                            19.2                      
7.0                7.5                        

15,013.3        Investment Assets 18,685.3               

Investment Liabilities (at Market Value) P15
(76.8)             Derivatives - Forward Foreign Exchange -                       

Derivatives - Futures (2.3)                      
(76.8)             Investment Liabilities (2.3)                      

                  
14,936.5        Net Investment Assets 18,683.0 

229.4            Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract P17 200.0 

14.5              Long-Term Debtors P19 10.2 

132.4            Current Assets P20 40.4 

(24.7)             Current Liabilities P21 (20.5)

15,288.1        
Net Assets of the Fund at the end of the 
year 18,913.1 

Revaluation of bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members

Transfer in of WMITA Fund at market value

Outstanding Dividend Entitlement and Recoverable With-Holding Tax

Total benefits and other expenditure

Changes in Value of Investments

Net Increase/(decrease) in the Fund during the year

Net Assets of the Fund at the beginning of the year

Net Assets of the Fund at the end of the year 

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
£m £m

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets at its disposal.  They do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the 
financial year.  The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is disclosed at note 6.

The notes form part of these financial statements.

WEST MIDLANDS PENSION FUND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2021

 2019/20  2020/21 
 £m  £m 

Total contributions and other income

Payments to and on account of leavers

Appendix A

Page 63



Notes to the Pension Fund Statements

Note P1 - General

         117,950 Active Members                 113,644 
         104,045 Pensioner Members                 106,899 
         111,939 Deferred Members                 114,558 
         333,934 Total                 335,101 

Note P2 - Basis of Preparation

Note P3 - Statement of Accounting Policies

A. Fund account

B. Contribution income

The responsibility for administering the Fund is delegated to the Council's Pensions Committee .  It meets at approximately quarterly intervals and has members from each of the seven metropolitan 
district councils in the West Midlands.   A Pensions Board was also in operation during 2020/21.  Membership of the Committee and Board can be found on the City of Wolverhampton Council website:  
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1 

31 March 2021

West Midlands Pension Fund is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme and is administered by the City of Wolverhampton Council on behalf of all local authorities in the West Midlands and other 
employers who have members in the Fund.  Membership of the Fund is available to all local government employees including non-teaching staff of schools and further and higher education corporations 
in the West Midlands region together with employees of scheduled and admitted bodies.  At 31 March 2021, the Fund had 743 actively participating employers and 335,101 members as set out in the 
following table.  A full list of participating employers can be found in the Fund's Annual Report.

In 2019/20, following the enactment of UK Statutory Instrument 2019 No. 1351 ("the Local Government Pension Scheme (West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority Pension Fund and West Midlands 
Pension Fund Merger) Regulations 2019, all the assets and liabilities of the former West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority Pension Fund (WMITA) transferred to West Midlands Pension Fund.  For 
any person for whom the appropriate Administering Authority had been, or would have been, the West Midlands Combined Authority, the appropriate Administering Authority became City of 
Wolverhampton Council.   The regulations effecting this change came into full legal force on 8 November 2019 but with retrospective effect in a legal and accounting sense from 1 April 2019 (the "merger 
date" cited in the legislation).

The description in this note is a high-level summary of the Fund's activities and more detail is available in the Fund's Annual Report which can be found on its website.

31 March 2020
No.

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund's transactions for the 2020/21 financial year and its financial position as at 31 March 2021. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21  (the Code) which is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

Further to direction from government, local authority investment pools have been created to bring together the investment assets of LGPS pension funds into eight Investment Pools. LGPS Central 
Limited (LGPSC), the company established to manage investments on behalf of eight LGPS funds including West Midlands Pension Fund (WMPF), received authorisation from the Financial Conduct 
Authority in 2018 and the LGPS Central regional investment asset pool went live on 1 April 2018. 

As at 31 March 2021, WMPF had assets of £7,869m managed in LGPSC sub-funds comprising £7,670m managed through Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) sub-funds and a further £199m 
managed through a Scottish Limited Liability Partnership vehicle. 

Work is underway to develop further LGPS Central Limited sub-funds in collaboration with LGPS Central investment asset pool Partner Funds and WMPF will continue to review the decision to transition 
assets on a case by case basis dependent on the sub-fund meeting the strategic requirements of WMPF.  The transition of the Fund’s remaining assets into products offered by LGPS Central Limited is 
expected to take several years. 

WMPF has a number of advisory arrangements in place with LGPSC to support with advice and sometimes to facilitate execution on the underlying assets of legacy portfolios managed directly by the 
Fund.  It is likely that some of these advisory and execution mandates will remain in place for some time to come due to the illiquid nature of the investments and the cost effectiveness of transition. 

As disclosed above, during 2019/20 all assets and liabilities of the former West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority Pension Fund transferred to the West Midlands Pension Fund and transactions 
occurring after that date (on an accruals basis) are attributable to WMPF.  The relevant assets and liabilities were treated in the accounts as having been transferred at the values applicable on the 
"merger date" 1 April 2019.  The Fund Account for 2019/20 therefore included: 
 - a transfer (shown separately) of the total market value of WMITA as at 1 April 2019 including accrued income and expenses at that date.
 - all income and expense transactions related to the former WMITA Pension Fund since 1 April 2019 shown on a consolidated basis.

The transfer value of the WMITA Fund shown in the accounts was based on the Net Assets Statement in the audited accounts of the WMITA Fund for the year to 31 March 2019.  The audit was 
performed by Grant Thornton LLP and their audit report was signed in July 2019.  

Employers' augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for in the period in which the liability arises.  Any amount due in year but unpaid is classed as a current financial 
asset with amounts due after the following year classed as long-term financial assets.

Major changes were introduced to the LGPS from 1 April 2014, in particular, the move from basing pensions on final salaries to career-average revalued earnings (CARE) with an accrual rate of 1/49th 
and pensions uprated annually in line with the Consumer Price Index.  Pension entitlements accrued prior to this date continue to be based on final salary.

The scheme is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme.  Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings.  Contributions are made by active members of the Fund in accordance with 
the LGPS Regulations 2013 and range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March 2021.  In addition to employee contributions, employers' contributions are paid as set 
based on triennial actuarial funding valuations.  The valuation in relation to 2020/21 contribution rates was conducted at 31 March 2019 .  Employer contribution rates during 2020/21 ranged from 15.5% to 
38.6% of pensionable pay.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which 
fall due after the end of the financial year. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 basis, is disclosed at Note P6 of these 
accounts.

No.

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The scheme is governed by the Public Services Pensions Act 2013.  The Fund is administered in accordance with the following secondary legislation:
(i) The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)
(ii) The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Saving and Amendments) Regulations 2014 (as amended)
(iii) The Local Government Pensions Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

In the Fund Account, income and expenditure are accounted for in the year in which they accrue by the creation of payables and receivables at the year end where necessary.  Provision has not been 
made where the amount payable or receivable in relation to transfers was not agreed at the year end (see note P9).

Contributions receivable have been included in the accounts on the accruals basis at the rates recommended by the Fund's actuary for basic contributions.  Additional contributions (including past service 
deficit contributions and excluding additional voluntary contributions) as notified by employers for the period have also been included.  Past service deficit contributions are accounted for in the year in 
which they are payable under the schedule of contributions set by the scheme actuary.

Where employing organisations have not submitted all of the certified returns of contributions payable by the due date for preparation of these accounts, an estimate has been made based on the 
monthly returns actually received from these bodies.

Page 64



C. Transfers to and from other schemes

D. Investment Income
i) Interest Income

ii) Dividend Income

iii) Distributions from Pooled Funds

iv) Property-Related Income

v) Changes in the Value of Investments

vi) Stock lending income

E. Taxation

F. Benefits payable

G. Financial assets

H. Freehold and leasehold properties

I. Foreign currencies

J. Derivatives

K. Movement in the net market value of investments

L. Cash and cash equivalents

M. Financial liabilities

N. Management expenses

Purchases and sales of derivatives are recognised as follows:
Futures – on close out or expiry the variation margins are recognised as cash receipts or payments depending on whether there is a gain or loss.
Forward currency contracts settlements are reported as gross receipts and payments.

Investment income arising from the underlying investments of pooled investment vehicles is rolled up and reinvested within the pooled investment vehicles.  This is reflected in the relevant unit price and 
reported within 'Change in Market Value'.

Where a management fee notification has not been received by the time of preparing these accounts, an estimate based upon the market value of the relevant mandate is used for inclusion in the Fund 

The cost of any 'in-house' Fund investment activity is included in investment management expenses.

Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are reported within transfers in.

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk 
of changes in value.

Properties are valued annually as at the year end by independent valuers on a fair value basis.  The market values included in these accounts are contained in a valuation report by Savills plc (in 
accordance with Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors valuation standards) as at 31 March 2021.  All investment property assets are subject to annual revaluation, one third of the commercial property 
portfolio is valued fully in March each year with the remaining two thirds being a 'desktop' valuation.  Agricultural properties were valued by Browns, agricultural valuers, at the same date.    

Any gains or losses arising on translation of investments into sterling are accounted for as a change in the market value of investments.

Investments held in foreign currencies have been valued as set out in paragraph g) above and translated at exchange rates ruling at 31 March 2021.

The Fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from its investment activities. The Fund does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.

Financial assets are included in the Net Assets Statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date.  A financial asset is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes party to 
the contractual acquisition of the asset.  From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the asset are recognised in the Fund Account.

Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments have been accounted for at the spot market rates at the date of transaction.  End of year spot market exchange rates have been used to value 
cash balances held in foreign currency bank accounts, market values of overseas investments and purchases and sales outstanding at 31 March 2021.

Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. 

The values of investments as shown in the Net Assets Statement have been determined at fair value in accordance with the requirements of the Code and IFRS 13 (see note 17 to the accounts).  For the 
purposes of disclosing levels of fair value hierarchy, the Fund has adopted the classification guidelines recommended in Practical Guidance on Investment Disclosures (PRAG/Investment Association, 
2016)

Changes in the net market value of investments (including investment properties) are recognised as income and comprise all realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.

The Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on 
the proceeds of investments sold.  Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin unless exemption is permitted.  Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as an expense as it 
arises.

Stock lending income is accounted for on a cash basis.

Pensions and lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at 31 March 2021.  Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities.

Property-related income (consisting primarily of rental income from operating leases) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  Any lease incentives granted are recognised as an 
integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease. Contingent rents based on the future amount of a factor that changes other than with the passage of time, such as turnover rents, are 
only recognised when contractually due.

The LGPS Central pool trading company, LGPS Central Limited, only became licensed to trade on 1 April 2018.  The Pension Fund's view is that for 31 March 2021, cost is still an appropriate estimate of 
the fair value of shares held in this company.

All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.  The costs of Fund officers are recharged to the Fund along with all other costs incurred directly on Fund activities and an 
apportionment for corporate support services provided by the administering authority.

All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.  External investment management and custodian fees are agreed in management or custody agreements governing the 
administration of the individual mandates.  Fees are generally based on the valuation of the underlying investments either being managed or in safe custody. In addition, performance-related fees are 
negotiated with a number of managers and the amounts of such fees are provided in a note to the accounts.

The Fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as at the reporting date. A financial liability is recognised in the Net Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the liability. From this 
date, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised by the Fund.

Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who had either transferred benefits in or out of the scheme as at 31 March 2021, calculated in accordance with the 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations (see notes to the accounts).  Transfers in respect of individuals are accounted for when received or paid which is normally when the member liability is 
accepted or discharged.  Group transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.

Interest income is recognised in the Fund Account as it accrues using the effective interest rate of the financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination. 

Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as a current financial 
asset. 

The Fund discloses its management expenses in accordance with the CIPFA guidance Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Expenses 2016.

Page 65



O. Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

P. Additional voluntary contributions

Note P4 - Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Unquoted private equity investments 

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract

Pension Fund liability

Note P5 - Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

Uncertainties

Fair value of investments

Uncertainties

COVID-19 valuation uncertainty

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions FORMULA

Note P6 - Actuarial valuation of the Fund

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries and pensions are projected to increase, changes 
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. Barnett Waddingham, the Fund's consulting Actuaries, are engaged to provide expert advice about the assumptions to be 
applied. 

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions
The effects on the net pension liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. For instance, an increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the pension liability; 
however, an increase in assumed earnings inflation or assumed life expectancy would significantly increase the pension liability as detailed by the Fund's consulting Actuary below:

The use of estimates for investment values is greatest for those assets classified at Level 3 which means there is a risk that these investments may be over/under stated in the accounts.  The total value of 
Level 3 investments is £3,920.7m at 31 March 2021 (£3,806.1m at 31 March 2020).  The assets classified as Level 3 and the sensitivity of the valuation methods employed is described in note 17.

The contribution rates applicable to the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 were determined by the Fund's Actuary, G Muir of Barnett Waddingham LLP as part of the full actuarial valuation of the Fund 
made as at 31 March 2019.  
On the basis of the assumptions adopted, the 2019 valuation revealed that the value of the Fund’s assets of £15,634 million represented 94% of the funding target of £16,648 million at the valuation date.  
The valuation also showed that a primary rate of contribution of 20.4% of pensionable pay per annum was required from employers.  The common rate is calculated as being sufficient, together with 
contributions paid by members, to meet all liabilities arising in respect of service after the valuation date. 

In general, the Fund applies a maximum deficit recovery period of 17 years. The aim is to achieve 100% solvency over the period and to provide stability in employer contribution rates. 

The funding plan adopted in assessing the contributions for each individual employer is in accordance with the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS). Different approaches adopted in implementing 
contribution increases and deficit recovery periods are as determined through the FSS consultation process.

The valuation of unquoted securities is based on the latest investor reports and financial statements provided by the fund managers of the underlying funds adjusted for transactions arising after the date 
of such reports.  A discount may be applied by the fund manager where trading restrictions apply to such securities.  Where the first investor valuation report has not been received from the fund 
manager the security is valued at cost. The value of unquoted private equity at 31 March 2021 was £1,315.5 million (£1,203.3 million at 31 March 2020). 

The pension fund liability is calculated every three years by the appointed Actuary with annual updates in the intervening years. The methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines and in 
accordance with lAS 19. Assumptions underpinning the valuations are agreed with the Actuary and are summarised in Note P6. This estimate is subject to significant variances based on changes to the 
underlying assumptions. 

The AVC arrangements pertaining to the former WMITA Fund have transferred to West Midlands Pension Fund under the merger.  These arrangements with Prudential Assurance Company Limited and 
Utmost Life and Pensions Limited operate on the same basis as described above and will continue to be provided within the West Midlands Pension Fund.

The transfer of assets from the WMITA Fund included a bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract with Prudential Retirement Income Limited.  The insurance cover provides that the insurer underwrites the 
risk for meeting the liabilities of a specified group of pensioners on the WMITA pensions payroll as at 11 August 2011.  The insurance provider will pay the cost of the monthly pension payments for this 
group whilst they or their dependants are entitled to a pension.

The bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract is included in the Net Assets Statement as an asset and is valued at year end by the Actuary.

Change in assumptions - year ended 31 March 2021  Approx. % increase in 
liabilities 

 Approx. monetary value £m

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the scheme actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and relevant actuarial standards.  As 
permitted under the Code, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the Net Assets Statement (see note P5).

The Fund provides an additional voluntary contributions (AVC) scheme for its members the assets of which are invested separately from those of the Fund.  The Fund has appointed Prudential 
Assurance Company Limited and Utmost Life and Pensions as its AVC providers.  AVCs are paid to the provider by employers and are specifically for providing additional benefits for individual 
contributors.  Each contributor receives an annual statement showing the amount held in their account and the movements in the year.  AVCs are not included in the accounts in accordance with section 
4(1)(b) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 but are disclosed as a note only (see note P22).

0.5% p.a. decrease in discount rate 11%                                           3,236.3 

In practice, each individual employer’s position is assessed separately and the contributions required are set out in the report dated 31 March 2020. In addition to the certified contribution rates, payments 
to cover additional liabilities arising from early retirements (other than ill-health retirements) will be made to the Fund by the employers.  

1 year increase in member life expectancy 5%                                           1,462.7 
0.5% p.a. increase in salary increase rate 1%                                              310.7 

0.5% p.a. increase in CPI inflation 10%                                           2,880.9 

During the year to 31 March 2021, the impact of COVID-19 led to valuation challenges regarding certain illiquid assets. On 17 March 2020, the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 
recommended that surveyors use a material valuation uncertainty clause in property valuations due to the unprecedented circumstances caused by the pandemic and the corresponding absence of 
market evidence on which to base judgements. Throughout the year, such clauses applied to fewer and fewer assets as market uncertainty gradually receded and on 9 September 2020, RICS formally 
lifted its recommendation.  

Obtaining timely valuation is a perennial issue with Private Equity where the valuation of investment vehicles often has to be 'stale' or 'lagged' due to the unavailability of pricing information as at the 
Fund's year end date (by the time the Statement of Accounts has been prepared and audited). Valuations are by neccessity estimated and may not fully reflect the performance of the vehicles underlying 
portfolio of investments  

Certain types of investments are not publicly listed and, as such, there is a degree of estimation involved in their valuation. 

Page 66



2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Birmingham City Council  16.8% plus

£61.8m 
(£124.0m) 

 18.3% plus
£61.5m 

(£124.2m) 

21.3% plus 
£48.2m 

(£124.2m)

21.3% plus 
£49.9m 
(£123m)

21.3% plus £51.8m 
(£121.9m)

Coventry City Council  16.8% plus
£12m   

(£31.1m) 

 16.8% plus
£12m   

(£31.1m) 

20.4% plus 
£3.6m 

(£32.9m)

20.4% plus 
£3.7m 

(£32.6m)

20.4% plus £3.9m 
(£32.3m)

Dudley MBC  17.0% plus
£9.7m 

(£31.3m) 

 18.6% plus
£9.6m 

(£32.3m) 

20.7% plus 
£3.0m 

(£31.5m)

20.7% plus 
£3.1m 

(£30.6m)

20.7% plus £3.2m 
(£29.9m)

Sandwell MBC  16.2% plus
£17m   

(£17.0m) 

 17.7% plus
£16.9m 

(£16.9m) 

20.5% plus 
£10.5m 

(£10.3m)

20.5% plus 
£10.9m 

(£10.2m)

20.5% plus £11.3m 
(£10.1m)

Solihull MBC 16.5% plus 
£5.1m 

(£16.6m)

18.4% plus 
£5.1m 

(£17.4m)

20.7% plus 
£2.9m 

(£19.9m)

20.7% plus 
£3.0m 

(£19.4m)

20.7% plus £3.1m 
(£19.0m)

Walsall MBC  16.9% plus
£14.8m 

(£30.2m) 

 18.3% plus
£15m   

(£31.5m) 

20.3% plus 
£9.8m 

(£30.2m)

20.3% plus 
£10.1m 

(£30.0m)

20.3% plus £10.5m 
(£29.7m)

City of Wolverhampton Council  16.8% plus
£14m 

 18.1% plus
£14.6m 

20.0% plus 
£6.8m 

(£28.8m)

20.0% plus 
£7.1m

20.0% plus £7.3m

Rate of return on investments:
Rate of pay increases:

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits for the purposes of IAS 26

Rate of return on investments (discount rate)
Rate of pay increases

Note P7 - Taxation

1. Value added tax (VAT)

2. Taxation of overseas investment income

As a result of the valuation, a revised Rates and Adjustments certificate was prepared for the three years commencing 1 April 2020. For comparison purposes, the figures for the two preceding years are 
also shown.  The minimum payable by the seven councils was certified as follows:

Future Service Rate  (% of pay) plus lump sum (£)

The amounts shown in brackets are due in the year where the Council has opted to make a cash payment in advance.  These amounts were received by the Fund in April 2020.  The valuation was carried 
out using the projected unit actuarial method and the main actuarial assumptions used for assessing the Funding Target and the common contribution rate were as follows:

2019 2016 
 4.6% per annum  4.7% per annum 
 3.6% per annum  3.9% per annum 

Rate of increases in pensions in payment (in excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension):  2.6% per annum  2.4% per annum 

The assets were assessed at market value.

The 31 March 2019 Actuarial Valuation report can be found on the Fund's website.

IAS 26 requires the present value of the Fund’s promised retirement benefits to be disclosed and for this purpose, the actuarial assumptions and methodology used should be based on IAS 19 rather 
than the assumptions and methodology used for funding purposes.

To assess the value of the benefits on this basis, the following financial assumptions have been used:

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
 2.35% per annum  2.00% per annum 
 2.90% per annum  3.85% per annum 

Rate of increases in pensions in payment (in excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension)  1.90% per annum  2.85% per annum 
 

The total value of the Fund's promised retirement benefits for the purposes of IAS 26 as at 31 March 2020 was estimated as £23,091.8 million.  The effect of the changes in actuarial assumptions between 
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 as described above is to increase the liabilities by £6,723.6 million.  Adding interest over the year increases the liabilities by £523.9 million and allowing for net benefits 
accrued/paid over the period increases the liabilities by £154.3 million (this includes any increase arising as a result of early retirements/augmentations). There is a decrease of £288.8 million as a result of 
allowing for actual experience or outcomes which were different when viewed in hindsight to that assumed previously and, a change in mortality rates assumptions decreases liabilities by a further £300.1 
million. Last year, the merger with the WMITA Fund added £543.3m of liabilities which have increased by £63.8m during 2020/21 to £607.1m at 31 March 2021.

The Fund (as part of the City of Wolverhampton Council) pays VAT collected on income in excess of VAT payable on expenditure to HMRC.  The accounts are shown exclusive of VAT.

The Fund receives interest on its overseas bonds gross but a variety of arrangements apply for the taxation of dividends on overseas equities in the various markets.

There are also markets where relief is not possible - either no double taxation agreement exists (e.g. Brazil, Colombia, Lebanon), or a 'subject to tax' clause prevents UK pension funds from benefiting 
from treaty rates (e.g. Israel, Malaysia, Portugal). In such cases, the full amount of tax is withheld and is final.

In some markets, a lower-than-standard tax rate is available, either as a result of a double tax treaty in place between the UK and the investment country (e.g. Poland, Canada, Italy, Sweden) or based on 
favourable domestic legislation (e.g. Australia, Czech Republic, Singapore). Where this is the case, relief may be granted at source based on documentation already on file (e.g. USA, Belgium, Australia, 
Finland, France and Norway), or ex post via reclaim forms submitted to the local tax authorities (e.g. Austria, Denmark, Germany, Netherlands, Switzerland and Spain).

The net effect of all the above is that the estimated total value of the Fund's promised retirement benefits as at 31 March 2021 is therefore £29,968.5 million.

Page 67



Note P8 - Contributions receivable

Contributions receivable by type

From employers
170.3            Contributions 742.1                    
42.6              Past service deficit 303.9                    
-                Augmented membership -                       

19.2              Additional cost of early retirement 10.9                      
232.1            1,056.9                 

From members
120.5            Basic contributions 125.3                    

0.6                Additional contributions 0.5                        
121.1            125.8                    

353.2            Total contributions 1,182.7                 

Contributions receivable by type of employer

9.1                Administering authority 51.0                      
300.4            Other scheduled employers 1,087.3                 
43.7              Admitted employers 44.4                      

353.2            Total 1,182.7                 

Note P9 - Transfers in

-                Group transfers -                       
31.2              Individual transfers 22.3                      
31.2              22.3                      

Analysis of transfer value from West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority Pension Fund

263.5            Investments transferred in specie
224.5            Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract

3.9                Cash deposits
0.6                Current assets

(0.8)               Current liabilities
491.7            Total

Note P10 - Other income

Benefits recharged to employers
7.4                Compensatory added years 7.1                        
6.9                Pensions increases 6.8                        

14.3              Total 13.9                      

Note P11 - Benefits payable

Benefits payable by type

Pensions
485.9            Retirement pensions 499.1                    
30.0              Widows’ pensions 33.8                      
1.0                Children’s’ pensions 1.1                        
6.1                Widowers’ pensions 6.7                        
0.2                Ex-spouses' pensions 0.2                        
0.2                Equivalent pension benefits 0.2                        
0.5                Co-habiting partners' pensions 0.3                        
-                Civil Partnership 0.1                        
-                Amounts due to Estate 0.1                        

523.9            Total pensions 541.6                    

Lump sum benefits
100.0            Retiring allowances 87.5                      
13.9              Death grants 17.7                      

113.9            Total lump sum benefits 105.2                    

637.8            Total benefits payable 646.8                    

Benefits payable by type of employer

51.5              Administering authority 50.4                      
507.2            Other scheduled employers 543.2                    
79.1              Admitted employers 53.2                      

637.8            Total 646.8                    

 2019/20  2020/21 
 £m  £m 

 £m  £m 

Total

 2019/20  2020/21 
 £m  £m 

Following the actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2019, some employers chose to pay their full three-year future service and past service deficit contributions in advance as a lump sum in 2020/21.  The 
lump sums paid by the seven councils have been accounted for fully in 2020/21 and are listed in the table in note 6.  The additional contributions above represent the purchase of added membership or 
additional benefits under the pension scheme.

 2019/20  2020/21 
 £m  £m 

 2019/20  2020/21 

1 April 2019
 £m 

 2019/20  2020/21 
 £m  £m 

 2019/20  2020/21 
 £m  £m 

Page 68



Note P12 - Payments to and on account of leavers

37.6              29.2                      
2.4                1.8                        
-                -                       
-                Bulk pension transfer increases -                       

40.0              31.0                      

Note P13 - Management expenses

6.0                Administrative costs 6.3                        
82.6              100.8                    
2.9                Oversight and governance costs 3.1                        

91.5              Total 110.2                    

Note P13 i) - Investment management expenses

Total  Management 
fees 

 Performance 
related fees 

 Transaction 
costs 

 £m  £m  £m  £m 
Equities 11.9 7.9 - 4.0 
Fixed interest 0.4 0.4 - - 
Pooled investments * 24.2 9.6 - 14.6 
Pooled property investments 8.2 7.2 (0.8) 1.8 
Private equity 39.5 23.9 15.6 - 
Property 2.5 1.5 - 1.0 
Infrastructure 6.0 4.1 0.7 1.2 
Absolute return 6.7 6.6 0.1 - 
Derivatives 0.7 0.7 - 
Cash, cash equivalents & fx contracts 0.3 0.3 - 

100.4 62.2 15.6 22.6 
Custody fees 0.4 
Total 100.8 
* Includes £4.8m charged to the Pension Fund by LGPS Central Limited regional asset pool (2019/20: £4.0m).

Total  Management 
fees 

 Performance 
related fees 

 Transaction 
costs 

 £m  £m  £m  £m 
Equities 8.0 6.0 - 2.0 
Fixed interest 0.5 0.5 - - 
Pooled investments 23.1 12.0 1.9 9.2 
Pooled property investments 3.4 2.7 0.6 0.1 
Private equity 32.5 21.9 9.8 0.8 
Property 2.4 1.5 - 0.9 
Infrastructure 3.7 4.0 (0.4) 0.1 
Absolute return 8.0 6.8 0.1 1.1 
Derivatives 0.4 0.4 - - 
Cash, cash equivalents & fx contracts 0.3 0.3 - - 

82.3 56.1 12.0 14.2 
Custody fees 0.3 
Total 82.6 

 2019/20  2020/21 

 2019/20  2020/21 

Total

 £m  £m 
Individual transfers
Refunds of contributions
State scheme premiums

 £m  £m 

 2020/21 

 2019/20 

Included in administrative costs of £6.3m above are external audit fees of £68,980 (2019/20: £72,930).  The charge for 2020/21 comprises the current year audit fee of £61,685 and a provision of £7,295 for 
additional costs arising from the impact of the Covid 19 Pandemic on Grant Thornton's work in completing the 2019/20 audit.

The guidance requires that external investment management fees that are deducted from asset values (rather than invoiced and paid directly) are shown gross. Wherever possible, the figures are based 
on actual costs disclosed by the manager; where actual costs were not available, best estimates have been made using other available information.

Investment management expenses, comprising:

Page 69



Note P14 - Investment Income

Dividends and Interest
Bonds

7.1                UK private sector – quoted 7.9                        
Equities

0.9                UK private sector – quoted -                       
39.9              Overseas 23.2                      

Pooled Investment Vehicles
74.1              UK private sector – quoted 1.0                        
6.8                Overseas equities 4.7                        
9.4                Interest on cash deposits 1.7                        
0.7                Stocklending 0.8                        
2.1                Other investment income 5.6                        

141.0            Total dividends and interest 44.9                      

47.4              Property management income 48.5                      
(10.2)             Property management expenses (8.6)                      
37.2              Total property management 39.9                      

178.2            Total investment income 84.8                      

Stocklending

Other investment income

As at 31 March 2021, £482.6 million of stock was on loan to an agreed list of approved borrowers through the Fund’s custodian in its capacity as agent lender (31 March 2020: £384.3 million). The loans 
were covered by non-cash collateral in the form of equities, gilts, DBVs and G10 sovereign debt totalling £521 million and giving a margin of 8.0% (31 March 2020, £416 million, margin of 8.2%).

Other investment income includes the following; Class action income, liquidation proceeds and tax refunds.

During the period the stock is on loan, the voting rights on the loaned stock pass to the borrower. 

Collateral is marked to market, adjusted daily and held by a third party agent on behalf of the Fund. Net income from stocklending amounted to £0.8 million during the year (2019/20: £0.7 million). The 
Fund retains its economic interest in stocks on loan and their value is included in the Fund valuation.  There is however, an obligation to return collateral to the borrowers and its value is therefore 
excluded from the Fund valuation. The securities lending programme is indemnified to give the Fund further protection against losses.

 2019/20 

There are no liabilities associated with the loaned assets.

 2020/21 
 £m  £m 

Page 70



Note P15 - Net investment assets

Bonds
186.6            222.4                    
307.4            Overseas Sovereign - Index Linked 286.0                    
494.0            508.4                    

UK equities
26.9              Quoted 25.0                      
2.0                Unquoted 2.0                        

28.9              27.0                      
Overseas equities

61.9              Quoted 181.1                    
1,346.9         Quoted – segregated (external) 2,386.4                 
1,408.8         2,567.5                 

Pooled investment vehicles
Managed funds

632.5            UK fixed interest 659.8                    
1,051.4         Other fixed interest 1,876.7                 

971.0            UK quoted, index linked 961.9                    
856.0            UK quoted equities (pooled assets) 1,081.7                 

4,425.9         6,093.1                 
772.8            Infrastructure 819.7                    

1,203.3         Private equity 1,315.5                 
464.9            UK absolute returns 356.6                    
63.3              Overseas absolute returns 54.1                      
45.3              Multi asset credit -                       
79.7              UK property 188.3                    

156.0            Overseas property 122.0                    

Unit trusts
40.4              UK quoted equities -                       

107.3            UK property 111.4                    
-                Overseas equities -                       
0.1                Overseas property -                       

10,869.9        13,640.8               
Property

918.9            UK freehold 1,014.0                 
46.2              UK leasehold* -                       

965.1            1,014.0                 

Derivative contracts
11.7              Futures -                       
-                Forward currency contracts 3.1                        

11.7              3.1                        

Foreign currency holdings
0.4                Australian dollars 0.5                        
0.6                Canadian Dollars 0.6                        
1.3                Czech Koruna 1.3                        
0.5                Danish Kroner 0.6                        

113.3            Euro 73.6                      
135.7            Hong Kong Dollars 31.3                      

0.6                Hungarian Forints 0.6                        
5.9                Japanese Yen 5.2                        
1.9                Mexican Peso 2.2                        
0.5                New Zealand Dollars 0.5                        
0.4                Norwegian Kroner 0.5                        
0.5                Polish Zloty 0.5                        
1.3                Singapore Dollars 1.4                        
2.9                Swedish Kroner 2.9                        
5.2                Swiss Francs 4.8                        
1.0                Turkish Lira 0.7                        

310.5            United States Dollars 272.4                    
582.5            399.6                    

Cash deposits
456.7            UK 491.0                    
112.9            US 7.2                        
569.6            498.2                    

Other investments
75.8              Broker balances 19.2                      
7.0                7.5                        

82.8              26.7                      

15,013.3        18,685.3               

Investment liabilities

Derivative contracts
(76.8)             Forward currency contracts -                       

-                Futures (2.3)                      
(76.8)             (2.3)                      

Other liabilities
-                Amounts payable for purchases -                       
-                -                       

(76.8)             Total investment liabilities (2.3)                      

14,936.5        Net investment assets 18,683.0               
* All leasehold properties are held on long leases

Overseas quoted equities (pooled assets)

UK companies – segregated (external)

Segregated accounts are held separately from the main account by the global custodian and contain assets managed by some of the Fund's external managers.

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
 £m  £m 

Outstanding dividend entitlement and recoverable with-holding tax

Total investment assets

Page 71



Market value  % of total 
market value Market value  % of total market 

value 
 £m %  £m %

Security

1,835.1                                               12.3              2,532.6          13.6                      
1,382.4                                               9.3                1,862.7          10.0                      

850.9                                                 5.7                1,075.4          5.8                        
715.3                                                 4.8                1,057.0          5.7                        
971.0                                                 6.5                961.9             5.1                        

Market value  % of total 
market value 

Market value  % of total market 
value 

 £m %  £m %
Investments managed by LGPS Central Limited regional asset pool:

4,366.3                                               29.2              6,010.1          32.2                      
850.9                                                 5.7                1,075.4          5.8                        

-                                                     -                584.8             3.1                        
101.3                                                 0.7                198.9             1.1                        

5,318.5                                               35.6              7,869.2          42.1                      

Investments managed outside of LGPS Central Limited regional asset pool:

2,142.9                                               14.3              In-house 2,120.7          11.4                      
152.9                                                 1.0                Managers: UK quoted 117.7             0.6                        

1,042.1                                               7.0                Managers: emerging markets 1,448.3          7.8                        
364.4                                                 2.4                Managers: global equities 1,021.1          5.5                        

3,148.9                                               21.1              Managers: fixed interest 3,422.0          18.3                      
235.7                                                 1.6                Managers: indirect property 310.3             1.7                        
772.8                                                 5.2                Managers: infrastructure funds 819.7             4.4                        
573.5                                                 3.8                Managers: absolute return 410.7             2.2                        

1,102.0                                               7.4                Managers: private equity 1,116.6          6.0                        
9,535.2                                               63.8              10,787.1        57.7                      

82.8                                                   26.7               
14,936.5                                             Net investment assets 18,683.0        

ANALYSIS OF DERIVATIVES

Objectives and policies for holding derivatives

a) Futures 

b) Forward foreign currency 

c) Open forward currency contracts

Settlement Currency Local Currency Local Asset Liability 
Bought value Sold value value value

m m £m £m
One to six months GBP 390.7 EUR -                       

-                       
-                       

Prior year comparative
(76.8)                     
(76.8)                     

d) Open exchange traded futures contracts

Type Expires Economic Market value Economic Market value
 exposure 31 March 2020 exposure 31 March 2021

£m £m £m £m

UK equity 71.3 (0.4)                      
Overseas equity 469.2 (0.1)                      
UK bond 158.3 (1.8)                      
Total assets 11.7 (2.3)                      

31 March 2021

3.1

Authorised Contractual Schemes (ACS) - Fixed interest

In 2018/19, the Fund made a decision to transition assets out of an internal global equity portfolio and into a new sustainable global equities mandate.  Recognising that there would be some lead time in 
implementing this strategy, as and when the existing portfolio was realised, proceeds were invested in global equity futures pending transition to the sustainables mandate.  During 2020/21, the Fund 
made a significant transition into the sustainables mandate and has reduced its exposure to futures accordingly.  
The Fund has also invested in gilt futures to help align the weighting in this area with its strategic target and as a tool for risk management. The economic exposure represents the notional value of stock 
purchased under futures contracts and is therefore subject to market movements.

148.3

Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2020

Outstanding dividend entitlement and recoverable with-holding tax

3.1

31 March 2020

Authorised Contractual Schemes (ACS) - global equities
Authorised Contractual Schemes (ACS) - UK equities

Non ACS private equity

The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the Fund.  All of these companies are registered in the UK. 

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

Legal & General - All Stocks Index-Linked Gilts Fund

The proportion of the market value of investment assets managed in the regional asset pool and by each external manager at the year-end is set out below. 

Assets

454.4

-
Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2020

Under one year 6.6 55.5

The Fund utilises derivative instruments in line with investment policy and investment management agreements in place with third party investment managers.

LGPS Central All World Equity Climate Multi Factor Fund
LGPS Central Global Ex UK Passive Equity Fund

LGPS Central UK Passive Equity Fund
LGPS Central Global Equity Active Multi-Manager Fund

To reduce the volatility associated with fluctuating currency rates, the Fund has a passive currency programme in place. The Fund commenced its currency hedging programme in September 2017 
following approval by Committee to amend the Strategic Investment Allocation Benchmark to reflect the passive currency management programme. The Fund's hedging programme aims to protect 
returns in sterling terms and reduce currency risk. The neutral hedge ratio is considered to be 50% based on the strategic weight of each region but actual hedge ratios applied will vary from time to time 
with a rebalancing taking place on a monthly basis to reflect changing market values.

3.1

-

Open forward currency contracts at 31 March 2021
Net forward currency contracts at 31 March 2021

2.5
2.6 141.4Under one year

Under one year

Page 72



Note P16 - Investment market value movements analysis

Value as at 31 
March 2020

 Purchases at 
cost and 
derivative 
payments 

 Sales 
proceeds and 

derivative 
receipts 

 Investment 
Management 

Fees 
Deducted at 

Source 

 Change in 
Market Value 

Value as at 31 
March 2021

 £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m 
Bonds 494.0 28.6 (14.2) 508.4 
UK equities 28.9 (1.9) 27.0 
Overseas equities 1,408.8 450.0 708.7 2,567.5 
Pooled investment vehicles 10,869.9 1,314.9 (839.0) (80.6) 2,375.6 13,640.8 
Property 965.1 63.0 (18.3) - 4.2 1,014.0 

13,766.7 1,856.5 (857.3) (80.6) 3,072.4 17,757.7 

Derivative contracts
Futures 11.7 - (23.1) - 9.1 (2.3)
Forward foreign exchange (76.8) - 37.6 - 42.3 3.1 

13,701.6 1,856.5 (842.8) (80.6) 3,123.8 17,758.5 

Broker balances 75.8 19.2 
Outstanding dividend entitlement and recoverable With-holding tax 7.0 7.5 
Foreign currency holdings 582.5 399.6 
Cash deposits 569.6 498.2 
Total Investments 14,936.5 18,683.0 

FORMULA

The change in the value of investments during 2019/20 is set out below:

Value as at 31 March 2019
Transfer of 
assets from 
WMITA fund

 Purchases at 
cost and 
derivative 
payments 

 Sales 
proceeds and 

derivative 
receipts 

 Investment 
management 

fees deducted 
at source 

 Change in 
market value 

 Value as at 31 
March 2020 

 £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  £m 
Bonds 339.8                                                         -                     99.6               -                 -                 54.6               494.0                    
UK equities 40.0                                                           -                     -                 (11.5)              -                 0.4                 28.9                      
Overseas equities 1,301.3                                                      -                     353.3             (0.4)                -                 (245.4)            1,408.8                 
Pooled investment vehicles 11,481.8                                                    263.5                 8,413.8          (8,684.6)         (66.9)              (537.7)            10,869.9               
Property 980.7                                                         -                     18.5               (1.9)                -                 (32.2)              965.1                    

14,143.6                                                    263.5                 8,885.2          (8,698.4)         (66.9)              (760.3)            13,766.7               

Derivative contracts
Futures 20.7                                                           -                     141.4             (200.7)            -                 50.3               11.7                      
Forward foreign exchange (1.8)                                                           -                     282.5             (322.4)            -                 (35.1)              (76.8)                     

14,162.5                                                    263.5                 9,309.1          (9,221.5)         (66.9)              (745.1)            13,701.6               

Broker balances 51.8                                                           75.8                      
Outstanding dividend entitlement and recoverable with-  0.5                                                            7.0                        
Amounts payable for purchases of investments (152.1)                                                        -                       
Foreign currency holdings 690.6                                                         582.5                    
Cash deposits 821.8                                                         3.9                     569.6                    
Total investments 15,575.1                                                    267.4                 14,936.5               

The change in market value of investments comprises both increases and decreases in the market value of investments held at any time during the year and profits and losses realised on the sales of 
investments during the year.

Purchases also include transfers in of investments, take-over of shares etc. and invested income.  Sales proceeds include all receipts from sales of investments, transfers out of investments, take-over 
proceeds etc. and reductions in cash deposits including profits or losses realised on the sale.  

Transaction costs are included in the cost of purchases and sale proceeds. Transaction costs include costs charged directly to the Fund such as fees, commissions, stamp duty and other fees. 
Transaction costs during the year amounted to £22.6 million (2019/20: £14.2 million). In addition to the transaction costs disclosed below, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread of 
investments within pooled investment vehicles. The amount of indirect costs is not separately provided to the Fund.

The volatility of investment markets is an ever-present and longstanding feature of pension fund management and valuations may vary, either up or down, throughout each day when exchanges are 
open.

Page 73



 

980.7            965.1                    
18.5              63.0                      
(1.9)               (18.3)                     

(32.2)             4.2                        
965.1            1,014.0                 

The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Fund are as follows:

43,025 43,892
156,653 152,740
174,138 179,918
373,816 376,550

Asset type

Valuation level  Key sensitivity 

Market quoted investments 1
n/a

Quoted bonds 1
n/a

Futures 1
n/a

Unquoted bonds 2 n/a

Pooled Investment vehicles- unit trusts and property funds 2
n/a

Forward foreign exchange derivatives 2
n/a

Freehold and leasehold properties 3

Significant changes in 
rental growth, 
vacancy levels or 
discount rate could 
affect valuations

3

Could be affected by 
material events 
occurring between 
the date of the 
financial statements 
provided and the 
Fund's own reporting 
date, by changes to 
expected cashflows, 
and by any 
differences between 
audited and 
unaudited accounts. 

3

Adjustments to 
discount rate and life 
expectancy.

Between one and five years

16 i) Property Holdings

 £000 

Closing balance

There are no restrictions on the realisability of the property or the remittance of income or proceeds on disposal and the Fund is not under any contractual obligation to purchase, construct or develop any 
of these properties nor does it have any responsibility for any repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

Existing lease terms and rentals, 
independent market research, 
tenant covenant strength, 
estimated vacancy levels, 
estimated rental growth, discount 
rate.

Key underlying inputs for the 
valuation are the discount rate 
and life expectancy.   Discount 
rate has been set at 0.43% with 
reference to the 11 year point of 
the Bank of England nominal gilt 
yield curve, consistent with the 
2019 valuation of the WMITA 
Fund.

 Basis of valuation 

The receivables above have been reduced by a credit loss allowance of 1% per annum reflecting the Fund's expected loss from late or non-recovery of rents from tenants.  This deduction is based on 
advice from the Fund's property letting agents.

 £000 

The Fund's investment property portfolio comprises a number of directly owned properties which are leased commercially to various tenants.  Details of these directly owned properties are as follows:

2019/20 2020/21
 £m  £m 

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Net change in market value

Value is based on the latest 
investor reports and financial 
statements provided by the fund 
managers of the underlying funds, 
adjusted for transactions arising 
after the date of such reports.

Earnings before interest, tax, 
depreciation and amortisation 
(EBITDA) multiple, revenue 
multiple, discount for lack of 
marketability.

Average of broker prices.

n/a
Market bid price based on current 
yields.

Evaluated price feeds.

Published exchange prices at 31 
March 2021.

Published bid market price ruling 
on 31 March 2021.

Total future lease payments due under existing contracts

Net asset value (NAV) based 
pricing set on a forward pricing 
basis.

Unquoted equity (includes Private Equity, Infrastructure and Absolute Return/Diversified Growth Funds)

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

PIV are stated at the bid price 
quoted or the closing single 
market prices.

The basis of the valuation of each class of investment assets is detailed below. There has not been any change in the valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair 
value techniques which represent the highest and best price available at the reporting date.

 Observable and 
unobservable inputs 

n/a

Market forward exchange rates at 
31 March 2021.

Exchange rate risk.

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in

Note P17 - Fair value - basis of valuation

Within one year

Later than five years

n/a

The impact of COVID-19 has presented new challenges for valuation of illiquid assets. In their valuation report for the quarter to 31 March 2020, the independent property valuation agents were unable to 
rely fully on previous market experience to inform opinions on properties and their valuations were therefore reported on the basis of 'material valuation uncertainty'.   There is no such valuation 
uncertainty clause in connection with the property valuation report as at 31 March 2021. 

Provided by the Fund's Actuary 
based on a roll-forward of the 
value placed on the buy-in as part 
of the WMITA Fund 2019 triennial 
actuarial valuation, allowing for 
estimated level pensions paid and 
the change in the discount rate 
used to value the buy-in.

Valued at fair value at the year-
end using the investment 
valuation reports of Savills Plc. 
One third of the commercial 
property portfolio is valued fully 
in March each year, with the 
remaining two thirds being a 
'desktop' valuation. Agricultural 
properties are valued by Browns 
at the year end.

Page 74



Level 3 assets Valuation range  Valuation 
Decrease 

% (+/-)  £m 

11.8 1,014.0 894.1
31.7 1,269.8 867.0
13.2 819.8 711.1
14.1 410.8 353.0

Unit Trusts - UK Property 11.8 140.5 123.9
Fixed Interest 9.8 65.8 59.4
Total 3,720.7 3,008.5

Level 3 assets Valuation range  Valuation 
Decrease 

% (+/-)  £m 

11.7 965.1 852.2
26.2 1,203.3 888.0
13.8 772.8 666.2
12.8 528.2 460.6

Unit Trusts - UK Property 11.7 107.3 94.7
Total 3,576.7 2,961.7

Change in assumptions - year ended 31 March 2021 Adjustment  Valuation 
Decrease 

 £m 

(-/+) 0.5% 200.0 190.4
(+/-) 1 year 200.0 186.2

Change in assumptions - year ended 31 March 2020 Adjustment  Valuation 
Decrease 

 £m 

(-/+) 0.5% 229.4 218.5
(+/-) 1 year 229.4 215.2

The values of the investments in hedge funds are based on the net asset value provided by the fund manager. Fund valuations are obtained through external experts with assurance provided via the 
audit opinion. The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which fair value is observable.

Quoted 
market price

 Using 
observable 

inputs 

 With 
significant 

unobservable 
inputs  Total 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
 £m  £m  £m  £m 

9,753.4 4,284.4 2,706.7 16,744.5 
1,014.0 1,014.0 

- 
9,753.4 4,284.4 3,720.7 17,758.5 

200.0 200.0 
Net financial assets 9,753.4 4,284.4 3,920.7 17,958.5 

Quoted 
market price

 Using 
observable 

inputs 

 With 
significant 

unobservable 
inputs  Total 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
 £m  £m  £m  £m 

6,705.0 3,496.7 2,611.6 12,813.3 
965.1 965.1 

- - - - 
(76.8) (76.8)

6,705.0 3,419.9 3,576.7 13,701.6 
229.4 229.4 

Net financial assets 6,705.0 3,419.9 3,806.1 13,931.0 

Infrastructure

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Level 2
Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation 
techniques are used to determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data.

879.4
Absolute Return/Diversified Growth 595.8

119.9
4,191.7

17 i) Fair value hierarchy
The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels according to the quality and reliability of information used to determine fair values. Criteria utilised in the instrument 
classifications are detailed below:

Non- financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Level 3
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would 
include unquoted equity investments and hedge fund of funds, which are valued using various valuation techniques that require significant judgement in the determining appropriate assumptions.

928.3

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

209.9

4,433.0

Freehold and Leasehold Property 1,078.0
Private Equity 1,518.6
Infrastructure

Level 1
Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted 
equities, quoted fixed interest securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts. Listed investments are shown at bid prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market quotation of 
the relevant stock exchange.

Absolute Return/Diversified Growth

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Non- financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

 Valuation Increase 

 £m 

 Valuation at 31 March 2021 

 £m 

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3
The table below details the Fund's review of financial information as provided by independent advisors. The valuation methods detailed above are likely to be accurate to within the ranges and,as set out 
below, the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in at fair value through profit and loss

Value at 31 March 2020

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in at fair value through profit and loss

Value at 31 March 2021

Adjustment to discount rate

1,672.6

Financial assets

468.6
157.2
72.3

 Valuation at 31 March 2020  Valuation Increase 

 £m  £m 

Adjustment to discount rate 240.8
Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions 244.5

 Valuation at 31 March 2020  Valuation Increase 

The values of the investments in private equity, infrastructure and absolute return/diversified growth funds are based on the latest investor reports and financial statements provided by the fund managers 
of the underlying funds.  Valuations are undertaken quarterly and an adjustment is made to roll forward the latest available valuation to 31 March as appropriate.

1,134.0

The key underlying inputs for the annuity insurance buy-in level 3 valuation are the discount rate and life expectancy.  The impact of changes as calculated by the Fund's Actuary is shown below:

 Valuation at 31 March 2021  Valuation Increase 

 £m  £m 

Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions 214.6

Freehold and Leasehold Property

 £m  £m 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Private Equity

Page 75



Period 2019/20

Market value 
1 April 2019 

£m

Transfers into level 3                            
£m

Transfers out of 
level 3             

£m

Purchases 
during the 

year            
£m

Sales during 
the year       

£m

Unrealised 
gains / losses 

£m

Realised 
gains/losses 

£m

Market value 31 
March 2020            

£m

 
Freehold and Leasehold Property 965.1            -                                                            -                     -                 -                 48.9               -                 1,014.0
Private Equity 1,203.3         3.5 (29.5)                  129.4 (241.1)            156.3             47.9 1,269.8
Infrastructure 772.8            -                                                            -                     146.6 (75.1)              (35.3)              10.8 819.8
Absolute Return/Diversified Growth 528.2            -                                                            -                     60.8 (199.4)            10.8               10.4 410.8
Unit Trusts - UK Property 107.3            -                                                            -                     40.7               (3.0)                (4.5)                -                 140.5
Bonds -                -                                                            -                     70.7               (1.0)                (3.9)                -                 65.8
Total 3,576.7         3.5                                                            (29.5)                  448.2             (519.6)            172.3             69.1               3,720.7                 

                  -                       229.4 

             224.5                          -   

Actuarial revaluation of insurance contract:
2.8                Interest on buy-in 1.0                        
5.2                Change in demographic assumptions (3.3)                      

18.1              Change in actuarial assumptions (11.8)                     
(5.4)               Actuarial experience -                       
20.7              (14.1)                     

(15.8)             Level pensions paid by insurer (15.3)                     

229.4            200.0                    

          1,146.6 948.8                    
              85.4 Property 58.5                      

1,232.0         1,007.3                 

-                       
              11.6 Early retirement costs 6.4                        
                2.9 3.8                        
              14.5 Total 10.2                      

Receivables and prepayments
Contributions Receivable

12.8              - Employers' future service 13.3                      
6.0                - Employers' past service deficit 4.9                        

10.5              - Members 10.0                      
103.1            Other Receivables 10.3                      
132.4            Total Receivables and Prepayments 38.5                      

-                Cash 1.9                        
132.4            Total Current Assets 40.4                      

 £m 

Note P20 - Current Assets

The Fund has agreed for certain employers to defer payment of amounts due to meet early retirement costs and £6.4m is due after the following financial year (2019/20: £11.6m). The instalments due in 
20/21 are reported in Current Assets.

Note P19 - Long term debtors

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

 £m  £m 

Investment commitments at the end of the financial year in respect of future payments were:

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
 £m 

 £m 

 £m 

These amounts relate to outstanding commitments due on funds held in the private equity, fixed interest, absolute return and alternative investment portfolios.

Non-publicly quoted equities and infrastructure

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract value at end of year

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract value transferred in 1 April 2019

Reimbursement of lifetime tax allowances

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

1 April 2019 31 March 2020
 £m  £m 

Note P18 - Investment capital commitments

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract value at start of year

The change in demographic assumptions results from updating mortality assumptions to use the latest CMI_2020 Model.  The change in actuarial assumptions is a result of increasing the discount rate 
from 0.43% at 31 March 2020 to 1.02% at 31 March 2021 consistent with the rate used in the 2019 valuation of the former WMITA Fund. 

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
 £m  £m 

The transfer of assets from the former WMITA Fund included a bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract with Prudential Retirement Income Limited.  The insurance cover provides that the insurer 
underwrites the risk for meeting the liabilities of a specified group of pensioners on the WMITA pensions payroll as at 11 August 2011.  The insurance provider will pay the cost of the monthly pension 
payments for this group whilst they or their dependants are entitled to a pension.

Bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract

Note 17 ii) - Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3

Page 76



               (3.7) (4.3)                      
               (5.2) Receipts in advance (0.7)                      
             (15.8) (15.5)                     
             (24.7) Total (20.5)                     

 Utmost Life  Prudential  Utmost Life   Prudential * 
 £m  £m  £m  £m 

                                                     1.6               37.6 Opening value of the fund                  1.8                       37.6 
                                                     0.1                 0.6                    -                            -   
                                                     0.3                 6.0 Income                  0.1                         6.0 
                                                    (0.1)                (5.6) Expenditure                 (0.2)                        (6.6)
                                                    (0.1)                (1.1) Change in market value                    -                           0.2 
                                                     1.8               37.6 Closing value of the fund                  1.7                       37.2 

Note P23 Financial instruments

Financial assets
(677.8) Fair value through profit and loss 3,110.5 

Financial liabilities
(35.1) Fair value through profit and loss 9.1 

(712.9) Total 3,119.6 

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial instruments by category. No financial instruments were reclassified during the accounting period.

Fair value through profit and loss 
£m

Assets at 
amortised 
cost £m

Financial liabilities at amortised cost £m
Fair value 
through profit 
and loss £m

Assets at 
amortised 
cost £m

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 
cost £m

Financial assets 
494.0 Bonds 508.4
28.9 UK equities 27.0

1,408.8
Overseas 
equities 2,567.5

10,869.9

Pooled 
investment 
vehicles 13,640.8

11.7

Derivative 
contracts 3.1

229.4
Bulk annuity 
Insurance buy-in 200.0

1,152.1 Cash 899.7             

82.8

Other investment 
balances

26.7               
146.9 Debtors 48.7               

13,042.7 1,381.8 16,946.8 975.1
Financial liabilities

(76.8)                                                  
Derivative 
contracts (2.3)                

-                                                            
Other investment 
balances - 

(24.7) Creditors (20.5)
12,965.9 1,381.8 (24.7)                                                         16,944.5 975.1             (20.5)

Other payables

Net gains and losses on financial instruments

Note P21 - Current liabilities

31 March 2020

Payables and receipts In advance
Pensions and lump sum benefits

Note P22 - Additional voluntary contributions

31 March 2021
 £m  £m 

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

* At the time of publishing this draft Statement of Accounts in June 2021, Prudential Assurance Company was experiencing delays resulting from its ongoing migration to a new administration platform 
and was not able to provide annual AVC financial statements for 2020/21 . The table above therefore contains estimates for movements in Prudential AVCs for the year to 31 March 2021 which will be 
revised as appropriate when the actual amounts are available. 

WMITA Fund AVC balances consolidated following merger

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

14,323.0 17,899.1 

 £m  £m 

As well as joining the Fund, scheme members can pay into an additional voluntary contribution (AVC) scheme run by two AVC providers.  Contributions are paid directly from scheme members to the AVC 
providers. 

The contributions are not included within the Fund accounts, in line with regulation 4 (2) (b) of the Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.  The table below shows 
the activity for each AVC provider in the year.

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

Classification of financial instruments  

Page 77



The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including:

Money market funds
HSBC GBP Liquidity Fund Class H Aaa-mf              191.1                     106.5 
HSBC USD Liquidity Fund Class H Aaa-mf              112.9                         7.2 
LGIM GBP Liquidity Fund AAAmmf              132.8                     134.7 
Insight GBP Liquidity Fund AAAmmf                26.9                     142.5 
Invesco GBP Liquidity Fund AAAmmf                  2.9                         2.3 

Custody and deposit accounts
CBRE Client Account West Midlands Met Authority                13.1                       21.1 
HSBC GBP Cash AA-                89.9                       83.9 
HSBC Non-GBP Cash AA-              582.5                     399.6 
Total 1,152.1          897.8                    
* Moody's rating used if no Fitch rating available

Valuation risk - the possibility that the actual value realised upon the sale of an illiquid asset differs from the valuation placed on it based on a valuer’s opinion.

Counterparty risk

In deciding to effect any transaction for the Fund, steps are taken to ensure that the respective counterparty is suitable and reliable, that the transaction is in line with the Fund’s strategy and that the 
terms and circumstances of the transaction are the best available in the relevant market at the time. Comprehensive due diligence processes are in place to ensure that any potential counterparty is 
authorised and regulated, competent to deal in investments of the type and size contemplated and has appropriate administration arrangements with regard to independent auditors, robust administration 
and accounting, relevant legal structure and experienced staff. 

Credit rating sensitivity analysis 

 £m  £m 
Long term 

Fitch rating*

Counterparty and credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Fund.

Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Fund might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments as they fall due.

The Fund’s credit risk  is largely associated with its Fixed Income investments. This risk stems from third parties potentially failing to meet interest payments or failing to return the Fund’s principal at the 
end of the investment period. There is also credit/counterparty risk associated with derivative investments within the Fund’s Alternatives investments and those used to hedge certain foreign currency 
exposures as well as with rental income earned within the Fund's property portfolios. 

The Fund’s surplus cash may be placed with an approved financial institution on a short-term basis and in accordance with the cash management policy and restrictions set out in the Treasury policy. 
The policy specifies the cash deposit limit with each approved counterparty as determined by a comprehensive scoring exercise undertaken by Fund officers using specialist rating and market research 
data which is reviewed on a regular basis. Due diligence is conducted on potential money market funds with criteria such as AAA rating, same day access and minimum assets under management being 
prerequisite. 

Th  t bl  b l  tli  th  dit ti  iti it  f th  F d’   k t d b k d it h ldi  b  l t  Fit h ti   t 31 M h 2021

Note P24 - The nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Risk management

Investment risk - the possibility that the Fund will not receive the expected returns.

Currency risk - the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk - the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Other price risk - the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest 
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors 
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The main investment objective of the Fund is to optimise return whilst managing market risk exposure within an acceptable tolerance. This is achieved by investing assets across a diversified portfolio. The 
Fund also manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet forecasted cash flows.   

the possibility that financial loss might arise as a result of market movements. Currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk are types of 
market risk:

Market risk - 

Investment risk

In order to achieve its statutory obligations to pay pensions, the Fund invests its assets, including employer and employee contributions, in a way that allows it to meet its liabilities as they fall due for 
payment. It does this by investing with regard to liabilities through the triennial actuarial valuation followed by an appropriate asset allocation which is monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure it remains 
appropriate. 

Fund/Account  Value at 31 March 2020  Value at 31 March 2021 

Credit risk

Page 78



Market risk - currency risk 

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

Asset value 
as at 31 

March 2021

Potential 
market 

movement
 Value on 
Increase 

 Value on 
Decrease 

£m £m £m
686.1 10,514.6        9,142.4                 
11.3 1,387.8          1,365.2                 
90.7 4,097.5          3,916.1                 
72.4 1,387.9          1,243.1                 
41.7 1,272.1          1,188.7                 
35.6 960.1             888.9                    

Total**** 19,620.0        17,744.4               
* Currency exposures of the overseas equity holdings have been calculated using generic indices. 
** Includes exposure to fixed interest gilts, index-linked gilts, overseas government bonds, US TIPS, corporate bonds, emerging market debt, multi-asset credit and private credit. 
***Includes exposure to absolute return and infrastructure investments. 
****Excludes exposure to futures and forwards.

Asset value 
as at 31 

March 2020

Potential 
market 

movement
 Value on 
Increase 

 Value on 
Decrease 

£m £m £m
455.9 7,323.1          6,411.3                 
14.2 1,215.1          1,186.7                 
67.9 3,262.5          3,126.7                 
71.6 1,274.9          1,131.7                 
43.4 1,344.0          1,257.2                 
60.9 1,295.8          1,174.0                 

Total**** 15,715.4        14,287.6               
* Currency exposures of the overseas equity holdings have been calculated using generic indices. 
** Includes exposure to fixed interest gilts, index-linked gilts, overseas government bonds, US TIPS, corporate bonds, emerging market debt, multi-asset credit and private credit. 
***Includes exposure to absolute return and infrastructure investments. 
****Excludes exposure to futures and forwards.

3,194.6                                   
Property   1,200.9                                   

18,682.2                                 

Fixed Interest**

Liquid Assets 1,234.9                                   
15,001.5                                 

Asset Type

1,300.6                                   

Liquid Assets 924.5                                      

£m
Equities* 6,867.2                                   

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, especially pension payments to its members. The Fund therefore takes steps to ensure that 
it has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments. The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be held forms part of the Fund’s investment strategy and the Fund carries out cash flow 
planning in respect of contributions, benefit payments, investment income and capital calls/distributions on an ongoing basis. 

The risk that the Fund will be unable to raise cash to meet its liabilities is considered low. Due to having cashflow management procedures in place, the Fund is able to invest in illiquid asset classes and 
take advantage of the illiquidity premium found in these investments where appropriate.

Valuation risk

Private Equity

Property   
4,006.8                                   

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on any 
financial instruments not denominated in GBP sterling, the functional currency of the Fund. The Fund holds both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than GBP. The 
table below indicates a measure of the sensitivity of the investment assets and cash balances within each asset class to currency market movements, based on the expected 1-year standard deviations of 
each of the underlying foreign currency exposures within the respective asset classes. 

The calculations behind these potential market movements account for the diversification effects between currencies within each holding. However, the calculations do not account for the Fund’s use of 
foreign currency forwards, which are held to hedge certain currency exposures for the sake of risk reduction. The extent of this hedging activity is subject to change over time.

Asset Type
£m

9,828.5                                   
1,376.5                                   

Equities*

1,315.5                                   
Fixed Interest**

Liquidity risk

Private Equity 1,203.3                                   
Alternatives***

Alternatives***

Valuation risk represents the risk that the actual value realised upon the sale of an illiquid asset differs from the valuation placed on it based on a valuer’s opinion. The valuation of assets, and thus the 
management of valuation risk, is delegated to the Fund's appointed investment managers. 

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, seeks to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements through a ‘fair value hierarchy’, which categorises the inputs used in valuation techniques 
into three levels. Level 1 assets are those for which fair value can be measured via quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (such as those traded on stock exchanges). Level 2 assets require 
inputs other than quoted market prices falling under level 1 for fair value assessment (such as prices quoted in inactive markets, interest rates or credit spreads, for example). Level 3 assets require 
unobservable (non-public) inputs for fair value assessment and in practical terms, are those considered to be the most illiquid and difficult to value.

The majority of the Fund’s underlying investments are in liquid quoted assets, representing minimal valuation risk (falling under level 1 and 2 of IFRS 13’s fair value hierarchy). The Fund has investments 
in Property, Infrastructure and certain other illiquid assets that are classified as level 3 assets with a fair value of £3,720.7m as at 31 March 2021 (2020: £3,576.7m),  which represents 21% of total assets 
(2020: 26%). The guidance of IFRS 13 includes additional disclosures for level 3 measurements that include the reconciliation of opening and closing balances and quantitative information about 
unobservable inputs and assumptions used. Valuation of the Fund’s investments falling under the scope of this guidance is conducted by their respective appointed investment managers. 

During the year to 31 March 2021, the impact of COVID-19 led to valuation challenges regarding certain illiquid assets. On 17 March 2020, the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 
recommended that surveyors use a material valuation uncertainty clause in property valuations due to the unprecedented circumstances caused by the pandemic and the corresponding absence of 
market evidence on which to base judgements. Throughout the year, such clauses applied to fewer and fewer assets as market uncertainty gradually receded and on 9 September 2020, RICS formally 
lifted its recommendation. 

1,230.4                                   

Page 79



+100BPS -100BPS
 £m  £m 

Index-linked Gilts 994.0             (214.7) 214.7 
Gilts* 179.4             (21.3) 21.3 
Gilt Future (1.8) (11.9) 11.9 
Overseas Government Bonds 101.9             (8.1) 8.1 
US TIPS 286.0             (33.3) 33.3 
Corporate Bonds 1,179.6          (80.2) 80.2 
Emerging Market Debt 750.1             (52.0) 52.0 
Mulit-Asset Credit 443.6             (6.5) 6.5 
Private Credit** 65.8               (0.8) 0.8 
Total 3,998.6          (428.8) 428.8 
* The impact of a 100bps increase/decrease has been calculated using the exposure provided by the Future (£148.3m).
** Excludes legacy and immaterial positions (total: £6.3m). 
Note: Durations are as at 31 March 2021. 

+100BPS -100BPS
 £m  £m 

Index-linked Gilts 940.5             (201.0) 201.0 
Gilts 189.9             (24.4) 24.4 
Gilt Future 2.5                 (13.6) 13.6 
Overseas Government Bonds 113.4             (9.5) 9.5 
US TIPS 307.5             (37.3) 37.3 
Corporate Bonds 629.2             (56.6) 56.6 
Emerging Market Debt 609.5             (42.0) 42.0 
Mulit-Asset Credit 348.4             (11.3) 11.3 
Total 3,140.9          (395.7) 395.7 
* The impact of a 100bps increase/decrease has been calculated using the exposure provided by the Future (£157.5m).
** Excludes legacy and immaterial positions (total: £10.6m). 
Note: Durations are as at 31 March 2020. 

Market risk - interest rate risk

 £m 

Asset Type

 £m 

Carrying amount as at 31 
March 2021  Change in year in the net assets 

available to pay benefits 

Asset Type
 Change in year in the net assets 

available to pay benefits 

Carrying amount as at 31 
March 2020

The Fund recognises that movements in interest rates can affect both income to the Fund and the value of the Fund’s assets, both of which affect the value of the assets available to pay benefits. The 
tables below estimate the impact on the Fund’s main Fixed Income exposures of a 100 basis points (bps) interest rate movement, using the duration of the underlying positions in each asset class (which 
have been obtained from the fund managers), to approximate the sensitivity to interest rate movements. This analysis assumes that all other variables (such as exchange rate movements) are constant, 
assessing only the impact of interest rate movements in isolation.

Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis 

Page 80



  
Year Volatility 

of Asset 
Class

 Value on 
increase 

 Value on 
decrease 

£m £m
18.8% 1,387.5          948.3                    
16.3% 10,072.3        7,248.9                 
11.8% 1,538.9          1,214.1                 
4.2% 4,175.1          3,838.5                 

31.7% 1,732.5          898.5                    
13.1% 1,391.6          1,069.2                 

Total Fund *** (See note below) 20,297.9        15,217.5               

**includes exposure to absolute return and infrastructure investments.
***excludes futures, forwards, cash deposits, foreign currency holdings, broker balances and the outstanding dividend entitlement.

% Change
 Value on 
increase 

 Value on 
decrease 

£m £m
18.7% 1,225.6          839.4                    
16.4% 6,791.6          4,877.8                 
11.7% 1,341.4          1,060.4                 
4.7% 3,344.7          3,044.5                 

26.2% 1,518.6          888.0                    
13.9% 1,481.4          1,119.8                 

Total Fund*** (See note below)  15,703.3        11,829.9               

**includes exposure to absolute return and infrastructure investments.
***excludes futures, forwards, cash deposits, foreign currency holdings, broker balances and the outstanding dividend entitlement.

Note P25 - Impairment for bad and doubtful debts

Individual Value
Less than £100 30 1,133
£100 - £500 10 1,494
Over £500 1 751
TOTAL 41 3,378

Individual Value
Less than £100 3  152
£100 - £500 82 16,267
Over £500 7 6,544
TOTAL 92 22,963

Private equity 1,203.3                                   
Alternatives** 1,300.6                                   

13,766.6                                 

*includes exposure to fixed interest gilts, index-linked gilts, overseas government bonds, US TIPS, corporate bonds, emerging market debt, multi-asset credit and private credit.

£m
UK equities 1,032.5                                   
Global equities (ex UK) 5,834.7                                   
Property 1,200.9                                   
Fixed interest* 3,194.6                                   

Alternatives** 1,230.4                                   
17,757.7                                 

*includes exposure to fixed interest gilts, index-linked gilts, overseas government bonds, US TIPS, corporate bonds, emerging market debt, multi-asset credit and private credit.

The total Fund volatility taking into account the expected interactions between the different asset classes shown, based on the underlying volatilities and correlations of the assets, in line with mean 
variance portfolio theory is 12.4%. On this basis, the total value on increase is £19,959.6 million and the total value on decrease is £15,555.7 million. Due to the approach taken to determine the total Fund 
volatility (in which the beneficial impact of diversification is recognised), the monetary impact on the total Fund assets is determined using the total Fund volatility, which is lower than the sum of the 
monetary impact for each asset class.

Asset Type Value as at 31 March 2020

UK equities 1,167.9                                   
Global equities (ex UK) 8,660.6                                   
Property 1,376.5                                   
Fixed interest* 4,006.8                                   
Private equity 1,315.5                                   

Other price risk - sensitivity analysis 

Asset Type Value as at 31 March 2021
£m

The Fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk which arises from investments held by the Fund of which the future price is uncertain. The Fund aims to reduce the exposure to this price risk by 
ensuring appropriate levels of diversification in its asset allocation. The asset allocation is monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure it remains in line with the limits specified in the Fund’s investment 
strategy

Market risk - other price risk

The following additions and write offs of pension payments were reported in this financial year, in line with the Fund’s policy:
Additions analysis 2020/21

Number Total £

Write off analysis 2020/21

Number Total £

The tables below indicate a measure of sensitivity of the returns of each major asset class in which the Fund is invested, based on the 1-year standard deviation of returns within the respective asset 
classes, excluding the effects of interest rate risk and currency risk which are disclosed separately above. The tables also show an estimate of the impact of this potential volatility on asset values.

The Fund’s prudent approach to the collective risks listed above and compliance with best practice in corporate governance ensures that reputational risk is kept to a minimum.

Reputational risk

The total Fund volatility taking into account the expected interactions between the different asset classes shown, based on the underlying volatilities and correlations of the assets, in line with mean 
variance portfolio theory is 12.2%. On this basis, the total value on increase is £15,442.7 million and the total value on decrease is £12,090.0 million. Due to the approach taken to determine the total Fund 
volatility (in which the beneficial impact of diversification is recognised), the monetary impact on the total Fund assets is determined using the total Fund volatility, which is lower than the sum of the 
monetary impact for each asset class.

Page 81



Note P26 - Related parties FORMULA

Pensions Committee

Pensioner: Councillors: K Inston, M Jaspal, R Martin, P Page and J Tildesley.  Trade Union observers: M Cantello and M Clift
Deferred:

 

345
- 

534
Kingswood Trust 17

35,354 Sandwell MBC 0
12,616 University of Wolverhampton 12,672

- West Midlands Combined Authority 11,727

LGPS Central Limited  

Key management personnel

136 143
28 Post-employment benefits 30

164 173

Note P27 - Events after the reporting date

No post balance sheet events have occurred which impact upon the balances and transactions reported for the year. 

The Fund remains alert to potential challenges from ongoing developments in relation to the COVID-19 global health pandemic. None of these developments have impacted the underlying assumptions 
on which the Statement of Accounts is based nor the recognition or measurement of balances and transactions therein.  No adjustments in respect of post balance sheet events have therefore been 
made.

The “McCloud” Court Judgement will have significant impact for all public sector pension schemes.  When reforms were introduced in 2014 and 2015, protections were put in place for older scheme 
members.  In December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that younger members of the Judges and Firefighters Pension schemes were discriminated against because the protections did not apply to them 
also. In July 2020, the Government published a consultation on draft regulations to remove this age discrimination.  The consultation closed on 8 October 2020 and Government is now undertaking a 
review of the responses to finalise a remedy and publish amended Regulations. There is therefore, some uncertainty over the costs of any potential changes that might be required and these cannot at 
this time be calculated and included in the Fund's Statement of Accounts

The Fund has identified the Director of Pensions, West Midlands Pension Fund and the Chief Executive, City of Wolverhampton Council as key management personnel with the authority and 
responsibility to control or exercise significant influence over the financial and reporting decisions of the Fund.  The combined compensation for these officers attributable to West Midlands Pension Fund 
is shown in the table below:

Eight members of the Pensions Committee are also members of the Fund as set out below:

Councillor: S Simkins 

There are six employing bodies of the Fund in which a member of the Committee has declared an interest for 2020/21.  Contributions from each of these employers are set out below:

Each member of the Pensions Committee is required to declare any interests relevant to the matters being discussed at each meeting.

Pensions administration and certain investment functions are performed by the City of Wolverhampton Council and the costs shown in Note P13 above are recharged to the Fund.  Following the actuarial 
valuation as at 31 March 2019, the Council agreed with the Fund to pay all of its employer future service rate contributions for 2020/21 plus its past service deficit contributions for 2020/21, 2021/22 and 
2022/23 by advance lump sum payment of £41.9m on 30 April 2020.  The advance payment is accounted for fully in 2020/21 and with the addition of employee contributions, £49.5 million was receivable 
from the City of Wolverhampton Council for 2020/21 (2019/20: £9.1 million - City of Wolverhampton Council had paid its 2019/20 future service and past service deficit contributions in advance as part of a 
lump sum payment of £57.3m on 30 April 2018).  Balances owed by and to the Council at the year end are shown in Notes P19, P20 and P21.

Contributions receivable 2019/20 Contributions receivable 2020/21

82 
18 

Wolverhampton Homes

£000

LGPS Central Limited has been established to manage investment assets on behalf of nine Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds across the Midlands.  It is jointly owned in equal shares by 
the eight administering authorities participating in the LGPS Central Pool, of which City of Wolverhampton Council, as the administering authority for West Midlands Pension Fund, is one of the 
shareholders.  Each authority has one Class A voting share in LGPS Central Limited. 

The Fund has agreed a number of advisory agreements covering a range of asset classes within the fixed income portfolio and wider illiquid portfolios.  LGPS Central Limited has also provided the Fund 
with execution only services in the management of forward currency hedging positions. The charges in respect of these services totalled £2.112m in 2020/21 (2019/20: £1.539m).  The amount outstanding 
in respect of these services at 31 March 2021 was £0.516m (31 March 2020: £0.477m).

The Pension Fund was invoiced £2.706m in respect of Governance, Operator Running and Product Development costs by LGPS Central Limited for 2020/21 (2019/20: £2.496m).  The amount outstanding 
in respect of these services at 31 March 2021 was £0.643m (31 March 2020: £0.950m).   
                                                                                                                             
LGPS Central Limited has let office space from City of Wolverhampton Council since 1 April 2018 on a sub leasing arrangement.  The rental income and rates receivable by City of Wolverhampton 
Council from LGPS Central Limited in 2020/21 totalled £102,595 (2019/20: £147,469) and the reimbursement of associated utilities and maintenance charges for 2020/21 totalled £16,078 (2019/20: 
£30,695).    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
LGPS Central Limited is an admitted body and employs staff that are active members of the West Midlands Pension Fund.  Normal contributions receivable from LGPS Central Limited for the year to 31 
March 2021 were £518,500 (2019/20: £442,700).     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
City of Wolverhampton Council (via the Pension Fund) has invested £1.315m in LGPS Central Limited class B shares and £0.685m in class C shares in 2017/18 and these are both carried as balances in 
net investment assets at this year end.

5,102

10,412 
147 

5,017 

£000

Heath Park Academy - Central Learning Partnership Trust
9,106 City of Wolverhampton Council

Birmingham City University
Birmingham Museums Trust

Short-term benefits

2019/20 2020/21
 £000  £000 

Page 82



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 
 

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

  
Report Title  Pensions Administration Report from 

1 January to 31 March 2021 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Amy Regler 

Tel 

Email 

Head of Operations 

01902 55 5976 

Amy.Regler@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

Rachel Brothwood 

Tel 

Email 

 

Director of Pensions 

01902 55 1715 

Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

Recommendations for action or decision: 

 

The Pensions Committee is recommended to: 

 

1. Approve the 10 applications for admission from employers into the Fund and note the 

3 cases approved by the Chair.  

 

2. Approve the write-offs detailed in section 13 of this report. 

 

3. Approve the 2021 Administering Authority Policy Statement, confirming the discretions 

policy for the Fund. 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. Performance and workloads of the key pension administration functions. 

 

2. Development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers. 

 

3. The ongoing work to improve efficiency and ensure consistency of processing and 

record keeping. 

 

  

Page 83

Agenda Item No: 9

mailto:Amy.Regler@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
1.0 Purpose 

1.1 To inform Pensions Committee of the routine operational work undertaken by the 

pensions administration service areas during the period 1 January to 31 March 2021.    

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 The Fund provides a pension administration service covering employer, customer and 

member services, data processing, benefit operations, payroll and systems/technical 

support. A report is provided to Committee on a quarterly basis to assist monitoring of 

the activity and performance of these functions during that period.  

 

3.0 Scheme Activity  

  

3.1 Membership Movement – Main Fund 

 

3.1.1 The total number of scheme member records in the Fund at 31 March 2021 stands at 

335,101, with an overall increase since December 2020. The long-term trend over a 12 

year period in membership continues to illustrate a move towards a more mature 

profile whereby, in general, pensioners and deferred memberships continue to rise. 

 

  
  

Membership as at                                   
31 December 2020 

Net Movements 
during the period 

Membership as at                                   
31 March 2021 

Active Members 112,729 915 113,644 

Deferred Members 114,883 -325 114,558 

Pensioner Members 106,283 616 106,899 

Total Members 333,895 1,206 335,101 

 

 

 

 Page 84



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

3.2 Workflow Statistics  

 

3.2.1  The process analysis statistics (Appendix A) show details of overall workflow within 

the Pensions Administration Service during the period 1 January to 31 March 2021. 

During the period covered by this report, 38,776 administrative processes were 

commenced, and 33,364 processes were completed.  

 

3.2.2 As the Fund’s overall membership continues to have an upward trend, the workload 

volumes will also naturally increase. On 31 March 2021 there were 46,630 items of 

work outstanding. This represents an increase of 150 items outstanding compared to 

31 December 2020 (46,480). Of the 46,630 items of work outstanding, 5,546 items 

were pending as a result of information awaited from a third-party e.g. scheme 

members, employers or transferring authorities and 41,084 processes are now either 

proceeding to the next stage of the process or through to final completion. A summary 

of the processes started and completed is detailed in Appendix A. 

 

3.2.3 In response to Scheme changes and increased member activity, the Fund’s 

administration practices have developed and evolved to ensure effective management 

in changing and increasing work volumes. Over the last 5 years the Fund has seen an 

increase in casework under management. During this period the working practices 

have been adapted to incorporate 24 additional processes, this includes, for example, 

processing member requests for deferred retirement quotes and increased member 

tracing which aid retirement planning and record keeping. Overall, additional process 

types have added 20-25% to the total casework.  

 

3.2.4 As illustrated in the chart below, recent years have seen workload peak following 

transition to monthly employer data submissions and targeted data cleansing activity.  

These Fund-led activities have improved member records through earlier receipt of 

leaver notifications and resolution of historic outstanding leaver information. Increased 

member movements, concurrent employment and Scheme change on member 

options to amalgamate records have been key drivers to member-led process 

increases, with an expectation that the higher rate of ongoing activity will persist in the 

absence of further Scheme change. 2020/2021 saw a lower level of activity linked to 

reduced membership changes during COVID-19.    

 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Workload Analysis - April 2017 - April 2021

Outstanding at start of year Processes started in year

Process completed in year % of casework completed in year
Page 85



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

3.2.5 The Fund continues to review the volumes of incoming work and put in place plans to 

monitor and address high volume areas. Opportunities for bulk processing and 

streamlining the management of queries back to employers continue to be explored to 

increase efficiency in processing. 

 

3.2.6 A summary of the key processes completed by volume across benefit operational 

functions e.g. calculating benefits for retirements, pensioner member data changes as 

well as the maintenance of updating membership details is shown in Appendix B. 

 

4.0 Digital Transformation Programme  

 

4.1 The aim of the programme is to support the Fund to transform its administration 

services, using information and technology to drive processing efficiencies and cost 

savings whilst improving the service we provide to our members and responding to 

increasing volumes of benefit processing work.  

 

4.2 Since the March 2021 report to Committee, the programme continues to see some 

progress with the implementation of its key projects. An update on key development 

projects are detailed below: 

 

4.3 Employer Hub and Webtrays 

The platform for exchanging data with our employers is the employer portal, which is 

key to ensuring efficient and secure exchange. The new facility aims to improve the 

reporting functionality, user experience through design, availability of performance 

monitoring information and enable earlier issue resolution. Since December 2020 the 

phased programme to transition employers onto the new system continues with c680 

(c90% of) employers live by the 5 July 2021.  

 

4.4 Alongside the development of the new Employer Hub, the Fund has developed 

functionality to enable queries with data to be raised with employers via their online 

accounts with the process being sent to the employers’ web-tray for action. This 

development supports the flow of information and assists in monitoring queries and 

resolution, providing insight to the development of employer communications and 

coaching material, supporting faster resolution. Initial reporting for the month of April 

highlights that over 200 new queries were raised with 56 different employers. Of these, 

43% had been resolved by the end of May with an average response time of 10.58 

days. The Fund are engaging with employers and will continue to monitor responses 

with a view to reducing queries and response times.  

 

5.0 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 

5.1 The Fund uses a number of KPIs to measure performance when processing items 

such as Transfers In and Out, Retirements and Deferred Retirements.  

 

5.2 During the period the Fund performance fell slightly short of the KPI target for the 

management of death acknowledgements and notification of the benefits payable. 

This is due to high volume of death cases during the previous month, c33% increase 

compared to the same period in 2020. Other KPIs have been achieved across the 

period. 

 Page 86



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

5.3 Despite the challenging year the Fund had a strong KPI performance for the 

2020/2021 year, with two indicators falling slightly short of the 90% target over the 

year, relating to the production of retirement quotes for active and deferred members.  

 

 Notification of Estimated Benefits – The KPI was not achieved in the first 

quarter of the year, due to an increase in the number of notifications received 

from employers the last two weeks in March and the transition of staff to 

homeworking, which saw a reduction in output. An improvement was seen in 

June and the subsequent months.   

 

 Issue of Deferred Retirement Quote Letter - This was impacted by an 

increase in volume of notifications received from employers for active 

retirements in August and September, which resulted in performance below 

target for three months.  

 

5.4 Further information on achievement of target KPIs by process by month over the 

reporting period is included in Appendix C.  

 

6.0  Customer Services 

 

6.1 An overview of our front-line customer contact activity is shown in Appendix D. This 

outlines the variety and volume of support provided by the Fund to address members’ 

pension queries. An indication of the statistics for the previous year are included within 

the charts as a comparative measure. 

  

6.2    The most popular queries to our contact centre remain as follows: 
 Customers following up on an existing Fund process 

 Requests for Pensions Portal support 
 Enquires about accessing pension benefits 
 Request for support with a Fund letter/form 
 Members updating their personal details 

  

6.3 There have been vacancies within the Customer Services Team which have affected 

our call handling performance during the year. Recruitment is underway and expected 

to complete in the coming months. All new staff complete a detailed induction plan to 

ensure that training is as efficient as possible, minimising disruption to services.  

 

6.4 Calls have continued at a higher than usual for the period, in addition, our written 

enquiries have increased. Written responses take longer to process and are more 

resource intensive. However, capacity savings have been achieved through improving 

the efficiency of uploading emails to member records. We continue to explore ways in 

which efficiencies can be identified to manage the customer contact received, 

including adding quick links to the website to aid self-service for our members. 

 

6.5 We have continued to work closely with Member Services to stagger mailings sent to 

members, with the recent pensioner newsletter and P60 mailings being sent within this 

period. Staggering mailings smooths the impact on the contact centre and reduces call 

queues/written response times, allowing us to better serve our customers and reduce 

the number chaser requests received.  

  
Page 87



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

7.0 Complaints  

  

7.1   The Fund has a complaint monitoring framework, which enables regular monitoring, 

reporting of volumes and key trends for the key performance indicator. Where a 

complaint highlights an improvement area, this is investigated and monitored to help 

shape future services and improve overall customer satisfaction going forward. This 

mirrors the process undertaken for general customer feedback as outlined within the 

Customer Engagement Update. 

 

7.2 The number of complaints received by the Fund is proportionally low compared to the 

number of scheme members, with 30 complaints received for the last quarter (very low 

across the membership). Of those complaints, 53% were upheld, a reduction 

compared to the previous reporting period. 

  

7.3   Overall there has been a reduction in complaints compared to the same period last 

year. When each complaint is received, any lessons learned are shared and logged, 

and this in turn improves our service delivery and prevents further occurrences. 

Complaints and actions in response are reviewed by the Fund’s Senior Management 

Team on a monthly basis. 

8.0   IDRP Casework 

8.1 For 2019/2020, one case remains on-going which relates to a historical medical 
appeal against the employer, which has required considerable engagement with third 
party medical practitioners. The Fund are continuing to liaise with the member and the 
employer.  

 
8.2   For 2020/2021, nine cases were completed, with one case has been partially upheld 

and eight cases not upheld. Five cases were progressed to stage two on appeal to the 
Fund; four of these cases have not been upheld and one case remains under 
investigation.  

8.3 For the 2020/2021 year to date, one case has been referred to Stage one of the 
procedure against the Fund and is currently being investigated.  

9.0 Employer Membership 

 

9.1 The Fund has seen an increase in employer numbers, with the overall number of 

employers registered with the Fund as 743 at 31 March 2021, a 5% increase for 

2020/21 and a 72% increase since March 2014 as shown in the graph below.  

Page 88



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

9.2 The employer base is categorised into the following employer types: 

 

 

 

9.3 The level of on-going work being processed at the end of the period is as follows: - 

               

• 68 admission agreements  

• 25 academies 

• 43 employer terminations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

March
2014

March
2015

March
2016

March
2017

March
2018

March
2019

March
2020

March
2021

418
473

542
612 622

672 704 743

No. of employers

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Scheduled body (inc.
district councils, parish
councils, Universities,

colleges)

Admitted bodies Academy

49

234

460

Page 89



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

10.0 Application for Admission Body Status 

 

10.1 Organisations must satisfy one or more of the admission criteria before they can be 

admitted to the Fund following Pensions Committee approving the applications.  

Sometimes a decision is required which is not compatible with the cycle of Pensions 

Committee meetings. In these circumstances, Pensions Committee has delegated 

responsibility for approving such applications to the Director of Pensions in 

consultation with the Chair or Vice Chair of Pensions Committee. 

 

10.2 There have been 10 applications for admission to the Fund, of which 7 are seeking 

approval from Committee and 3 have been requested and approved by the Chair. 

These are detailed in Appendix E. 

 

11.0 Pensions in Payment 

 

11.1 The gross annual value of pensions in payment to March 2021 was £568m, £15.47m 

of which (£7.9m for pensions increase and £7.57m for added year’s compensation) 

was recovered from employing authorities and other bodies as the expenditure was 

incurred.  

 

11.2 Monthly payroll details were:  

 

Month Number Value (£) 

January 2021 

 

87,881 40,217,405 

February 2021 

 

87,973 40,190,781 

March 2021 

 

106,265 41,692,239 

 

The March figure includes pensioners paid on a quarterly basis. 

 

12.0 Write-off policy decisions 

 

A write–off relates to pensions overpaid to members, after following the debt recovery 

policy, these cases become uneconomical to pursue or the estate has insufficient 

funds to recover. In general, an overpayment is generated by late notification of death 

of members.  

 

A write-on relates to monies due to the members estate in order to make pension 

payments up to date of death. After correspondences, the legal representative is 

untraceable or does not wish to claim the funds.  

 

12.1  Write-off and Write On analysis  

The following write-off and write on of pension payments are reported in line with the 

Fund’s policy:  

 

 

 

 Page 90



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 Write Off Write On 

Individual Value Number Total Number Total 

Less than £100 0 - 8 218 

£100 - £500 18 2,971 0 - 

Over £500 1 2,167 0 - 

TOTAL 19 5,138 8 218 

 

Of the cases where the overpayment has been written off: 

 15 cases are where the Fund has not received a response or are unable to 

trace the Next of Kin 

 3 case is where the Next of Kin has stated there is no money in the estate to 

make the repayment  

 1 historical case advised by City of Wolverhampton Council legal team to 

write off 

 

Of the cases where the overpayment has been written on: 

 8 cases the Fund has received no response  

 

13.0  Transfer Out Cases 

 

13.1 During the period 1 January to 31 March 2021, 256 transfer values were issued to 

members considering transferring their benefits out of the scheme (previous 1 January 

2020 to 31 March 2020, 344 transfer values were issued to members). 

 

13.2 In total 40 transfer payments made during the period 1 January to 31 March 2021 

resulting in a total amount transferred of £1.5 million  (previous 1 January to 31 March 

2020 a total of 62 transfer payments were made (£4.5 million was transferred out) This 

amount is broken down as follows: 

 

Value of Transfer Payments Number of Transfer Payments 

0 to £30,000 31 

£30,001 to £100,000 5 

£100,001 to £200,000 1 

£200,001 to £300,000 2 

£300,001 to £400,000 1 

£400,001 to £500,000 0 

Above £500,001 0 

Total 40 

 
13.3 Analysis has been undertaken of the Transfer out payments to non-public sector or 

occupational schemes over the period of January through to March 2021 to review the 
volume and trends. During the period, of the 40 completed, a total of 21 non-public 
sector or occupational scheme transfer out payments have been processed, to a total 
of 12 different receiving schemes. The average age of members transferring out was 
45 years, with the main reason for members transferring out with a value less than 
£30k was to consolidate their benefits. For those cases of higher value than £30k, the 
main reason was to consolidate their pension benefits with one provider.  

 Page 91



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

14.0 Administering Authority Policy Statement 
  
14.1 Under the LGPS Regulations, the Fund is required to formally publish its policy on its 

‘discretions’. Administering authorities have certain powers which enable them to 
choose how they will apply the scheme in respect of certain provisions. These are 
called discretions. Discretions is taken to include where the administering authority is 
required to carry out a task, but an element of choice is seen to exist as to how the 
task is completed. 

 
14.2 The Fund are obliged to consider how to exercise their discretion and, in respect of 

some (but not all) of these discretionary provisions, to have a written policy on how 
they will apply their discretion, these are also to be published and kept under review. 
Within the policy there are circa 50 areas covered, and these include; admission of 
admission bodies, commutation of small pensions, management of funding strains, for 
example on member taking unreduced benefits on early retirement. 
 

14.3 The Fund has undertaken its annual review of the policy, comparing to the latest 
guidance issued by LGA/LGPC confirmed there are no areas for development or 
amendment. In addition, as there have not been any major scheme changes since the 
revised version was implemented, therefore no changes have been made to the 
statement.  
 

14.4 The policy statement will, subject to Committee approval, be applicable from June 
2021, a copy is attached at Appendix F. 

 

15.0 Financial implications 

 

15.1 The report contains financial information which should be noted. 

 

15.2 Employees of organisations who become members of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme will contribute the percentage of their pensionable pay as specified in the 

Regulations. The Fund’s actuary will initially, and at each triennial valuation or on 

joining intervaluation, set an appropriate employer’s contribution rate based on the 

pension assets and liabilities of the individual employer. 

 

16.0 Legal implications 

 

16.1 The Fund on behalf of the Council will enter into a legally binding contract with 

organisations applying to join the Local Government Pension Scheme under an 

admission agreement. 

 

17.0 Equalities implications 

 

17.1 This report has implications for the Council’s equal opportunities policies, since it deals 

with the pension rights of employees. 

 

18.0 All other implications 

 

18.1 This report has implications for the Council’s human resources policies since it deals 

with the pension rights of employees. The report contains no direct environmental 

implications. 
Page 92



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

19.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

19.1 None. 

 

20.0 Schedule of appendices 

 

20.1 Appendix A: Process Summary 

 

20.2 Appendix B: Detailed Process Analysis 

 

20.3 Appendix C: Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 

20.4 Appendix D: Customer Service Statistics 

 

20.5 Appendix E: Admitted Body Applications 

 

20.6 Appendix F: Administering Authority Policy Statement 2021 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

April May June July August September October November December January February March

Total Processes started - Yearly comparison

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

P
age 95



Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

April May June July August September October November December January February March

Total Completed processes - Yearly Comparison

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

P
age 96



Pension Committee Statistical Report
Detailed Process Analysis

Appendix B 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 April May June July August September October November December January February March 2020/21

Active & Deferred members

Process type

Joiners and Rejoiners (Bulk) 8,763 6,403 11,138 13,558 9,816 16,688 20,227 17755 25509 19939 1677 1099 741 1472 1757 2616 2157 2651 1458 1906 1914 1486 20934

Changes in circumstances eg change in hours 18,759 15,303 12,385 11,273 6,391 8,752 6,370 5386 5725 6658 347 311 519 554 504 535 531 468 219 350 408 415 5161

Deferments 5,939 7,818 5,741 6,728 5,664 8,340 8,178 8629 15934 11994 974 688 642 747 616 881 1125 874 769 834 706 588 9444

Active Retirements (Employer retirements) 3,317 3,950 2,475 2,279 2,351 2,775 2,593 2676 2280 2112 159 135 121 149 202 214 226 195 196 177 128 6 1908

Deferred Retirements 3,332 2,970 2,971 2,726 2,301 3,421 3,552 4429 4814 5071 553 306 363 373 411 362 411 481 464 392 441 287 4844

Deaths of members 295 262 287 285 230 379 399 470 429 441 41 38 50 34 27 37 56 60 33 69 63 62 570

Refund 6877 332 346 359 261 260 536 500 377 413 434 350 331 4499

Opt Outs 3585 80 59 99 68 124 167 139 82 109 101 149 51 1228

Amalgamations 11628 695 645 566 814 728 858 653 810 546 830 893 803 8841

Pensioner members

Process type

Changes in circumstances:-

Data eg  Passwords, NI Numbers 1,310 1,804 1,865 2,017 2,604 4,548 2,427 3105 2694 1953 102 130 165 142 109 120 169 125 250 127 139 183 1761

Changes of Address 2,420 2,681 2,131 1,732 1,733 2,237 2,589 3004 2628 2423 168 291 204 209 182 179 193 198 127 267 177 253 2448

Changes of Bank 2,927 2,531 2,783 3,420 3,281 1,573 2,272 2214 1957 1874 107 132 117 89 104 139 160 102 207 106 97 179 1539

Deaths of pensioners 2,085 2,145 2,101 2,546 2,454 1,702 2,813 2919 2793 2650 493 291 328 271 204 274 272 313 254 424 384 378 3886

Payroll 

Actual number paid 792,724 837,189 870,804 895,018 913,864 888,954 915,275 945,196 979,819 1,019,295 86,596 86,460 95,847 86,791 86,960 96,665 87,417 87,626 97,458 87,881 87,973 106,265 1,093,939

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

 

 

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

100.00

KPI's - Benefit Operations

Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



# 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
7094 7293 8027
5822 5523 6065
8031 6812 5603 7055 7224 6968 7068 10342 6956 9513 7476 4431
5842 5149 4682 6216 6477 5968 5848 7398 5624 6206 6171 4071
82.07% 75.73% 75.56%
-11.67% 7.06% 43.26%

Appendix D: Customer Services Statistics 
January to March 2021 

Calls Offered 2021
Calls Answered 2021
Calls Offered in 2020

Calls Answered in 2020
Answer Rate (Target 85%)

Percentage increase

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Incoming Calls

Calls Offered 2021 Calls Answered 2021

Calls Offered in 2020 Calls Answered in 2020

P
age 101



# 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2953 3217 3599
2431 2039 1770 2011 2199 2270 2485 2202 2338 3049 2741 1699

21.47% 57.77% 103.33%Percentage increase
Queries Received 2020

Appendix D: Customer Services Statistics 

Queries Received 2021

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Written Enquiries

Queries Received 2021 Queries Received 2020

P
age 102



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
263 258 156

Appendix D: Customer Services Statistics 

Visitors in 2021
Visitors in 2020

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Reception Visitors

Visitors in 2021 Visitors in 2020

P
age 103



# 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
502 429 543
491 420 399 336 432 420 443 408 417 444 430 296

Appendix D: Customer Services Statistics 

Change of Address 2021
Change of Address 2020

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Change of address processing

Change of Address 2021 Change of Address 2020

P
age 104



 

 

 

Appendix E Application for admission body status 

 

There are 7 approvals requested from Committee in regard to applications for 

admission to the West Midlands Pension Fund. 

 

Employer name Guarantee Status 

(Agreement) 

No. of employees 

(Scheme members) 

Agreement type 

Status 

(Approved/pending 

approval) 

Alliance in Partnership 

(Netherton Primary 

School) 

Netherton COE 

Primary school 

2 

(2) 

Closed 

Pending approval 

Alliance in Partnership 

Ltd (Sutton Coldfield 

Grammar School) 

Sutton Coldfield 

Grammar School for 

Girls Academy Trust 

6 

(6) 

Closed 

Pending approval 

ABM Catering (S4S 

Cluster) 

Wolverhampton City 

Council 

11 

(11) 

Closed 

Pending approval 

Aspens-Services Ltd 

(Academies Enterprise 

Trust) 

Academies Enterprise 

Trust 

36 

(36) 

Closed 

Pending approval 

SIPS Education Ltd 

(Aston Tower) 

Aston Tower MAT 6 

(6) 

Closed 

Pending approval 

OCS Group Uk Ltd (St 

Matthias) 

Wolverhampton City 

Council 

6 

(6) 

Closed 

Pending approval 

OCS Group Uk Ltd 

(Heath Park) 

Central Learning 

Partnership Trust 

5 

(5) 

Closed 

Pending approval 

 

There were 3 approvals approved by the Chair during the period in regard to 

applications for admission to the West Midlands Pension Fund. 

 

Tarmac Trading Ltd Walsall MBC 20 

(20) 

Closed 

Approved 

Innovate Services 

Limited 

The Westwood 

Academy  

4 

(4) 

Closed 

Approved 

Marston Holdings Ltd 

(Wolverhampton CC) 

Wolverhampton City 

Council 

1 

(1) 

Closed 

Approved 

 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY 
POLICY STATEMENT 2021
JUNE 2021

West Midlands Pension Fund

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:47  Page 1

Page 107



Under the LGPS Regulations, the Fund is required to formally publish its policy on 
“discretions”. Discretions is taken to include where the administering authority is 
required to carry out a task, but an element of choice is seen to exist as to how the 
task is completed. Unless stated otherwise the references to regulations are set out
below with the following prefixes used throughout the draft.

- The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 [prefix R]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014 [prefix TP]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 [prefix A]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions)
Regulations 2007 as amended) [prefix B]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008
[prefix T]

- The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 (as amended) [prefix L]

This document was reviewed and approved by Pension Committee in March 2020, 
effective date from April 2020. The next date for review is March 2021.

ADMISSION OF ADMISSION BODIES [REGULATION R4, R3(5) RSch2]

The administering authority may make an admission agreement with any admission body. 
The administering authority can also make admission agreements with a Care Trust, NHS
Scheme employing authority or Care Quality Commission. An admission agreement may
take effect on a date before the date on which it is executed.

The Council will usually agree to an admission agreement with an admission body that is 
regarded as having a community of interest, provided it is satisfied about the long-term 
financial security of the body or it has a public sector guarantee. The administering authority 
will enter into an admission agreement with other admission bodies provided that any 
requirements it has set down are met. The Council may agree that the admission agreement 
may take effect on a date before the date on which it is executed.

RIGHT TO TERMINATE ADMISSION AGREEMENT [RSch2]

The administering authority has the right to terminate an admission agreement in prescribed 
circumstances. The Council shall retain the right to terminate an admission agreement in the
event of:

a) The insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the admission body,

b) A material breach by the admission body of any of its obligations under the admission
agreement or these Regulations which has not been remedied within a reasonable time, or

c) A failure by the admission agreement to pay any sums due to the fund within a reasonable
period after receipt of a notice from the administering authority requiring it to do so.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 20212

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:47  Page 2

Page 108



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 2021 3

EXIT PAYMENT [R64]

The administering authority may suspend (by way of issuing a suspension notice) for up to
three years, an employer’s obligation to pay an exit payment where the employer is again
likely to have active members within the specified period of suspension.

Where an intention to allow new members to join the scheme is identified, the Council may allow
the employer up to six months to admit such members.

ADDITIONAL PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS [R16]

The administering authority may turn down a request to pay an additional pension 
contribution (APC) or shared-cost additional pension contribution (SCAPC) over a period 
of time where it would be impractical to allow such a request. The member would still be
able to pay via a single lump-sum payment.

Due to the administration costs involved requests to pay additional pension contributions or
shared-cost additional pension contributions over a period of time in order to address an 
absence from work of less than ten working days will be refused unless there are exceptional
circumstances.

MEDICAL EXAMINATION REQUIRED FOR PURCHASE OF APC/SCAPC [R16]

The administering authority may require the member to undergo a medical at their own 
expense and may refuse an application if the authority is not satisfied that the member is in
reasonably good health.

The Council will require that a member provides satisfactory medical evidence to ensure they 
can be reasonably expected to complete the contract undertaken and will not retire due to a 
pre-existing medical condition on health grounds. No medical shall be required if the member is
paying for the additional pension by means of a lump-sum payment.

PAYMENT OF ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS ON THE DEATH 
OF A MEMBER [R17]

The administering authority shall decide to whom to pay any AVC monies, including life 
assurance monies are to be paid to on death of a member.

The Council will decide based on the individual circumstances of the case, who should receive
payment of the monies having regard to that it should be paid to or for the benefit of the 
member’s nominee, personal representative or any person appearing to the authority to have
been a relative or dependent of the member.

PROVISION OF ESTIMATES IN RELATION TO TRANSFERS OF AVCS/FSAVCS
[TP15 AND A28]

The administering authority may charge a member for providing an estimate of additional
pension that would result from a transfer of in house AVC/SCAVC contributions.

Members may request a quote free of charge. In the exceptional case an additional request is
made, the Council reserve the right to charge.

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:47  Page 3

Page 109



PENSION ACCOUNTS [R22]

A pension account may be kept in any form that the administering authority considers 
appropriate.

The Council will decide the form in which pension accounts are kept based upon any published 
information or best practice and in an efficient manner.

CONCURRENT EMPLOYMENT AND THE ABSENCE OF AN ELECTION FORM
[TP10]

The administering authority shall decide in the absence of an election form from the member
within 12 months of ceasing a concurrent employment, and where there is more than one
ongoing employment which on going employment the benefits from the concurrent 
employment should be aggregated with.

The one with the longest likely lifespan or the ongoing employment that is most similar to the one
that has ceased will be selected.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS [R30]

The administering authority, in cases where the current employer or the former employer
has ceased to be a scheme employer, may consent to waive, in whole or in part the 
actuarial reduction where the member voluntarily draws their pension before normal 
pension age.

The administering authority may also in cases where the current employer or the former 
employer has ceased to be a scheme employer may consent to waive, in whole or in part the 
actuarial reduction on benefits paid on flexible retirement. Where a request is received, it will be
considered on an individual basis and on its own merit. However, where there is a cost as this 
cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost has to be justified.

STRAIN ON THE FUND [R68]

The administering authority may require an employer who allows a member to retire by 
reason of flexible retirement, redundancy or business efficiency to pay the additional 
charge on the fund. This also includes the cost where the employer has chosen to waive 
any reduction on flexible retirement or where the member voluntarily draws benefits 
before normal retirement age.

The Council will require an employer to make the appropriate payment to meet the additional
charge where the member has retired early through flexible retirement, redundancy, business 
efficiency or where the employer has exercised their discretion to waive any reduction as a
result of flexible retirement or voluntary retirement.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 20214

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:47  Page 4

Page 110



SWITCHING ON THE RULE OF 85 [TP Sch 2]

In cases where the current employer or former employer has ceased to exist, the 
administering authority may consent to switch on the 85-year rule where the member 
is voluntarily drawing benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60.

Where a request is received it will be considered on an individual basis and on its own merit. 
However, where there is a cost, as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost
has to be justified.

WAIVING THE REDUCTION [TP Sch 2 & B30]

In cases where the current employer or former employer has ceased to exist, the 
administering authority may consent to waive any actuarial reduction on the benefits on 
pre- and/or post-April 2014 benefits.

Where a request is received, it will be considered on an individual basis and on its own merit.
However, where there is a cost as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost
has to be justified.

STRAIN ON THE FUND [TP SCH 2]

The administering authority may require an employer to pay any additional costs as a result
of the employer waiving the reduction in cases where the employer has consented to the
early payment of on benefits before age 60 under Benefit Regulation 30.

The Council will normally require the employer to make the additional payment to meet any 
additional cost.

EXTENSION OF THE TIME LIMIT TO DRAW BENEFITS [R32]

The administering authority shall decide whether to extend the time limits in which a 
member must give notice of their wish to draw their benefits before normal retirement 
age or upon flexible retirement.

Where a request is received asking for the time limit to be extended, the individual circumstances
will be considered on whether it is appropriate to extend the time limit.

COMMUTATION OF SMALL PENSIONS [R34, B39, T14, R39]

The administering authority may commute a small pension into a single lump sum.

The administering authority will commute small pensions when a member has made a request.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED MEDICAL PRACTITIONER – APPROVAL [R36 & A56]

The administering authority shall approve the choice of the medical practitioner used by the
employer for ill-health retirement.

A medical practitioner who is registered with the General Medical Council and who has the 
appropriate qualifications specified in the regulations will be approved.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 2021 5

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:47  Page 5

Page 111



CERTIFICATE PRODUCED BY AN IRMP UNDER THE 2008 SCHEME [TP12]

In cases where the employer or the former employer has ceased to exist to be a scheme
employer, the administering authority can use a certificate produced by an IRMP under the
2008 scheme to make a determination under the 2014 scheme.

The certificate will be allowed except in circumstances of a particular case the certificate is not
compliant with the requirements of the 2014 scheme.

EARLY PAYMENT ON ILL-HEALTH GROUNDS - DEFERRED MEMBER [R38]

In cases where the employer or the former employer has ceased to exist to be a scheme
employer, the administering authority shall decide whether the deferred member meets the
criteria of being permanently incapable of carrying out their former job and are unlikely to
be capable of undertaking gainful employment before normal pension age or for at least
three years whichever is sooner.

Where a request is received each case will be considered individually and a decision will be made
based on the medical evidence and opinion provided by the independent registered medical 
practitioner.

EARLY PAYMENT ON ILL HEATH GROUNDS – DEFERRED PENSIONER MEMBER
[R38]

In cases where the employer or the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer,
the administering authority can decide whether a deferred pensioner is unlikely to be 
capable of undertaking gainful employment before normal pension age because of ill health.

Where a request is received each case will be considered individually and a decision will be made
based on the medical evidence and opinion provided by the independent registered medical 
practitioner.

PAYMENT OF THE DEATH GRANT [R40, R43, R46, TP17 & B23, B32, B35,
TSCH & LI55]

The administering authority has absolute discretion in determining the recipients of any
death grant payable from the scheme.

Normally the death grant will be paid to the nominated beneficiary or the death grant could be
paid to the estate of the deceased. Where either or both of these options are seen to be 
inappropriate or impossible, the Council shall exercise its absolute discretion in as to who should
receive the death grant.

NO DOUBLE ENTITLEMENT - BENEFITS DUE UNDER TWO OR MORE 
REGULATIONS [R49 & B42]

The administering authority may decide in the absence of an election form from a member,
which benefit is to be paid where the member would be entitled to a benefit under two or
more regulations for the same period of scheme membership.

The member would be notified of the payment of the benefit that would provide the highest level
of payment.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 20216

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:47  Page 6

Page 112



ADMISSION AGREEMENT FUNDS [R54]

The administering authority may establish an admission agreement fund.

The Council has chosen not to set up an admission agreement fund.

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT [R55]

The administering authority must prepare a governance policy stating whether the 
administering authority delegates its functions or part of its functions in relation to 
maintaining a pension fund to a committee, a sub-committee or an officer of the 
administering authority, and if they do so delegate, state:

• the terms, structure and operational procedures of the delegation;

• the frequency of any committee or sub-committee meetings; and

• whether representatives of employing authorities or members are included and if so whether
they have voting rights.

The policy must also state:

• the extent to which a delegation, or the absence of a delegation, complies with Secretary of
State guidance and to the extent it does not so comply, state the reasons for not complying; and

• the terms, structure and operational procedures appertaining to the Local Pensions Board.

The Governance Compliance Statement will be prepared, maintained and published. A copy will
be made available on our website www.wmpfonline.com

FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT [R58]

The administering authority must after appropriate consultation prepare maintain and 
publish a statement setting out its funding strategy. The statement has to be published no
later than 31 March 2015.

The Funding Strategy Statement is prepared, maintained and published annually. A copy is 
available on our website www.wmpfonline.com

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY [R59]

The administering authority may prepare and publish a pension administration policy and
the matters it should include.

The administering authority will publish a Pension Administration Strategy after consultation and it
will be kept under review. A copy is available on our website www.wmpfonline.com

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 2021 7

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 7

Page 113



COMMUNICATIONS POLICY [R61]

The administering authority must prepare and publish its communication policy. It must 
set out its policy concerning communication with members, representatives of members,
prospective members and scheme employers, as well as the format, frequency and method
of communications, and the promotion of the scheme to prospective members and their 
employers.

The administering authority publishes and maintains a communications policy, a copy of which
will be made available on our website www.wmpfonline.com

REVISION OF EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTION RATE [R64]

The administering authority may obtain from the actuary, a certificate revising the employer
contribution rate, if there are circumstances which make it likely a scheme employer will
become an exiting employer.

A revised additional rate and adjustments certificates regarding employer contributions will be
obtained where it appears to be appropriate.

AGGREGATE SCHEME COSTS – REVISED CERTIFICATES [R65]

The administering authority may obtain a new rates and adjustments certificate if the 
Secretary of State amends the regulations as part of the “cost sharing” arrangements.

A new rates and adjustments certificate will be obtained where it appears to be appropriate.

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS – DATES FOR PAYMENT [R69]

The administering authority shall decide on the dates which contributions are to be paid over
to the Fund.

All contributions (apart from additional voluntary contributions) should be credited to the Fund
without delay by the 19th of the month following the month in which they fall due.

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY EMPLOYERS ABOUT CONTRIBUTIONS – 
FREQUENCY AND FORMAT [R69, TP23, 22 & R80]

The administering authority shall decide on the form and frequency of the information to 
accompany payments to the Fund.

The administering authority will provide to employers the specified formats that employers are to
use for the submission of their data, which is to be provided monthly, in line with the payment of
contributions. A notification will be issued each year to inform employers of the deadline to
submit this data along with any format changes that will be required. The Fund requires this data
to be submitted to them no later than 30 April.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 20218

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 8

Page 114



NOTICE TO RECOVER COSTS DUE TO EMPLOYER’S PERFORMANCE [R70]

The administering authority will decide to issue the employer with a notice to recover 
additional costs incurred as a result of the employer’s level of performance.

As detailed in the Pension Administration Strategy, the Council will review from time to time
whether to issue an employer with notice to recover additional costs incurred as a result of the
employer’s level of performance.

EMPLOYER PAYMENTS – INTEREST ON OVERDUE PAYMENTS [R71]

The administering authority may charge interest on payments by employers which are 
overdue.

The Council reserves the regulatory prescribed right to require interest to be paid when payments
are overdue by more than one month. Interest must be calculated at one per cent above base
rate on a day to day basis from the due date to the date of payment and compounded with
three monthly rests.

PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED WHEN EXERCISING STAGE 2 DISPUTE 
FUNCTIONS AND THE MANNER IN WHICH THOSE FUNCTIONS ARE TO 
BE EXERCISED. [R76, A60, TP23 & R76]

The administering authority will decide how it will exercise its stage two dispute procedure
and the procedure to be followed.

The review would be undertaken by a person not involved in the first stage decision and by a 
person appointed to deal with disputes referred to it under stage 2. The Council will ensure 
suitable procedures are in place.

APPEAL TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE AGAINST EMPLOYER DECISION 
[R79 & A63]

The administering authority may appeal to the Secretary of State against an employer 
decision or lack of an employer decision.

The Council will appeal to the Secretary of State if it believes an employer has made (or failed to
make) a decision that is both wrong in law and material and where we have been unable to 
persuade the employer to alter its actions or inactions.

EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION [R80, TP22, 23]

The administering authority shall specify the information to be supplied by employers to 
enable the administering authority to discharge its function.

The Council will specify the information that is to be supplied by employers having regard to the
regulatory requirements and best practice.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 2021 9

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 9

Page 115



MAKING PAYMENTS IN RESPECT OF DECEASED PERSON WITHOUT
PROBATE/LETTERS OF ADMINISTRATION [R82 & A52]

The administering authority may pay the whole or part of the amount due from the Fund to
the personal representatives or any person appearing to be beneficially entitled to the estate
without the production of probate or letters of administration where the amounts due are
less the amount specified in section 6 of the Administration of Estates (Small Payments) 
Act 1965.

Payment will normally be made without the production of probate or letters of administration
where the amount is below the specified amount.

PAYMENTS FOR PERSONS INCAPABLE OF MANAGING THEIR AFFAIRS 
[R83, A52 & B27]

The administering authority may decide where a person (other than an eligible child) 
appears incapable of managing their affairs, to pay the whole or part of that person’s 
pension benefits to another person to be applied for the benefit of the member.

Where in the Council’s opinion a member is unable to manage their own affairs, then having 
considered the individual circumstances of the particular case they may decide to pay some or 
all of the benefits to someone else to be applied for the benefit of the member.

DATE TO WHICH BENEFITS SHOWN ON ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENT 
ARE CALCULATED [R89]

The administering authority will decide the date to which benefits shown on the annual 
benefit statement are calculated.

The date will be selected in line with regulatory requirement and best practice.

BULK TRANSFER (TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS) [R98]

The administering authority must agree any bulk transfer payment.

The terms of the bulk transfer will be discussed with the Fund’s actuary, and once all parties are
in agreement payment will be made.

TRANSFERS INTO THE FUND AND EXTENSION OF 12-MONTH TIME LIMIT 
[R100]

The administering authority may accept a transfer value of pension rights into the Fund 
and may also extend the time limit of 12 months from the date the member first became an
active member in their current employment.

The Council will accept a transfer value where a request is made. The Council will only agree to
extend the time limit where the appropriate employer has agreed to extend the time limit.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 202110

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 10

Page 116



FINAL PAY REDUCTIONS [TP3, 4, 8, 10, 17 & B10]

The administering authority will decide whether to use an average of three years pay for
final pay purposes where the member has died before making an election.

The pay figure which provides the highest overall level of benefits will be selected.

PERMANENT REDUCTIONS IN PAY - CERTIFICATES OF PROTECTION 
[TP3, 4, 8, 10, 17, TSch1 & L23]

The administering authority will decide for a member who has a certificate of protection
who has died before making an election which pay figure should be used for final pay 
purposes.

The pay figure which provides the highest overall level of benefits will be selected.

ELIGIBLE CHILD – IGNORING BREAKS IN EDUCATION OR TRAINING 
[RSch1 & TP17]

The administering authority may treat a child as being in continuous educational or 
vocational training despite a break.

The Council will accept short breaks and also gap years as being breaks in education and will
restart a suspended child’s pension at the end of such a break or gap.

FINANCIAL DEPENDENCE /INTERDEPENDENCE OF COHABITING PARTNER
[RSch1 & TP17]

The administering authority will decide upon the evidence required to determine the 
financial dependence or financial interdependence of the cohabiting partner and the 
scheme member.

The Council will provide details of the evidence required taking account of any guidance provided.

ABATEMENT OF PRE-1 APRIL 2014 PENSION [TP & A70]

The administering authority shall decide whether and how to abate the pre-1 April 2014 
pension element following re-employment of a scheme pensioner by a local government
employer.

In the event of a scheme pensioner obtaining further employment with a scheme employer the
pension will not be abated. The Fund resolved from 1 September 2006 not to abate pension on
re-employment.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 2021 11

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 11

Page 117



ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 202112

EXTENSION OF TIME PERIOD FOR CAPITALISATION OF ADDED YEARS 
CONTRACT [TP15, TSch1 & L83(5)]

The administering authority may extend the time allowed to a member who has an added
years contract and who is made redundant to decide whether to pay a capital payment.

The Council will apply the prescribed three month time limit, unless there are individual 
circumstances which need to be considered in deciding whether to grant an extension of the 
time limit.

RECOVERY OF UNPAID EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS AS DEBT/
FROM BENEFITS [A45]

The administering authority may recover any outstanding employee contributions as a debt
or as a deduction from the benefits.

The Council will, where practical deduct any unpaid employee contributions from the benefits 
relating to the membership to which the unpaid contributions relate.

CONSENT FOR EARLY PAYMENT AND WAIVING OF REDUCTION 
[B30 & TPSCH]

Where the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer, the administering 
authority may consent to waive the reduction for the payment of deferred benefits on 
compassionate grounds.

Where a request is received it will be considered individually and on its own merit. However,
where there is a cost as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost has to be
justifiable.

‘SWITCH ON’ THE 85-YEAR RULE FOR A PENSIONER MEMBER WITH 
DEFERRED BENEFITS

Where the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer, the administering
authority may consent to ‘switch on’ the 85-year rule for a pensioner member with deferred
benefits voluntarily drawing benefits.

The Council would not normally ‘switch on’ the 85-year rule.

APPLICATION FOR EARLY PAYMENT OF A SUSPENDED TIER 3 ILL HEALTH 
PENSION AND WAIVING REDUCTION [B30]

The administering authority may consent to the request for the early payment of pension 
for a member, who left with a tier 3 ill-health pension that is suspended and who now is
aged between 55 and 60 where the former employer has ceased to be a scheme employer.
The administering authority may also waive any reduction.

Where a request is received, it will be considered individually and on its own merit. However,
where there is a cost, as this cost will have to be spread across all employers the cost has to be
justifiable.

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 12

Page 118



REQUEST FOR EARLY PAYMENT OF DEFERRED BENEFITS ON ILL-HEALTH
GROUNDS [B31]

The administering authority may decide to agree to a request from a deferred member for
early payment of benefits on ill-health grounds where the former employer has ceased to
exist.

The Council will obtain an opinion from an IRMP as to whether as the member meets the criteria
of permanent ill health and reduced likelihood of gainful employment.

SPOUSES’ PENSIONS ARISING UNDER THE 1995 REGULATIONS PAYABLE 
FOR LIFE

The administering authority shall decide to pay spouse’s pensions for life for pre-1 April
1998 retirees/pre-1 April 1998 deferreds who die on or after 1 April 1998, rather than 
ceasing the pension during any period of marriage or cohabitation.

The Council has deemed that any spouses’ pension that comes into payment is payable for life.
This does not apply to spouses’ pensions that ceased prior to 1 April 1998.

ADMINISTERING AUTHORITY POLICY STATEMENT 2020 • JUNE 2021 13

Data Protection
To protect any personal information held on computer, the City of Wolverhampton Council is registered under the 
Data Protection Act 2018. This allows members to check that their details held are accurate. The Fund may, if it 
chooses, pass certain details to a third party, if the third party is carrying out an administrative function of the Fund, 
for example, the Fund’s AVC provider. Members who wish to apply to access their data on Data Protection Act 
grounds should contact the Fund’s Data Protection Officer via email at 
wmpfdataprotectionofficer@wolverhampton.gov.uk

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use information for the 
prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with other bodies administering public funds 
solely for these purposes.

Information produced by the Fund can be made available in several formats including large sight text, Braille and 
several community languages. If you have any special requirements or would like to speak face to face with a 
member of staff, please contact us to arrange how we may best meet your needs. Please remember that special 
requirements may take a little longer than normal to organise, but you have our assurance that we will do our best 
to ensure you receive the information in the most appropriate and efficient manner possible.

June 2021

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 13

Page 119



West Midlands Pension Fund
PO Box 3948
Wolverhampton
WV1 1XP

Customer Services: 03001111665
Email: pensionfundenquiries@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Web: www.wmpfonline.com
Pensions Portal: www.wmpfonline.com/pensionsportal

Lines open during the following times: 

8:30am to 5.00pm Monday - Thursday

8:30am to 4.30pm Friday.

Calls may be monitored for training purposes.

Administering Authority Policy Statement 2019.qxp_Layout 1  12/03/2020  13:48  Page 14

Page 120



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

   

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

  
Report Title  Customer Engagement Update 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Simon Taylor 

Tel  

Email 

Assistant Director (Pensions) 

01902 55 4276  

Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

Rachel Brothwood 

Tel  

Email 

Director of Pensions 

01902 55 1715 

Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

 

 

Recommendations for action or decision: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to approve: 

 

1. Delegation to the Director of Pensions to finalise the 2021 Pensions Administration 

Strategy and associated Employer Engagement Roadmap in consultation with the Chair 

and/or Vice Chair of Pensions Committee, following completion of the consultation with 

participating employers. 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The engagement activity and informed service development. 

 

2. Publication of the Funding Strategy Statement effective 1 June 2021. 

 

3. Draft Pensions Administration Strategy and Employer Engagement Roadmap for 2021. 

  

  

Page 121

Agenda Item No: 10

mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 To provide Committee with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1 

January 2021 to 31 March 2021 and to cover future planned customer engagement 

activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy. 

 

1.2 To also cover more specific elements of employer and member engagement including 

consultation on the Funding Strategy Statement, Pensions Administration Strategy and 

Employer Engagement Roadmap. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 One of the Fund’s key objectives is to engage to improve outcomes for our customers. In 

line with this objective, the Fund has published, and keeps under review, a Customer 

Engagement Strategy, to review satisfaction and help inform improvements to its pension 

services. 

 

3.0 Member engagement & communication  

 

3.1 The Member Services team continues to deliver member support via digital channels 

including member webinars and follow up individual telephone consultations as required. 

The webinars mirror our normal suite of member presentations and during this reporting 

period 74 webinars/workshops were delivered to 1,563 attendees. These were followed 

by 299 individual member telephone consultations. Webinars have been scheduled to 

enable “real-time” interaction with Fund Officers, at various times throughout the day to 

accommodate attendance around member work commitments. This delivery and the 

associated feedback is summarised in appendix A. 

 

3.2 During this reporting period the team provided 15 satellite support events to 82 hard to           

reach members who may not normally be able to access our services due to the nature 

of their work and location, which might include access to web-based delivery (i.e. 

computer facilities), working hours or ‘satellite’ locations. 

 

3.3 On the 9th February the Fund presented at the Birmingham Association of School 

Business Managers group. The Fund is normally asked to attend their annual 

conference, however this year we have assisted the group via a virtual meeting and 

provided important updates on topic issues in the pensions industry. Following the 

success, we then were given the opportunity to present at the West Midlands Bursars 

Group.  

 

3.4 Through the “Be Pension Smart & Take Control of your benefits” campaign the Fund           

continues to encourage members to view and manage their pension record online using 

the pensions portal. During this reporting period registrations increased by 3,232 bringing 

the total pension portal registrations to 108,133. 

 

 

Page 122



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

3.5 The Fund continues to promote aspects of our work via the social media platform 

LinkedIn. Since the last reporting period a further 5,692 people have interacted with our 

articles, which bring the total interactions to 14,219 since launch. The Fund has received 

an increase in followers since its launch by 18%. 

 

3.6 During this reporting period the Fund’s member video suite, providing on-demand 

support and guidance, has been expanded to include three new videos designed to raise 

awareness of pension scams, encourage members to think about retirement planning 

and assist members to understand their deferred benefits statements. 

 

3.7 Following the Fund’s commitment to raise member awareness on the importance of 

Retirement Planning, in February 2021 we launched our new pre-retirement planning 

campaign, reaching out to members on their 55th birthday in order to provide them with a 

toolkit they can use to plan for their retirement. The toolkit includes a bespoke retirement 

planning video designed by the Fund, a pre-retirement guide, budget planners together 

with links to access further information and support. 362 members attained the age of 55 

during the two months of this reporting period and they received our bulk email. 74% of 

these members opened our email and viewed our support.  

 

3.8 To raise member awareness of pension scams, the Fund produced a bulk mailing and 

designed a member video to highlight how to spot the signs of a pension scams. This 

bulk mailing was sent to 54,046 active scheme members for whom we hold a valid email 

address. 54% of these members opened and read our mailing and several new slides 

have been also developed which are now included in all member webinars. 

 

3.9 The Fund produced its annual newsletter for our pensioner members (appendix B) which 

was sent in print to over 100,000 members along with their annual P60s. To complement 

the newsletter we also produced a “Your pension is safe, we hope you are too” bulk 

email which was sent to 35,626 of our pensioner members who we hold valid email 

addresses for, 70% of these members read the bulk email and used the signposting that 

it provided. 

 

3.10 As the Fund is committed to providing members with assistance, guidance and support 

with retirement planning, the Fund has linked-in with the Pension Lifetime Savings 

Association (PLSA) on their Retirement Living Standards initiative. This means that we 

are assisting with the research and development of new material and support to help 

pension scheme members plan for their retirement across a range of occupational 

pension schemes.  

 

3.11 Customer feedback is key to understanding our customer’s journey, highlighting our 

strengths and any gaps in the service we deliver so that we can continually improve the 

services we offer. Some service enhancements made over the period include: 

 

 Introducing ‘important notes’ to advertise key information on the website  

 Making improvements to our ‘contact us’ form 
 

Page 123



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

We are currently collating customer feedback to improve the Pensions Portal user 
experience. The feedback collated to date has been shared with our software developer, 
who will identify any developments that can be made.  

  
During the quarter, a number of surveys were issued to members and employers to 
assess overall satisfaction levels on a wide range of processes. Over the period, our 
satisfaction levels were measured as 90%. 

 

4.0     Employer engagement 

 

4.1  Employer Peer Group 

 

4.1.1 The last session of the Fund’s virtual Employer Peer Group cycle for 2020/2021 took 

place in March. The meeting was positive with 11 employer representatives present. The 

content for the meeting included: 

 

 Age 55+ campaign – promotional section delivered in conjunction with member 

services 

 Employer Flexibilities and proposed changes to FSS 

 What the future holds from an employer perspective (including Covid-19 resilience) 

and how the Fund may be able to support where possible 

 Keeping Informed: Employer Hub and Web trays, ABS 2021 and Year End 

requirements 

 Annual Peer Group review and feedback  

 

4.1.2 Once again, the meeting was followed by the regular technical group session where 

attendees are able to raise queries for discussion with each other with support from Fund 

officers. 

 

4.2 Employer Webinars 

 

4.2.1 The Employer Services team has continued to deliver its new programme of employer 

education over the quarter with a further 10 virtual sessions delivered to over 190 

attendees from 65 organisations, some of whom provide payroll services for many other 

employers within the Fund. The sessions are free to attend and provide a useful 

refresher for existing staff or as an introduction to processes for those who are new to 

Fund administration. 

 

4.2.2 Sessions delivered over the quarter are set out below and will continue to be rolled out 

over the course of the year. An increased suite of webinars is now available each month 

and employers are able to easily sign up for via the Fund’s website.  

 

 LGPS Basics for Employers 

 Pay and service 

 Monthly Data Collection 

 Refunds 

 Deferments 

 Retirements 

Page 124



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 Early retirement estimates and associated strain costs 

 Ill health processing for employers 

 TUPE and outsourcing 

 

4.3 Employer Performance  

 

4.3.1 Utilising the virtual working arrangements currently in place, the Employer Services team 

have continued to hold performance meetings with various employers throughout the 

period. Employer performance is assessed in line with the Fund’s Pension Administration 

Strategy (PAS). 

 

4.3.2 During the period the Fund held 10 feedback and performance meetings with 5 major 

and 2 smaller employers. Across these employers alone these discussions have resulted 

in the targeted clearance of over 600 possible leavers since the previous quarter (i.e. 

member records where no data is being received on a monthly basis but where no leaver 

notification has been made the employer either), plus significant reductions in error rates 

across many other areas. 

 
4.4   Employer System Developments: Hub and Webtrays 

 

4.4.1 Since the first batch of 60 employers successfully migrated to the new Employer hub on 

13 December 2020 the project has now successfully migrated a further 550 employers 

with over 440 web users ahead of the planned roll out programme which was scheduled 

to extend until October. It is anticipated that roll out across all employers will be 

completed well ahead of schedule by August. 

 

4.4.2 Considerable engagement is taking place with employers and payroll providers prior to 

and during go-live in order to clarify user access, including the granting of super user 

access to enable self-service with respect to the setting up and unlocking of user 

accounts by employers or their payroll providers.   

 

4.4.3 A number of demonstrations are being delivered prior to each go live date to provide 

initial training.  During the quarter 3 demonstrations were delivered to over 50 users. A 

number of guidance videos and documents are now available on the Fund’s website to 

supplement this training. 

 

4.4.4 McCloud: Employer Special Briefing Note 

 

4.4.5 A Special Briefing Note was issued on 9 April 2021 to all employers providing important 

information and detailing the specific Fund requirements with respect to the McCloud 

ruling. The note provided a background to the McCloud remedy, detailed employer 

requirements and provided information on potential funding implications. 

 

4.4.6 A number of supporting documents were issued alongside the note (and posted to the 

Funds website) to provide additional support to employers. 

 

Page 125



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

4.4.7 The Briefing Note also directed employers towards an online survey for the submission of 

queries and comments.  The responses will be reviewed, and the online FAQs updated 

periodically to reflect any changes. Following a number of enquiries regarding completion 

of the data template, the Employer Services team is planning to deliver a McCloud 

requirements and guidance webinar, this will be advertised on the Fund’s website and as 

part of a planned follow up communication to all employers to capture all feedback 

received. 

   

4.4.8 Funding Strategy Statement and Employer Flexibilities: Consultation 2021 

 
4.4.9 In the March 2021 Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) review, proposed amendments to 

the FSS were summarised aligning to changes made to the LGPS Regulations 2013 to 
enable Administering Authorities to implement flexibilities for employers. 
 

4.4.10 The revised draft FSS was issued to employers for comment as part of the consultation 
commencing 12 April 2021 and closing 21 May 2021. As part of the consultation process 
the Fund engaged with Employer Peer Group and carried out two dedicated briefing 
sessions, to which all employers were invited. Over 150 employers (representing 20% of 
the total employer base) were actively engaged in this process with a diverse range of 
sectors represented. Six formal responses to the consultation were received. 

 
4.4.11 In summary, the responses were overwhelmingly positive, noting that the Fund was 

proposing to implement universally welcome additions to the FSS. Feedback received 
from employers has been taken on board and to clarify wording within the FSS, with 
individual responses being issued to each employer. As such the 1 June 2021 FSS is 
now in place following consultation with the Chair/Vice Chair of Pensions Committee.  

 

5.0 Internal engagement 

 

5.1  Recognising the importance of ensuring internal stakeholders are kept up to date on the 

Fund’s progress and associated developments during the Covid-19 outbreak, particularly 

with increased remote working, the Fund continues to promote more signposting for 

Fund staff to wellbeing support which is available to staff across the City via our monthly 

employee catch up. 

 

5.2 To increase internal communication across the Fund and provide insight on the wider 

pensions industry, the Spring edition of the “Pensions Post” was issued to staff in April to 

raise awareness to topical issues in the wider pensions industry and to highlight key 

projects and achievement across the Fund.  

 

5.3 In April the Fund launched its new Intranet site called Pensions People, this has been 

designed based on feedback from all Fund staff. The Intranet site brings all key guidance 

and documents together in one simple to access site, the support is split into several 

areas which include, IT, HR, Technical and communications.  

 

5.4 The Fund continues to develop an E-learning platform for scheme members to use, this 

software will be used to design learning modules for scheme members so they can 

engage and enhance education around their pension benefits. We will also use this 

Page 126

https://cloud.3dissue.net/17509/17563/17682/52095/index.html


This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

platform to enhance internal communication and staff development by delivering E-

learning modules to internal teams on bespoke subjects. We hope to complete the 

design of our first E-learning module by the end of the next reporting period.  
 

6.0  Future engagement 

 

6.1  98,168 Deferred Benefit Statements have been produced which will start to be distributed 

to members from via bulk email from the 7th June. The Fund has also produced 937 

paper statements via print for members who have expressed that their preferred 

communication method is paper.   

 

6.2  The Fund is part of the LGA project group along with several other Funds to assist them 

to revamp their website which will go live towards the end of the year.   

 

6.3  Preparations are underway to plan for the Fund’s Mid-Year Review (MYR) on the 7 July 

2021. The event will cover a variety of important update for employers.  

 

6.4   Work has commenced on preparation for the 2021 Annual Employer Health check which 

is due to begin issuance from June onwards. As in previous years the check will ask 

employers to review and clarify a number of key areas as listed below: 

 

 Active member lists 

 Web user access accounts 

 Employer contact details 

 

6.5  An Employer Financial Health survey will be issued to all employers shortly to help the 

Fund in assessing the current financial and operational position of the employer, 

including the ongoing impact of Covid-19 and climate change. 

 

7.0  Pensions Administration Strategy Review 

 

7.1  Under the LGPS Regulations, the Fund may produce and publish a Pensions 

Administration Strategy (PAS) and should ensure it is regularly reviewed and revised as 

appropriate. The PAS sets out a framework for assessing Fund and employer 

performance standards developed to ensure delivery of a cost-effective and quality 

pensions administration service. 

 

7.2 The Fund published the most recent iteration of the PAS in 2019. The strategy is kept 

under review and revised to reflect changes to LGPS regulations and Fund policies. 

 

7.3 Through the PAS the Fund aims to: 

 

 Enable provision of a high-quality pension service to all Fund members 

 Set out the quality and performance standards expected of the Fund and its 

scheme employers 

 Promote good working relationships and improve efficiency of the exchange of 

information between the Fund and its scheme employers 

Page 127



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

7.4 The PAS is a critical document in outlining responsibilities and setting expectations for 

both Fund and employer administration performance to ensure delivery of statutory 

functions and a quality service to members. The strategy enables the Fund to manage 

and, if necessary, re-charge costs where performance falls below the standards required.  

The PAS is increasingly significant in the context of greater employer numbers and 

diversity, the involvement of more payroll providers and greater scrutiny from the 

Pensions Regulator (tPR). It is also key to efficient record keeping and outlining the 

support available to employers from the Fund to help achieve the required level of 

performance. 

 

7.5 Changes to the strategy and the employer consultation 

 

7.5.1 The Fund has undertaken an internal review of the PAS, primarily to assess the 

appropriateness of the strategy following the completion of the first annual cycle of 

monthly data collection. A key aspect of the review included a comparison of the strategy 

against the employer and Fund responsibilities set down by the LGPS regulations and to 

also incorporate the comments of internal audit following their last review.  As a result, 

the revised strategy incorporates changes to policy and working practices to be effective 

from 1 July 2021.  

 

7.5.2 The updated strategy includes and reflects: 

 

 Employer Hub: new requirements regarding self-service aligned to the migration to 

the new Employer Hub and webtray functionality, including the expectation to 

regularly undertake a review of web users and active member lists 

 

 Annual Employer Health Check: these have been included as a mandatory 

responsibility for all participating employers and will incorporate a review of (though 

not limited to) employer web user access levels, membership profiles and employer 

contacts held. 

 

 Academy Pooling: requirements and expectations on scheme employers following 

the change introduced during the 2019 Actuarial Valuation consultation process.  

 

 Employer/Payroll Provider education: an increased focus on the requirement to 

attend Fund training sessions, particularly for new or underperforming employers.  

 

 Employer charging: the current structure for poor performance to be reviewed to 

include associated escalations within the Employer Engagement Roadmap. In 

particular, consideration to be given to the inclusion of further charges for work 

carried out by the Fund as the result of employer error or organisational change. 

 

 Financials: clear expectations regarding the receipt of timely information to enable 

efficient allocation and reconciliation of employer contributions. 

 

 Regulatory changes: expectations have been incorporated to reflect the McCloud 

ruling and associated Fund requirements regarding the submission of data and also 

Page 128



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

the need to report notifiable events to the Fund immediately as a result of the 

Employer Flexibility legislation. 

 

 Impacts of poor performance: this section has been expanded significantly to 

provide increased visibility of the potential impacts failure to comply with both 

Regulatory and Fund requirements may have. 

 

7.5.3 A key suggestion from the 2019 PAS audit report was for greater clarity of employer 

performance measurements against the roles and responsibilities. As such this iteration 

of the PAS has established a stronger link between the two areas by combining the two 

sections together to show the measurement by which each role and responsibility will be 

assessed where appropriate. 

 

7.5.4 In conjunction with the PAS, the Fund will also publish a revised Employer Engagement 

Roadmap, again subject to consultation with employers. The purpose of the Engagement 

Roadmap is to outline the framework available to support performance improvement and 

the steps the Fund will take (including escalation) where any issues with performance are 

not being addressed and where the engagement and further support is unsuccessful. 

 

7.5.5 The draft PAS (Appendix C) and Employer Roadmap (Appendix D) have been issued to 

participating employers for a four-week consultation period. The Fund will consider the 

feedback once received from employers and make any amendments as considered 

appropriate before finalising the document.   

 

7.5.6 The Fund intends to open consultation with all participating employers for a period of at 

least 6 weeks during June/July 2021. 

 

7.5.7 As part of the consultation, the Fund proposes to hold a briefing session at the Employer 

Mid-Year Review to further explain the changes and provide employers the opportunities 

to discuss and raise any queries.  

 

7.5.8  Committee is asked to provide comment and approval of the proposed changes as part 

of the consultation. 

 

7.5.9 Following the consultation, and consideration of the feedback received, Committee is 

asked to approve delegation for the PAS and Employer Engagement Roadmap to be 

finalised by the Director of Pensions in consultation with the Chair and/or Vice Chair of 

Pensions Committee. 

 

8.0 Financial implications 

 

8.1 There are financial implications associated with this report in that the PAS includes the 

Fund’s approach to the application of charges and re-charges in the event of non-

compliance with key performance standards set out for participating employers. 

 

 

 

Page 129



This report is PUBLIC 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

9.0 Legal implications 

 

9.1 The Fund has a legal duty to meet with legislation and statutory best practice, failure to 

do so may open the fund to challenge from the Pensions Regulator or the Scheme 

Advisory Board.  

 

9.2 The Fund is able to impose penalties on employers (to cover any fines or costs incurred) 

through its adopted pension administration strategy.  

 

10.0 Equalities implications 

 

10.1 The report contains no direct equalities implications. 

 

11.0 All other implications 

 

11.1 This report contains no other direct implications. 

 

12.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

12.1 None. 

 

13.0 Schedule of appendices 

 

13.1 Appendix A: Events attended and associated feedback Jan – March 2021 

 

13.2 Appendix B: 2021 Pensioner Newsletter  

 

13.3  Appendix C: 2021 Pensions Administration Strategy 

 

13.4 Appendix D: 2021 Employer Engagement Roadmap. (To follow). 

 

 

 

 

Page 130



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Event Type Attendance 

Individual Pension 
Consultation 

299 

Webinars and 
Workshops 

1,563 

Total 1,862 

Member Services Team – Events Attended 

1st January– 31st March 2021 
 

Appendix A 

P
age 131



P
age 132



 

P
age 133



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PENSIONER MEMBER

Welcome to your 2021 Pensioner Member 
Pension Smart newsletter.

2021/2022 Pension Payment Dates

For more information, visit the national Local Government Pension Scheme member’s website: www.lgpsmember.org

West Midlands Pension Fund

PENSIONSMART

•23 April 2021
•25 May 2021
•25 June 2021
•23 July 2021
•25 August 2021
•24 September 2021             

•25 October 2021
•25 November 2021
•16 December 2021*
•25 January 2022
•25 February 2022
•25 March 2022

If your pension payment is on a monthly basis, we will send a payslip
when there is a variance of £10 in your net payment and every April.
Payslips are available via the Fund’s secure online ‘My Pensions Portal’.
https://portal2.wmpfonline.com/

Quarterly pension payments are paid in March, June, September and
December.

Yearly payments are paid each March. If you are paid quarterly or
yearly, you will continue to receive a payslip which is also available 
online every time you are paid.

COVID Update – Your Pension is Safe; We Hope You Are Too!
We know that the last year has been an uncertain time for most of us. We want to 
remind you that your pension is safe and secure. Please rest assured that making 
payment of your pension on time will always be one of our main priorities. Considering 
the times we are in and the restrictions which are in place we appreciate that some of 
our members may benefit from additional support. If you don’t have friends, family or 
neighbours who can support you to get shopping and other essentials, think about using 
online shopping and prescription delivery services where possible. Anyone making 
deliveries should leave them on the doorstep or outside.

Charities and local community groups are working hard to try and support people who are having to self-isolate. Across 
the West Midlands, local authorities have advertised local support available to residents on their websites, please visit the 
following link for more information https://www.wmpfonline.com/covid19faq 

We hope that you keep safe and well during these times.

1

*Please note early payment of 
pension in December

Appendix B

Page 135



When changing your 
bank account details 
using the Pensions 
Portal, please be 
aware that changes 
made during the 
month may not take 
effect until the 
following month due 
to the timing of 
running the payrolls.

If you have informed the Fund by using your payslip or in 
writing, please do not close your old account until you have 
received confirmation from the Fund that the change has been
made. Where a change of bank notification is received direct
from the banking industry, the Fund will no longer issue paper 
notifications of these changes.

All changes should have been instructed by our members
using the Current Account Switch Guarantee Service and
therefore you are aware of the change or it may be an internal
change by your bank which does not affect your individual 
account.

2

Returned Payments                
If payments are returned from your bank, your pension
will be suspended until we can obtain correct and up-to-
date banking details.

Are Your Nominated Beneficiaries 
Up To Date?       

If you die after drawing your LGPS pension and before
reaching age 75, a death grant may be payable. Generally
speaking, the death grant is equal to ten times (or five times 
if you left the LGPS before 1 April 2008) the pension less the
amount already paid.

Please log onto Pensions Portal to check if your nomination
form is up to date https://portal2.wmpfonline.com/ 

Changing Your Bank Details?                    

Not sure if you’re paying 
the correct amount of tax?                   

If you think your tax code may be 
incorrect or you need more 
information regarding how HMRC 
have calculated your tax. Please contact the tax office:

Tel: 0300 200 3300
Write to them:
PAYE & Self-Assessment
HM Revenue & Customs
BX9 1AS

Your end-of-year statement (P60) is an important
document.

•  Monthly paid: P60 issued with your April pension
    advice slip.

•  Quarterly or yearly paid: P60 issued with your
    March pension advice slip.

Gross Pension Summary
This shows the total amount of pension paid to you
in the year. Quote this figure on tax returns.

Tax Summary
This shows the total tax deducted in the year. If you
see a – this indicates a refund of tax. Quote this
figure on tax returns.

Lifetime Allowance (LTA)
This is a limit on the total amount we can build up in
pension without penalty. Here is the percentage
that was used by this pension at your retirement
date.

Important Document – P60

The P60 is your summary of pension and tax paid for the year up to 5 April 2021. Please keep your document in a safe place as
the Fund cannot provide a duplicate. You will need to use this – please make sure you keep it! As the Fund cannot provide 
duplicates, these are available on the Pensions Portal.

UK residents: For peace of mind, please use the Pensions Portal to notify the Fund of your change of address or bank
details. It is quick and easy and your new address will be verified instantly using the QAS system. Please keep your
existing bank account open until your pension payment has been received in your new account.Page 136



3

April is the time of year when your local government pension is adjusted to
ensure it maintains its value against increases in the cost of living, and we are
pleased to announce that from the 12 April 2021 pensions will increase by
0.5% in line with the consumer prices index (CPI). For more information on
how the increase will be applied or if you have been receiving your pension
for less than a year, please visit www.wmpfonline.com/increase

Please remember that the 0.5% increase is payable from the 12 April 2021;
therefore, your April payslip will have the first 11 days of April (1 April 2021 –
11 April 2021) payable at your current rate, and then the remainder of the
month (12 April 2021 – 30 April 2021) will receive the 0.5% increase. You will
receive the full increase of 0.5% for the whole month in May 2021. However,
please note that your pension can be made up of different elements which
have different method of increases, also if you have retired in the last year,
the increase will be pro-rated.

Your Pension is Increasing – 0.5% 

For more information about how you pension 
has increased, please view our short video at
www.wmpfonline.com/increase.

Please ensure that you complete the mandate with 
all the details required, as our overseas provider 
will reject payments if they are not set up correctly.
Note: we do not have the facility to make advance
payments overseas.

Please inform us of your change of bank as soon 
as possible to prevent any delays in you receiving
your pension. Mandates can be downloaded at
www.wmpfonline.com/overseasbank. 
Alternatively, you can contact us for a form.

Overseas Bank Accounts 

Annual Life Certification – Overseas Members

The Fund undertakes an annual certification process 
commencing in the Autumn of each year, typically October, 
for our overseas Pensioners in partnership with an organisation
called Target. 

Target is a third-party organization who trace and verify
scheme members on our behalf, helping to ensure pension
scheme data is correct and up to date. 

2020 was the first year of us undertaking this arrangement 
with Target, which has enabled us to engage with an increased
number of members and also enhance the opportunities for 
you to engage with us on this process electronically. We were
delighted that 21% of our overseas members successfully
utilised this new way of engaging with us, using the app
mypensionID.  

This exercise will be repeated again in 2021 and as part of 
this process, you will receive a letter or email from Target 
asking you to verify your details which can be done either 
by traditional postal method or via the app mypensionID.  

To ensure we can monitor responses and take any amendments
to our records, you will be given a timeframe in which to 
respond. Where a member doesn’t respond to the annual 
certification request, and they have not contacted Target to 
advise them of an issue regarding meeting the timescales for 
response then the pension will be suspended until we can verify
the scheme member. This is to ensure all pension payments are
accurate, please be assured we will not suspend your pension
without reasonable justification.  

Please look out for an email or letter from Target with their logo
on it.  

Please be assured that our partnership with Target is fully 
compliant with the latest data protection legislation, and you 
can access more information on how we use member data at
www.wmpfonline.com/privacynotice. 

If you would like more information on Target, please feel free to
engage via the telephone on +44 (0)1243 608 635 or via their
webchat at www.mypensionID.co.uk. 

Alternatively, more information can be found at 
www.wmpfonline.com/target. 

Page 137



The Fund participates in the Cabinet 
Office’s anti-fraud initiative, known 
as the National Fraud Initiative. 
For this initiative, the Fund provide 
details of pensioners and 
beneficiaries so that they can be 
compared to information provided 
by other public bodies.

This will ensure that no pensions are being paid to persons 
who are deceased or no longer entitled, and that occupational
pension income is being declared when housing benefit is 
applied for.

The details of any local government pensioners who have taken
up re-employment are also reported; therefore, it is important
that you inform the Fund of any re-employment in local
government.

The Fund may share information provided to us with other 
bodies responsible for auditing or administering public funds in
order to prevent and detect fraud.

Have You Moved Address?                    
Please ensure that you inform us of your new address as soon
as possible, as any returned post received by the Fund will 
result in the suspension of your pension payments until we 
have been informed of your new address.

You can update your address on your Pensions Portal account
at //portal2.wmpfonline.com/

4

The West Midlands Pension Fund has an online Pensions
Portal which enables you to manage your pension account
and take control of your payments. If you register for a 
portal account between 22 March and 21 May, all 
registrations will be put into a prize draw to win a £50 
high street gift voucher.

Take control of your pension and use ‘My Pensions Portal’
to:

•  view your pensioner record;

•  view your payslips and your annual P60;

•  keep us up to date by amending your personal 
   information;

•  get peace of mind by viewing documents and your 
   nomination form;

•  and much more!
Register today at //portal2.wmpfonline.com/

If you need additional support

The Fund has developed a range 
of guidance to help you use the 
Pensions Portal. Please visit 
www.wmpfonline.com/
guidancenotes 

Scams & Fraud - Be Extra Vigilant!

Scammers are inventive and keep coming up with new ways 
to con people out of their money. You can protect yourself by
being aware of the most common scams, including scams 
related to coronavirus. 

Coronavirus-related scams include:

•  People claiming to be able to arrange a COVID-19 vaccine 
    for a fee. The NHS is the only organisation which has 
    access to the vaccine, and will never ask for money.

•  Sales of fake products such as face masks, supplements, 
    anti-virus kits and sanitisers, which may be harmful or 
    simply never arrive.

•  Bogus healthcare workers who try to gain access to your 
    home by claiming to offer testing for COVID-19.

•  People pretending to be from charities offering to do 
    shopping or carry out cleansing tasks.

•  Emails asking for donations to the NHS.

Always check the credentials of people or companies who 
contact you. Take your time before deciding to part with money
or information and if possible, seek advice. 
Remember – it’s okay to say no.

You can find out about the latest scams by visiting the 
www.independentage.org or calling them on 0800 319 
6789, alternatively you may wish to contact a Scams Action 
adviser at Citizens Advice by calling 0808 250 5050.

WIN
£50

Register to view your
payslips online and be 
in with a chance to win a
£50 gift voucher!

National Fraud Initiative

Page 138



5

The Fund has a Pensioner Engagement
Forum which usually meets each year 
to evaluate the services we offer to 
pensioner members, and to enhance the
experience a member has when 
transitioning from work to retirement. In
previous years we have reviewed the
different methods of communication 
we have with pensioners and provided 
feedback through this newsletter on the
new initiatives and improvements which
have been made.

Unfortunately, due to the pandemic the
group couldn’t meet face to face last
year. However, we would still like the 
opportunity to gather your thoughts on a
variety of subjects. With this in mind, we
would like to see if there is any appetite
to host a virtual meeting this October. 

If you would like to be involved in a 
virtual Pensioner Engagement meeting
towards the end of the year, please
email us with your interest to
wmpfevents@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

One of the groups largest achievements
was the joint project to roll out retirement
planning workshops which covers a 
variety of guidance and support, not 
just about your LGPS benefits. These
have been rolled out across the West
Midlands and recently have been 
converted to online so we can continue
to support members who are retiring
through the pandemic. 

The workshops have been a huge 
success and here is a snapshot of 
members’ feedback. 

We have also just released a rolling 
campaign on a monthly basis to reach
out to members who are approaching 
retirement, sign posting a comprehensive
toolkit and offering an opportunity to join
one of our retirement planning webinars.

Don’t forget if you would like to be 
involved in a virtual Pensioner 
Engagement meeting towards the end 
of the year and make a difference to 
the support we provide members, 
please email us with your interest to
wmpfevents@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Pensioner Engagement Forum - You Said, We Did!

Having worksheets and
talking it through with
advisors was very 
useful. Very well 
explained and advisers
willing to assist.

Helps to bring certainty
to retirement planning,
gives good estimate to
use as a base figure for
planning retirement.

Very clear and 
straightforward way 
to calculate and 
understand the make 
up of overall benefits.

I can understand my
pension properly now
and was useful about
future income 
expectations.

I was confused about
my pension but gained
really useful advice and
information.

Gave excellent advice
on how much I could 
expect taking into 
consideration number 
of options, etc.

Page 139



6

Successfully complete and return the crossword below and you
will be entered into a prize draw of a chance to win a high street
gift voucher worth £25! 

To enter into the prize draw to win a £25 gift voucher, please provide your name
and contact number along with your completed crossword and send it to West
Midlands Pension Fund, PO Box 3948, Wolverhampton, WV1 1XP, or email it to
wmpfactivemailings@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Full name:

Contact number:

crossword
competition

West Midlands Pension Fund

Down:
1) Sport with tees
2) Fledgling plant
3) America’s pastime
4) ______ egg
6) Eating outing
7) When spring ends
8) Vegetable plot

14)  Flying toy with a tail
16) Verdant

Across:
5) They’re usually found in beds
9) Time for showers
10) Gloom’s opposite
13) Yellow spring flower
15) Day for diamonds and dreams
17) Shower apparel?
18) Monarch, e.g.

#

1

5

8

9

13

15

12

10 11

14

7

6

16

17

18

2 3

4

11) One of four in a year
12) Breezy

Page 140



As part of the changes to the LGPS from a final salary to a career average pension scheme in 2014,
protections were put in place for members within ten years of retirement. Similar protections were
provided in other public sector pension schemes.

In December 2018 the Court of Appeal ruled that this 
protection is discriminatory on age grounds for members 
of the Judges’ and Firefighters’ Pension Schemes, which is
also applicable across all public sector schemes. Following
this ruling, the Government has confirmed that there will be
changes to all main public sector schemes, including the
LGPS, to remove this age discrimination. This ruling is often
referred to as the ‘McCloud judgment’.

The Government is still considering exactly what changes
need to be made to remove the discrimination from the
LGPS and are reviewing responses to their consultation
which was undertaken in 2020. The proposed changes would
mean that a revised underpin will apply to all members, and
the proposals introduce the term “qualifying member” for
someone who meets the following criteria, regardless of age:

•  were active on 31 March 2012;

•  built up benefits in the 2014 scheme; and 

•  do not have a disqualifying break. 

The changes will be retrospective and will apply to anyone
who has left, retired or died and who didn’t meet the old 
underpin criteria but meets the new one. In some cases, 
this will mean retrospectively recalculating benefits for 
pensioners, and paying arrears and interest. It is expected
that the majority of members will not see an increase to their
pension, as the CARE scheme for most members is more
beneficial, and where this does increase it is likely to be for 
a small number of members.

If you qualify for protection, it will apply automatically - you
do not need to make a claim or contact us. We will contact
you when the government puts regulations in place.

For more information, see the frequently asked questions 
on the national LGPS website
www.lgpsmember.org/news/story/mccloud_qanda.php

7

McCloud Update

Page 141



Signposting Support

moneyadviceservice.org.uk
0800 138 7777

ageuk.org.uk/care
0800 055 6112 citizensadvice.org.uk

0345 404 0506
hmrc.gov.uk

0845 302 1437

unbiased.co.uk
0333 271 7513

gov.uk/browse/working/
state-pension

If You Need to Contact Us, We Are Here to Help...

https://portal2.wmpfonline.com/

www.wmpfonline.com

www.wmpfonline.com/emailus

Dedicated member and portal
helpline: 03001111665

8

www.independentage.org
0207 605 4200

www.alzheimers.org.uk
0207 605 4200

Climate Change and Responsible Investment                     
As one of the largest local government pension schemes in 
the UK, it is important that the Fund invests its assets in a 
sustainable manner. This responsible method of investing not
only protects the financial returns needed to pay scheme
members, but it also recognises the Fund’s broader 
responsibility to communities both locally and around the
globe. With this in mind, the Fund has chosen four key 
themes of engagement to focus on from 2020 into 2023 
which it believes reflect this responsibility. 

One of the Fund’s ongoing engagement themes is climate
change. The Fund recognises the risks associated with climate
change and the potential for these to impact on the long-term
value of the Fund investments, but also the opportunity for 

investment reward, for example in green energy investments,
particularly during the period of transition to a lower carbon
economy. The Fund has currently invested £2.5 billion in 
sustainable equities and low carbon funds, with further 
investments into sustainable equities being made towards the
year end.

The Fund is pleased to showcase its first climate change video,
highlighting the need for action to address climate change on a
global scale, and the important role that it can play. This video
is part of a new responsible investment series, with more
videos to be published online in the coming year.
https://www.wmpfonline.com/article/8465/
Climate-Change 

Page 142



PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION 
STRATEGY    
MAY 2021

West Midlands Pension Fund

DRAFT

Appendix C

Page 143



1 INTRODUCTION AND REGULATORY CONTEXT 

2 AIMS 

3 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
3.1 Scheme Employer 

3.1.1    Duties, Responsibilities and Measurements 
3.2 West Midlands Pension Fund 

3.2.1   Duties, Responsibilities and Measurements 

4 MONITORING PERFORMANCE 
4.1 Working with our Employers 
4.2 Approach to Managing Performance 
4.3 Policy on Charging Employers for Poor Performance 
4.4 Penalties for Sub-Standard Performance 
4.5 Charging Scales for Administration 

5 FEEDBACK FROM EMPLOYERS

3 

3 

5 
5 
5 

16 
16 

24 
24 
24 
25 
26 
27 

29

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 20212

CONTENTS

DRAFT

Page 144



1 INTRODUCTION AND REGULATORY CONTEXT 

This is the Pension Administration Strategy (PAS) of West Midlands Pension Fund (the Fund) 
in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which is administered by the City 
of Wolverhampton Council (the administering authority).  The West Midlands Integrated 
Transport Authority (WMITA) merged with the Fund with effect from 1st April 2019 and the 
roles, responsibilities and performance standards/measurements set out in this strategy apply 
equally to the WMITA employers. 

The PAS is kept under review and revised to reflect changes to LGPS regulations and Fund 
policies and working practices. This document sets out a framework outlining the policies and 
performance standards to be achieved by the Fund and employers and is developed through 
a consultation process, to enable provision of a cost-effective and high quality pension 
administration service. 

The LGPS is a statutory scheme and governed by regulations. The current regulations 
appertaining to administration are the LGPS Regulations 2013 (As Amended). In discharging 
their roles and responsibilities under these regulations, the Fund and employers are also 
required to comply with any pertinent overriding legislation and take appropriate recognition 
of any regulatory guidance or Code of Practice issued by The Pension Regulator. 

An efficient and effective scheme administration service requires the following: 

• Clear point of contact, roles and responsibility 

• Timely exchange of information and payment of contributions 

• Complete and accurate notifications and communications 

• Early notification of material changes 

• Clear and timely responses to requests and queries 

This strategy outlines the performance expected and the monitoring in place to support 
service delivery 

2 AIMS 

In line with the Fund’s objectives, the aim of the PAS is to partner with our employers to 
provide a high quality service to our members delivered through efficient working practices. 

We do that through detailing the expected performance of the Fund and its employers in 
meeting both the legal and regulatory duty of scheme administration as set out in the Pension 
Regulator’s Code of Practice. 

The efficient delivery of the benefits of the scheme is reliant upon effective administrative 
procedures being in place between the Fund and scheme employers, most notably the timely 
exchange of accurate information in relation to scheme members. 

The primary method of exchange is via the employer hub providing a secure link which can 
be tracked for audit purposes.

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

DRAFT

Page 145



This PAS sets out the expected levels of performance of the Fund and the scheme employers. 
The strategy provides details about the monitoring of performance levels and the action(s) 
that could be taken where standards are not met by employers and/or when persistent 
non-compliance occurs. 

The PAS, of which this iteration is effective from July 2021, was introduced in April 2015, with 
revisions since that date captured in this document. The Fund will continue to keep the 
strategy and policy document under review and update as required to reflect changes in 
scheme regulations and Fund working practices. 

3 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Overriding legislation dictates minimum standards that pension schemes should meet in 
providing certain pieces of information to the various parties associated with the LGPS. 

In addition, regulatory guidance sets out a number of requirements for the Fund and scheme 
employers to provide information to each other, scheme members and prospective scheme 
members, dependents, other pension arrangements or other regulatory bodies. 

3.1 Scheme Employer 

31.1    Duties, Responsibilities and Measurements 

The tables below set out the function and tasks scheme employers are required to carry out in 
order to aid the administration of the scheme. Where appropriate, for those tasks which will 
be routinely measured the method of that measurement is also confirmed.

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

DRAFT

Page 146



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

3 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Overriding legislation dictates minimum standards that pension schemes 
should meet in providing certain pieces of information to the various parties 
associated with the LGPS. 

In addition, regulatory guidance sets out a number of requirements for the 
Fund and scheme employers to provide information to each other, scheme 
members and prospective scheme members, dependents, other pension 
arrangements or other regulatory bodies. 

 

3.1 Scheme Employer 

31.1    Duties, Responsibilities and Measurements 

The tables below set out the function and tasks scheme employers are 
required to carry out in order to aid the administration of the scheme. Where 
appropriate, for those tasks which will be routinely measured the method of 
that measurement is also confirmed.

1 General Information

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

1.1 Confirm nominated representative(s) to receive 
information from the Fund 

Change in contacts to be notified to the Fund 
immediately 

Contacts to be verified via the Annual Employer 
Health Check 

Multi Academy Trusts to provide contact details 
for Head Office in addition to specific function 
contacts 

Reviewed annually and as required

1.2 Attendance at Employer Coaching and or virtual 
webinars

On admittance to the Fund, new employers are 
expected to attend coaching sessions as 
relevant to their specific role. 

Attendance may also be requested by a Fund 
officer based on performance/ compliance 
levels.

Employer performance to be continually 
reviewed

P
age 147



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

1 General Information

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

1.3 Appoint a person (the adjudicator) to consider 
disputes under stage 1 of the pension internal 
dispute process (IDRP) and provide full up-to-
date contact details to the Fund

Notify the Fund within 30 days of becoming a 
scheme employer or following the resignation 
of the current adjudicator

Reviewed annually as part of the Employer 
Health Check

1.4 Notify the Fund of any change to payroll 
provision

Inform the Fund one month in advance of a 
change in payroll provider

Reviewed annually as part of Employer Health 
Check

1.5 Formulate, publish and keep under review 
policies in relation to all areas where the 
employer may exercise a discretion within the 
LGPS1 

A copy of the policy document is to be 
submitted to the Fund within one month of the 
change in policy or within 30 days of becoming 
a scheme employer

To be reviewed by the Fund as appropriate

1.6 Distribute any information provided by the 
Fund to scheme members/potential scheme 
members (e.g., Scheme guides, pension portal 
promotions, benefit statement production)

Ensure members have access to all material as 
circulated by the Fund

In a timely manner, as required

1.7 Notify the Fund in advance of any employer 
initiatives, such as (but not limited to) employer 
mergers, bulk transfers or change of Academy 
Trust, policy decisions or practices which could 
have an impact on LGPS member benefits

Early contact with the Fund is preferable to 
enable the Fund to discuss and understand the 
implications

As a minimum, as soon as possible once the 
decision has been made or initiative/practice 
has been finalized. 

P
age 148



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

1 General Information

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

1.8 Inform the Fund regarding a notifiable event 
which may trigger the requirements for a 
contribution review between triennial valuations. 

Such triggers may include (though not limited to): 

• A material change to LGPS membership 

• A material change in total employer payroll 
and LGPS pensionable Pay 

• A change in employer legal status or 
constitution 

• Restructuring where there is a significant 
impact on LGPS membership 

• A decision to cease business 

• A decision that will restrict future active 
membership of the LGPS 

Inform the fund in advance of the event taking 
place. 

Where advance notice is not possible, at least 
immediately after it is known

1 For further information on which regulations require a policy, please see Regulation 60 in The Local Government Regulations 2013 (www.lgpsregs.org)

P
age 149

https://www.lgpsregs.org


PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

2 Contributions

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

2.1 Remit employer and employee contributions to 
the Fund due each month

By 19th of the following month 

Preferred method of payment is BACS or 
CHAPS, to include meaningful narrative where 
possible 

Payments with respect to Multi Academy Trusts 
to be aggregated prior to making payment to the 
Fund 

 

Payment of monthly employee and employer 
contributions are due under the Pensions Act 
2004 and the Public Service Pensions (Record 
Keeping and Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2014.   The Pensions Regulator may 
be notified if the above requirement is not met  

In the case of a backdated admission agreement 
the employer must make payment in full of all 
contributions due to date once the required legal 
documents are in place. Payments must then be 
made as above 

2.2 Implement changes to employer contribution 
rates as instructed by the Fund at the date 
specified by the Fund’s actuary

In line with the Rates Adjustment Certificate 
issued by the actuary following each triennial 
valuation or following review in line with the LGPS 
regulations or on commencement as a scheme 
employer within the Fund as notified in writing

Monthly reconciliations undertaken by the Fund 
with respect to payments expected vs those 
received

2.3 Provide a breakdown of monthly employer and 
AVC contributions for reconciliation against 
payment2

By no later than 19th of the following month but 
preferably at the time of making the payment.

Receipt of breakdown by 19th of the following 
month

2 Breakdown needs to be provided on an individual employer basis where payment is made in respect of more than one participating employer, e.g. where responsible for client payroll)

P
age 150



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

2 Contributions

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

2.4 Ensure and arrange for the correct deduction of 
employee contributions from a member’s 
pensionable pay and throughout their 
membership in the scheme (including any periods 
of leave)

As required, typically monthly 

Eligible members only to be admitted to the 
LGPS.

Monthly

2.5 Manage the deduction of all additional 
contributions or amend such deductions, as 
appropriate

As required Monthly

2.6 Arrange for the deduction of AVCs and 
payment over of contributions to the AVC 
provider(s) and inform the Fund as required 
 

As required, typically monthly Monthly

2.7 Make additional Fund payments in relation to 
early payment of benefits from flexible 
retirement, redundancy or business efficiency 
retirement or where a member retires early 
with employer’s consent and a funding strain 
cost arises 
 

Within 30 days of receipt of invoice from the Fund 
 
Where possible, a remittance advice to be 
issued to: 
WMPFAccountReceivable 
@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 

To be reviewed by the Fund as appropriate 

2.8 Respond to Fund queries regarding payments 
received 
 

Respond to queries raised by the Fund regarding 
payments in order for these to be allocated. 
 
Where the query is relating to a rejected or 
aborted monthly submission file, resubmission of 
the file to occur within 10 working days of 
receipt of the query to prevent delays to 
allocation 

Within 10 working days of receipt of query

P
age 151

mailto:WMPFAccountReceivable@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:WMPFAccountReceivable@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:WMPFAccountReceivable@wolverhampton.gov.uk


PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

3 Contracting out of service

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

3.1 Notify the Fund of the contracting out of 
services which will involve a TUPE transfer of 
staff to another organisation so that information 
can be provided to assist in the decision

Where possible, three months prior but at the 
latest the point of deciding to tender. 

 

Three months prior to the contract 
commencement date 

3.2 Work with the Fund to arrange for an 
agreement or other such contract and 
documentation as required, to be put in place 
when contracting out a service, and assist in 
ensuring it is complied with

Three months in advance of the date of admission Three months prior to the contract 
commencement date

3.3 Notify the Fund if the employer ceases to admit 
new scheme members or is considering closing 
membership of The Fund

Inform the Fund of any decision made 
regarding admittance 

(Early discussion with the Fund by a 
terminating employer is encouraged) 

Immediately once decision is made

P
age 152



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

4 General administration and change notifications in relation to active members

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

4.1 Provide the Fund with the following member 
information on one monthly file monthly (via the 
employer hub) and ensure optimum accuracy of 
monthly data files received: 

• New joiners 

• Changes in employees’ circumstances which 
may impact Fund benefits (eg. Movement in 
and out of the 50/50 scheme, marital or civil 
partnership status, maternity, paternity, career 
break, etc). 

• Employee and employer contributions and 
earnings 

On a monthly basis, by the 19th of the following 
month, as part of the submission upload via the 
employer hub. 

Where any payment of contributions due is 
made prior to the 19th of the following month it 
would be preferable for the data to be 
submitted at the time of making payment 

Monthly data file to be received by the 19th of 
the  following month. 

Less than 5% of the active member count as at 
1 April to error on import into the pension 
administration system

4.2 Employers must ask members for a statement in 
writing listing all previous periods of employment

Members must be issued with a form A1 within 
three months from the date the person 
becomes a member 

4.3 Rectify monthly data errors The rectification of a monthly data file where it 
has been necessary to 
return the file due to data inaccuracies

Within 20 days of receipt of the returned 
file/feedback

P
age 153



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

4 General administration and change notifications in relation to active members

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

4.4 Produce an estimate of member benefits prior 
to approving retirements on the grounds of 
redundancy to establish any associated costs

Early Retirement Costings to be calculated 
using the online facility or by contacting 
employer services where the functionality is 
unavailable 

Prior to the redundancy being approved by the 
employer to avoid any subsequent dispute with 
the Fund overs associated costs

4.5 Notify the Fund (via employer hub) when a 
member is due to retire including an accurate 
assessment of final pay details and 
authorisation of the reason for retirement

Notify the Fund when a member is due to retire: 

up to one month following the date of retirement 
if the date of retirement is before normal pension 
age (NPA) 

or; 

ASAP once final earnings are known, typically 
three weeks before and no later than one week 
after the date of leaving, if the member’s 
benefits are payable on or after their normal 
pension age (NPA)3 

Notify the Fund when a member is due to 
retire: 

up to one month following the date of 
retirement if the date of retirement is before 
normal pension age (NPA) 

or; 

ASAP once final earnings are known, typically 
three weeks before and no later than one week 
after the date of leaving, if the member’s 
benefits are payable on or after their normal 
pension age (NPA) 

S4 form to be submitted via employer hub 

4.6 Notify the Fund (via employer hub) when a 
member leaves employment including an 
accurate assessment of final pay details using the 
method stipulated by the Fund

Within 30 days of month end of date of leaving, 
S4 early leaver form (S4EL/OPT) to be 
submitted via employer hub4 

Where the member is subject to TUPE this should 
be not be confirmed via an S4 

Within 30 days of month end of date of leaving 
S4 form to be submitted via employer hub

3 Notification should not be given prior to the final earnings being known to avoid recalculation of member benefits 
4 On receipt of the appropriate S4 notification, where data is incomplete or inaccurate this may lead to delays in processing by the Fund should queries need to be raised

P
age 154



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

4 General administration and change notifications in relation to active members

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

4.7 Provide responses to enquiries regarding 
submitted member notifications

Respond to enquiries from the Fund in regard 
to member notifications and submitted forms 
(i.e S15, N15 etc via email or via the webtray 
functionality) 

Within 10 days of receipt of  enquiry

4.8 Notify the Fund (via employer hub) of the death 
of a scheme member 

As soon as practicable, but within a maximum 
of ten days of the employer being notified, S4 
retirement/ death in service form (S4RB) to be 
submitted via employer hub4

Within 10 days of notification

4.9 Review payment of Tier 3 ill-health benefits After benefits have been in payment for 18 
months 

After benefits have been in payment for 18 
months

4.10 Completion of the Annual Employer Health 
Check 

Respond to the Funds 
communication with any changes and amend-
ments within one month of receipt of the re-
quest (to include but not limited to a review of 
employer hub users, contact details and active 
member lists)

Annually

5 Please refer to the Fund’s website for more detailed guidance for requirements relating to the McCloud judgement

P
age 155

https://www.wmpfonline.com/employers/regulatorychanges


PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

4 General administration and change notifications in relation to active members

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

4.11 Self-review of performance and data quality 
via the employer hub

Regularly utilise the WMPF active member 
function and review the Employer dashboard 
via the employer hub

At least annually, where active member count 
is less than 1,000 

Quarterly where active member count is over 
1,000 

4.12 Provision of data appropriate to the McCloud 
ruling 3

Submission of all data required to enable the 
necessary checks to be carried out to enable an 
underpin check to be carried out with respect 
the McCloud judgement

By 31st October for all data up to 31st March 
2021 

By 31st May 2022 for all data required for the 
period 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022

5 IDRP

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

5.1 Notify the Funds Compliance team of the 
receipt of a complaint under the IDRP process

Notify the Fund on receipt  Within two days of receiving the compliant 

5.2 Notify the Funds compliance team that the first 
stage decision has been issued

Notify the Fund once issued Within five days of issuing the decision

5.3 Timeframe for resolution of IDRP within two 
months 

Notify the fund if timeframe is not going to be 
met 

Notify the Fund immediately when known the 
original time frame will not be met

5.4 Respond to Fund enquiries Assist with enquiries where the Fund is dealing 
with stage 2 IDRP 

Within five days of receipt of enquiry

P
age 156



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

6 Employer Hub User Access

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

6.1 Creation of new employer hub users by 
superusers

Superusers to assist with the set-up of new 
users within their organisation

As required 

6.2 Maintenance and modification of existing 
employer hub users 

 

Superusers to assist other users with 
maintenance of web accounts (e.g. Change 
access level, rest passwords) 

As required

6.3 Verification of employer hub users by 
superusers

Employer hub superusers to regularly review 
user access lists using self-serve functionality 
(WMPF Managed User report) 

At least annually via the Employer Health 
Check but also periodically by the employer to 
ensure accurate access is held

6.4 Revocation of employer hub users no longer 
required and/or employed

The fund to be notified immediately when access 
is no longer required by a user

Immediately on occurrence

6.5 Employer hub usage policy Regular use of the employer hub in order to 
perform administration duties relevant to 
WMPF

At least annually.   

Where account remains dormant for 12 months, 
access may be automatically revoked by the 
Fund following written warning being issued 

P
age 157



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

3.2 WEST MIDLANDS PENSION FUND 

3.2.1   DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND MEASUREMENTS 

In setting the expectation of employers, the Fund recognises that the 
relationship and delivery of services, is also reliant on the Fund’s 
performance and duties to its employers.   

The table below outlines the key responsibilities of the Fund, what actions it 
will take and the timescales of its own performance in delivering the service 
to members and employers. It is focused on the key activities that scheme 
employers and scheme members are involved in and should not be viewed as 
an exhaustive list.  

 

 

 
The Fund routinely reviews performance across all areas including the PAS, 
which is monitored and reviewed by the Pensions Committee and Local 
Pensions Board.  Regular reporting is undertaken, and performance is also 
reported annually in the Fund’s annual report and accounts.  Where the 
function is routinely measured using the Funds key performance indicators 
the method of that measurement is also confirmed below. 

 

1 General Information

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

1.1 Regularly review the Fund’s PAS and consult 
with all scheme employers

In advance of the policy being adopted and 
following consultation taking place during the 
year of the revision

Annual review 

1.2 Regularly review the Fund’s Funding Strategy 
Statement as required, not least with each 
triennial valuation, following consultation with 
scheme employers and the Fund’s actuary

Publish by 31 March following the valuation 
date or as required 

Annual review

1.3 Regularly review the Fund’s Communication 
Policy Statement

Annual review and publish within 30 days of 
the policy being agreed by the Pensions 
Committee 

Annual review

P
age 158



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

2 Contribution Requirements

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

2.1 Consult with employers on the outcomes of the 
triennial valuation

At least three months in advance of the signing 
of the final rates and adjustment certificate

As part of the triennial valuation consultation 
period. 

2.2 Notify employers of contribution requirements 
for three years effective from the April following 
the actuarial valuation date

At least six weeks before the actuary signs off 
the rates and adjustment certificate 

As part of the triennial valuation cycle.

2.3 Notify new scheme employers of their 
contribution requirements

The latter of within six weeks of receipt of the 
notification of admission application or 
commencement as a scheme employer 

To be reviewed by the Fund as appropriate

1 General Information

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

1.4 Regularly review the Funds termination policy 
statement and publish as appended to the 
Funding Strategy Statement 

Within 30 days of any changes being made to 
the policy

Annual review

1.5 Review and communicate the Funds publications 
listed below: 

• Annual report 

• Annual Statement of accounts 

• Governance and compliance statement 

By 31 October following the year-end Annually, no later than 31 October

P
age 159



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

3 Support for Employers

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

3.1 Employer Helpline Dedicated helpline: 

Monday – Thursday 
8.30 am – 5.00 pm 

Friday 
8.30 am – 4.30 pm 

>85% of calls received to the employer helpline 
to be answered

3.2 Email/Web enquiry support Fund to support with general employer queries 10 working days from receipt of enquiry

3.3 Employer Peer Group Quarterly meetings to be held each year 
between employer representatives and at least 
2 Fund officers

Quarterly

3.4 Employer Newsletters Quarterly briefing notes to be issued plus 
bespoke editions as required focusing on 
topical issues

Quarterly and, as required

3.5 Face-to-face meetings Whole employer meetings to be held twice 
yearly 

One-to-one engagement with employers to 
discuss feedback and performance as required 
and appropriate 

As required but with all employers invited to at 
least 2 meetings each year

3.6 Online support Online support to be reviewed and maintained 
in order to remain accurate and relevant

Continual review

3.7 Member services presentations and roadshows Regular presentations to be made available for 
employers to facilitate for members.

Largest 35 employers (based on active 
member count) plus at least 15% of all other 
employers annually

P
age 160



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

3 Support for Employers

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

3.8 Organise and provide webinars on the roles 
and responsibilities of an employer in the Fund

Monthly webinars to be scheduled.  

Bespoke sessions can also be made available 
on request 

At least two employer webinars to be 
scheduled each month

3.9 Notify scheme employers and scheme members 
of changes to the scheme rules

As per disclosure requirements with inclusion 
of an overview in the Employer Brief

Continual review

3.10 Provide a facility (via employer hub) for 
employers to calculate estimates and early 
retirement costs for active members

Functionality to be available to enable employer 
self-service at all times 
with periods of downtime 
to be monitored by WMPF systems support and 
any issues addressed immediately

Continual review

3.11 Production and maintenance of an IDRP 
employer guide

On an ongoing basis Annual review

4 General administration and member communications

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

4.1 Produce annual benefit statements for active 
members as at 31 March and deferred 
members as at pensions increase date in April

By 31 August following the year-end Annually

4.2 Produce and issue pension savings statements 
each year to members who have exceeded their 
annual allowance

By 6 October (provided receipt of all relevant 
information from scheme employer) following 
the year-end

Annually

P
age 161



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

4 General administration and member communications

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

4.3 Publish and keep up to date all forms required 
for completion by scheme members or 
employers

Within 30 days from any revision As required

4.4 Provide feedback on errors contained in monthly 
data submission files

Within 20 working days of the later of the 19th 
of each month or the date the file is received by 
the Fund

Quarterly review of KPI reported Pension 
Committee and/or Pension Board

5 Processing Scheme member records and benefits

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

5.1 New Joiners

Set up a new starter and provide statutory 
notification to the member

Member Record created and confirmed Within 20 days of receipt of correct data file 
from a scheme employer

5.2 Transfers

Transfer in quotations processed Quotation and paperwork issued Within ten days of receipt of all the required 
information

Transfer notification of transferred in 
membership to be notified to the scheme 
member 

Transfer out quotations processed 

Member notified of completion of transfer in 
Quotation and paperwork issued 

Within ten days of receipt of payment 

Within 20 days

Transfer out payments processed Payment made Within ten days

P
age 162



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

5 Processing Scheme member records and benefits

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

5.3 Additional contributions

Notify the scheme employer of any scheme 
member’s election to pay additional pension 
contributions (APCs), including required 
information to enable deductions to commence

Arrange deduction of member payments with 
employer

Within ten days of receipt of election from a 
scheme member

Process scheme member requests to pay/ 
amend/ cease additional voluntary 
contributions (AVCs)

Arrange deduction/cessation of member 
payments with employer

Within five days of receipt of request from a 
scheme member

5.4 Leavers

Deferred benefits calculated and confirmed to 
member

Confirm member benefits Within 15 days of receipt of all necessary 
information

Refund details calculated and issued Confirm member benefits Within ten days of receipt of all necessary 
information

Refund payments Make payment to member Within five days of receipt of all necessary 
information from member

5.5 Deferred into payment

Provision of deferred retirement options to 
member

Deferred retirement quotation issued to 
member

Within 30 days of the member’s eligible 
payment date or receipt of request from a 
member

Deferred retirement benefits processed for 
payment following receipt of election

Payment commences Lump sum payment within five days of receipt 
of all necessary documentation 

First pension payment on next available 
payment run 

DRAFT

P
age 163



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

5 Processing Scheme member records and benefits

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

5.6 Retirements

Provision of retirement options to members Retirement quotation issued to member Within 15 days of receipt of all necessary 
information

New retirement benefits processed for 
payment following receipt of election

Payment commences Lump-sum payment within five days of receipt of 
all necessary documentation 

First pension payment on next available 
payroll run 

5.7 Deaths

Acknowledgement of a death Appropriate acknowledgement issued Within five days of receiving the notification

Notification of benefits payable to dependents Confirm benefits payable Within five days of receiving the required 
information

Payment of death lump-sum will be made 
information 

Payment made Within ten days of receipt of all the required 
information

5.8 Customer service

Member Helpline Dedicated helpline: 

Monday – Thursday 
8.30 am – 5.00 pm 

Friday 
8.30 am – 4.30 pm

>85% of calls received to the customer helpline 
to be answered

Provide an answer/ acknowledgement to an 
enquiry from a scheme member/ personal 
representatives/ 
dependents and other authorised persons

Appropriate response issued Within ten days from receipt of enquiry

P
age 164



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

5 Processing Scheme member records and benefits

Function / Task Expectation Measurement / Review

5.8 Customer service

Acknowledge member complaints on initial 
receipt

Appropriate response issued Within five days of receipt

Issue full response to member complaints Appropriate response issued Within 20 days of receipt 

Monitor IDRP cases and target completion of 
stage 1 and stage 2 reviews

Within two months. For further information, 
please see the Fund’s IDRP policy

Within two months

Acknowledge employer complaints on initial 
receipt 

Appropriate response issued Within five days of receipt

Issue full response to employer complaints Appropriate response issued Within 20 days of receipt

P
age 165



4 MONITORING PERFORMANCE 

4.1 WORKING WITH OUR EMPLOYERS 

The Fund recognises that engagement is key to helping us understand our employers’ 
individual circumstances, their challenges and their outcomes. Engaging with employers helps 
to build positive working relationships and ensures processes create efficiencies and better 
outcomes for the Fund, our members, and employers. The consistent application of standards 
across all employers enables fair and value for money service. 

The Fund will seek to work closely with employers when identifying areas of poor 
performance. At the earliest opportunity, the Fund will provide training and development to 
aid improvement of service levels in the future. Where performance issues are identified, in 
the first instance, 

the Fund will work to resolve the issues informally. However, where this is not possible and 
persistent sub-standards occur (with no measurable improvement demonstrated by the 
employer), additional steps may be taken by the Fund in line with its powers under the LGPS 
Regulations 2013. 

The Fund aims to meet the training and development needs of its employers using (but not 
limited to) its employer education programme, quarterly bulletins, website guidance and 
through day-to-day contact via email and telephone. There is also an open invite to request a 
meeting with a member of the Employer Services team, subject to notice, to discuss any 
aspect of co-operation, expectations and responsibilities. 

4.2 APPROACH TO MANAGING PERFORMANCE 

Ensuring compliance with the LGPS regulations and this administration strategy is the 
responsibility of the Fund and scheme employers. This section describes the ways in which 
performance and compliance will be monitored. 

The Fund and scheme employers are to ensure that all functions and tasks are carried out to 
the agreed quality standards. On a regular basis, the Fund will monitor, measure and report 
on both the Fund’s and scheme employers’ compliance with the agreed service standards 
outlined in this document.  Employers are encouraged to review their own performance using 
the self-service tools and dashboards available via the employer hub. 

The Fund will undertake a formal review of performance against the PAS on an annual basis 
and liaise with employers in relation to any concerns on performance. The Fund monitors its 
own performance against key performance indicators. Monitoring occurs on a monthly basis 
and is reported to the Fund’s Pensions Committee on a quarterly basis.  The performance of 
scheme employers against the standards set out in this document are incorporated into the 
reporting to the Committee, as appropriate, to include data quality.  The Fund will also report 
back to employers, where appropriate about their individual performance, identifying any 
areas for improvement including outstanding data items. 

 

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

DRAFT

Page 166



Where persistent and ongoing failure occurs in relation to administration requirements and no 
improvement is demonstrated and/or willingness to resolve the identified issues is shown by 
an employer following the Fund taking any appropriate steps as set out in its Employer 
Engagement Roadmap,, the following sets out the steps that will be taken in dealing with this 
situation: 

• Write to the scheme employer, setting out area(s) of non-compliance with performance 
standards and offer support and, where applicable, request attendance at a 
training/coaching session 

• Where no improvement has been demonstrated by the employer, or where there has been 
a failure to take agreed action by the scheme employer, or no response is received to the 
initial letter, the scheme employer will be asked to attend a conference call/meeting with 
representatives of the Fund to discuss area(s) of non-compliance with performance 
standards and to agree an action plan to address them. Where appropriate, the originating  
employer will be informed and expected to work with the Fund to resolve the issues. 

• If no improvement is seen within one month or a scheme employer is unwilling to attend a 
meeting to resolve the issue, the Fund will issue a  formal written notice, setting out: 

– the area(s) of non-compliance with performance standards that have been identified; 

– the steps taken to resolve those area(s); and 

– provide notice that the additional costs will now be reclaimed.  

• An invoice will be issued detailing the additional cost incurred, taking account of time and 
resources in resolving the specific area(s) of poor performance and in accordance with the 
charging scale set out in this document. A report will be presented annually to the Pensions 
Committee detailing charges levied against scheme employers and outstanding payments. 

• If poor performance continues and impacts the Fund’s ability to perform statutory functions 
and/or measures are not being taken by the employer to address this, the Fund may need 
to report the employer to The Pensions Regulator. 

4.3 POLICY ON CHARGING EMPLOYERS FOR POOR PERFORMANCE 

The LGPS regulations provide pension funds with the ability to recover from a scheme 
employer any additional costs associated with the administration of the scheme incurred as a 
result of the poor level of performance of that scheme employer. Where any such additional 
costs are to be recovered by the Fund, written notice will be provided stating: 

• the reasons that the scheme employer’s poor performance contributed to the additional cost; 

• the amount of the additional cost incurred; 

• the basis for calculation of the additional cost; and 

• the provisions of the administration strategy relevant to the decision to give notice. 

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

DRAFT

Page 167



It is the policy of the Fund to recover additional costs incurred in the administration of the 
scheme as a direct result of the poor performance of any scheme employer (including the 
administering authority). With the objective of ensuring fairness across employers in avoiding 
other employers paying more to cover the higher administration costs incurred by others. 

Please note that where an employer fails to pay any amount due to the Fund (other than 
monthly contributions) within 30 days, interest for late payment will be charged accordingly. 
This includes charges and recharges levied under this policy. 

4.4 POTENTIAL IMPACT OF SUB-STANDARD PERFORMANCE

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

Item Impact

Failure to make payment of monthly 
contributions and/or provision of breakdown of 
contributions for reconciliation against payment

The Fund will be unable to prepare cashflow 
information to facilitate the provision of annual 
accounting standards (FRS102, IAS19) by the 
Fund actuary or any other actuarial firm 

Impact on contribution rates set at proceeding 
triennial valuation 

Report to be made to the Pensions Regulator  

Failure to submit monthly data and leaver 
notifications and/or respond to Fund queries 
regarding associated data issues

Inability to produce member benefit statements 

Inaccurate data used in triennial valuation and 
subsequent impact of contribution rates set 

Delays in processing member requests for 
information and calculation of benefits on leaving 

Failure to maintain up to date contact 
information

Communications and important messages 
regarding changes may not be received

Late notification of new contracts to the Fund 
by the employer and/or ceding authority

Potential Trade Union involvement 

Breach of law if contribution deducted and 
agreement not sealed 

Members not covered by Death in Service benefits 

Increased costs due to delay in application being 
received

Failure to comply with McCloud data provisions 
in line with Fund and regulatory requirements

Employer Liabilities may be understated  

Member benefits may be incorrect

Failure to notify the Fund of any Notifiable 
Events

Potential report to the Pension Regulator 

Liabilities are under/over stated resulting in an 
incorrect contributions being paid  

DRAFT

Page 168



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

4.5 CHARGING SCALES FOR ADMINISTRATION 

The table below sets out the charges which the Fund will levy on a scheme employer who 
fails to meet the standards required. Each item is referred to in the ‘Scheme Employer 
Performance Measurement’ section of this document

1 Payment of contributions 

Payment of primary rate contributions 

Payment of monthly employee and employer 
contributions6 in full by the 19th of the following 
month (but by the 22nd of the month where 
payment is made electronically)

£100 per occasion plus interest7 

Thereafter for each working day the 
payment remains late an additional 
charge of £10 will be applied. 

Payment of secondary rate contributions 

Payment of deficit contributions either: 

• In advance at the commencement of each 
scheme year, or; 

• Monthly alongside primary rate contributions 
by the 19th of the following month (but by 
22nd of the month where payment is made 
electronically) 

• In full by 31st October (academies only) 

An election should be made during the triennial 
valuation consultation period regarding the 
method of payment

Interest will be charged in accordance 
with Regulation 71 of the LGPS 
administration regulations, which states 
interest should be charged at Bank of 
England base rate plus one per cent on a 
day to day basis from the due date to the 
date of payment and compounded with 
three monthly rests.

6 Future service contributions including additional contributions, eg, APP and APCs 
7 Interest will be charged in accordance with Regulation 71 of the LGPS administration regulations, which states 

interest should be charged at Bank of England base rate plus one per cent

DRAFT

Page 169



2 Monthly data collection

Timeliness 

Comply with each of the following requirements: 

• Submission of the member data file by 22nd 
of the following  month 

• Submission of the web remittance advice by 
22nd of the following  month

£50 for each month the data file and/or 
web remittance advice is received after 
22nd (ie, both items must be received so 
as to incur no penalty). There after for 
each monthly data file the charge will 
increase as follows: 

• 5p per member8 per working day late 
for the first month following the 
deadline 

• 10p per member8 per working day late 
for the second month following the 
deadline 

• 15p per member8 per working day late 
for the third month following the 
deadline and every month thereafter 

A minimum daily rate will be set at: 

• £5 per day for the first 30 days 
following the deadline 

• £10 per day for the second 30 days 
following the deadline 

• £15 per day for the third 30 days and 
thereafter following the deadline 

Assessment of the overall charge will be 
made in aggregate following year-end 

Data quality9 

Quality of the information provided to be below 
the acceptable tolerance level set at 5% of the 
employer active member count3  

Errors include but not limited to missing 
members, missing new joiner flags, incorrectly 
flagged leavers/TUPE

The Fund will recover costs for the work 
involved to resolve these errors. Costs 
will be based on officer hourly rates and 
will be determined based on the 
resources required to address errors 
above the tolerance in aggregate over a 
12-month period

PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

8 For the purposes of monitoring and the application of charges the active member count will be set as at 1 April of 
the monitoring period (ie, based on the monthly data file for the 1 April in the monitoring period) 

9 A file will be rejected for one or more of the following reasons: 
• Incorrect file layout 
• Data formatting issues, eg, mandatory fields not populated, inclusion of incorrect characters, ie, speech 

marks, etc. 
• The key financials in the data file do not balance with the final statement

DRAFT

Page 170



PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

5 FEEDBACK FROM EMPLOYERS 

Employers who wish to provide feedback on the performance of the Fund against the 
standards in this administration strategy should email comments (noting PAS feedback in the 
email subject) to wmpfemployerliaison2@wolverhampton.gov.uk

3      Other

Bulk amendments 

Bulk member record corrections or 
amendments of member records en masse 
as a result of (but not limited to) employer 
changes, mergers, initiatives, policy 
decisions or prior incorrect notifications

The Fund will recover the cost for the work 
involved based on officer hourly rates

Incorrect Scheme Member cases 

Incorrect admission to the Fund where the 
member was eligible to join and should 
have been offered alterative pension 
scheme membership (eg, TPS, USS)

A charge of £250 for each incorrectly admitted 
member plus recovery of the work involved 
based on officer time

Leaver Rollbacks 

Incorrect submission of an S4 leaver 
notification where the member has either, 
not left or has been subject to TUPE

A charge of £50 for each incorrectly submitted 
leaver notification plus recovery of the cost for 
the work involved based on officer hourly rates 
where there are additional effects on 
processing (such as the reversal of 
aggregations)

Provision of Replacement member ABS 

Provision of replacement ABS due to 
submission of incorrect FTE resulting in 
inaccurate member ABS being produced as 
part of the annual cycle

A charge of £250 for each occasion plus 
recovery of the cost for the work involved 
based on officer hourly rates.

Other rectification work 

Any other significant work the Fund is 
required to carry out in order to rectify 
errors caused a result of employer error

The Fund will recover the cost for the work 
involved based on officer hourly rates.  

DRAFT

Page 171

mailto:wmpfemployerliaison2@wolverhampton.gov.uk


PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY POLICY STATEMENT  • MAY 2021

West Midlands Pension Fund 
PO Box 3948 
Wolverhampton 
WV1 1XP 
 
 

DRAFT

Page 172



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 
Recommendation for noting: 

 
1. The Pensions Committee is asked to note the report, prepared annually in order to meet 

the legislative requirement for recording the work of the Local Pensions Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

  
Report title Annual Report of the Local Pensions Board 
  

Originating service Pensions Services 

Accountable employee Rachel Howe 
Tel 
Email 

Head of Governance and Corporate Services 
01902 55 2091 
Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
  

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood  Director of Pensions 
Tel:                          01902 55 1715 
Email:                      Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk            

  
 

Page 173

Agenda Item No: 11

mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1  To inform the Committee on the work undertaken by the Local Pensions Board (“the 

Board”) during the 2020-21 municipal year and to meet the legislative requirement for 
producing an annual report.  

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 introduced the requirement to have a Local 

Pensions Board to assist in the good governance of the scheme.   
 
2.2  The West Midlands Pension Fund created and implemented the Local Pensions Board 

ahead of the deadline of the 1 April 2015 and has since developed an appropriate 
training programme and annual workplan in consideration of matters relevant to the Fund 
and the role of the Board.  

 
3.0 Board Membership 
 
3.1 During the democratic year the Board saw some movement in its membership with 

vacancies emerging for three member representatives and one employer representative. 
 
3.2 The vacancy for the Unite member representative seat, which became available in 

October 2020 has been filled, with the nomination confirmed at the Board meeting 27 

April 2021. Following recent engagement from GMB, they have confirmed a nomination 
to their vacant member representative seat, which is due to be established at the next 
Board meeting, 20 July 2021. 

 
3.3 The vacancy for the admitted-body employer representative has been filled, with the 

nomination confirmed at the Board meeting 26 January 2021. 
 

3.4 The Fund undertook its annual nomination process for the Board in May 2021. As there 
remained natural vacancies for member representative seats, no annual nomination 
process was required. The annual nomination cycle for employer representatives 
concluded that the academy representative seat, currently held by the Board Chair Joe 
McCormick, was due for nomination. The nomination process has commenced with new 
appointments to be confirmed at the first Board meeting of the municipal year.  

  
4.0 Training 
 
4.1 The Fund has offered a number of virtual training opportunities for Board members 

where possible, to maximise attendance and to support the delivery of topics relevant to 
the reporting that the Board receive.  

 
4.2  The Fund also endeavoured to deliver joint training opportunities alongside the Pensions 

Committee to strengthen relationships across the two governing bodies. During the 
2020/21 year, in addition to the Fund’s Mid-Year Review and AGM, the Board were 
invited to attend a Responsible Investment Summit held by the Fund’s Investment 

Page 174



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

Pooling Company, LGPS Central, as well as joint training events hosted by the Fund in 
October 2020, February 2021 and March 2021. The Fund will look to continue this 
collaborative training during the 2021-22 year, as well as considering methods of training, 
to support all member’s needs. 

 
4.3 This year, the Fund has looked to offer a wider range of training opportunities to its 

governing bodies, to reflect continued good governance requirements as well as to 
support training during restrictions due to the Covid-19 pandemic. These initiatives 
included regular briefing notes in areas such as regulatory change and responsible 
investment, as well as a dedicated SharePoint site available to both Pensions Committee 
and Local Pensions Board members, which hosts governance documents, handbooks, 
and training materials. 

 
4.4 All members are encouraged to meet their training target to ensure that they obtain the 

relevant knowledge and skills required to undertake their role on the Board. Attached in 
Appendix A is a copy of the 2020/21 individual training hours recorded for members of 
the Board as at 30 April 2021.  

 
5.0 Reports of the Pension Board 
 
5.1 During 2020/21 the Board did not refer any matter to the Pensions Committee and 

continued its focus on Customer Engagement, Risk Management, Service Development, 
Investment Governance as well as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Board 
considered customer engagement and service provision during the pandemic, working 
with officers to ensure support and information was available to members, as well as 
working with Fund’s employers to support and understand their individual challenges in 
light of the pandemic.  

 
5.2  The Board also considered the impact of LGPS regulatory changes on the Fund, 

continuing to engage with their respective groups on these issues and regularly informing 
their counterparts on key messages of the Fund, including the changes being 
implemented to ensure continued compliance with regulation.  

 
5.3  Throughout the year, the Board considered reports on the following topics: 
 

 Customer Engagement 

 Pensions Administration 

 Governance and Assurance, including monitoring of Key Performance Indicators 
and Risk Management 

 Covid-19 Impact 

 Impact of changes to regulations  

 Service Development 

 Funding Management 

 Responsible Investment and Climate Change  

 Investment Governance 
 
 
 
 

Page 175



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 
 
6.0 National Governance Developments  
 
6.1  A number of governance programmes progressed at a national level, notably the 

publication of Phase 3 of the Scheme Advisory Board’s Good Governance Report and 
the publication of the Pension’s Regulator’s (tPR) draft Single Code of Practice, both of 
which place heightened reporting requirements on LGPS Funds, ensuring accountability 
for their working practices.    

 
7.0 Reports of the Pension Board 
 
7.1  In line with its Regulatory duty, the national Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) has every 

year since 2013 produced its Scheme Annual Report highlighting national averages in 
areas such as investment returns, asset allocation, funding and governance. 

 
7.2 The SAB produces its report based on published annual report and accounts of the 

LGPS Funds across England and Wales. It is therefore produced retrospectively each 
year. This latest report highlights the aggregated position from the 2020 reports and 
provides a useful point of reference for a variety of stakeholders.  

 
7.3 The LGPS Highlights for 2020 as noted by SAB include; 

 The total membership of the LGPS grew by 261,000 (4.2%) to 6.16m members in 
2020 from 5.89m in 2019 

 The total number of LGPS employers in 2020 was over 16,307 as compared 
with 15,597 for 2019 (an increase of 4.6%) 

 The total assets of the LGPS decreased to £276bn (change of -4.9%) during 
2020 

 The net investment return on these assets (after fees) as at 31 March 2020 was -
4.8% compared with +6.2% in 2019. The 2020 figure reflecting less stable 
financial market conditions than in 2018/2019 

 The scheme held a positive cash-flow position in 2020 

 The most recent Scheme funding level, aggregated across local valuations, was 
98% (2019 valuation) 

7.4  In comparison, the Fund’s highlights for the year to 31 March 2020 show; 

 The total membership grew from 323,795 to 333,934 (3.1%) 

 Employers increased from 673 to 704 (4.6%) 

 The Fund’s total assets decreased from £15.7 billion to £15.3 billion (-2.6%), 
reflecting less stable financial market conditions, largely due to the impact of 
Covid-19 in March 2020 

 The Fund’s local funding level was 94% (2019 valuation) 

7.5 Throughout the year, the Scheme Advisory Board has issued a number of 
communications reporting on the outcomes of their meetings and delivery of their own 
workplan all of which have been presented to the Local Pension Board and Committee in 
update reports at formal meetings, through training events or communication round-ups.   

Page 176



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 
8.0  Costs  
 
8.1 The cost of operating and supporting the Local Pensions Board is absorbed into the 

Fund Governance Budget and existing officer workload.  
 
8.2 To support the work of the Scheme Advisory Board, all LGPS Funds are required to pay 

a levy based on membership numbers. For 2020/21 that levy was £25,479 (excluding 
VAT), which the Fund has paid as due.  

 
9.0 Forward Plan for 2021/2022 
 
9.1  In considering the work of the Board going forward to ensure the continued good 

governance of the scheme, areas of focus for 2021/22 will continue to be focused around 
Effective Governance, Customer Engagement and Communication, Data Management 
and Service Development, to ensure the Fund is able to adapt and respond to the 
changing demands of service from its customers and to the changing regulatory 
landscape of the LGPS. The Board themselves may also add items as they review the 
Fund’s governance in line with their statutory duty. 

 
9.2 The Board will also continue to monitor delivery of the Fund’s Corporate Plan 2021 – 26, 

having supported the Pensions Committee and officers to shape the goals and objectives 
of the Fund developing its areas of focus to support the achievement of those goals, as 
outlined below. 

 Outward looking, supporting in a Fund wide governance review in response to 
statutory changes  

 Accessible information and support, through effective customer engagement 
programmes using their roles on representative bodies to support messaging 

 Responsible asset owner and employer, working with the Pensions Committee to 
develop investment governance and stewardship reporting 

 Place of opportunity and people development, champion helping to promote the 
region at national/industry events 

 Active participation in Fund events and issues through engagement in training and 
development  

 Taking informed action with own representative bodies to support the work of the 
Fund  

 Instilling confidence through transparency ensuring accountability in the Fund’s 
actions and its reporting 

 
10.0 Financial Implications  
 
10.1 As outlined in the report.  
 
11.0 Legal implications 
 
11.1 The Fund is required to have a Local Pensions Board as set out in the Public Service 

Pensions Act 2013 which also required the Fund to produce an annual report on the work 
of the Board. 

 

Page 177



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 
12.0 Equalities implications 
 
12.1 There are no direct equalities implications.  
 
13.0 All other implications 
 
13.1 There are no other direct implications to consider. 
 
14.0 Schedule of background papers 
 
14.1 Scheme Advisory Board, Good Governance Report (Phase 3) 
 https://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Good_Governance_Final_Report_February_2021.pdf  
 
14.2 Scheme Advisory Board, Annual Report 2020 

https://lgpsboard.org/index.php/schemedata/scheme-annual-report  
 
14.3  Scheme Advisory Board meeting papers are available on their website. 

www.lgpsboard.org.uk 
 
14.4 tPR Single Code of Practice (full draft) 
 https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-

/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/full-draft-new-code-of-practice.ashx  
 
15.0 Schedule of appendices  
 
15.1 Appendix A: Local Pensions Board Training Hours  
 
 
 

Page 178

https://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Good_Governance_Final_Report_February_2021.pdf
https://lgpsboard.org/index.php/schemedata/scheme-annual-report
http://www.lgpsboard.org.uk/
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/full-draft-new-code-of-practice.ashx
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/full-draft-new-code-of-practice.ashx


MEMBERS SEAT START DATE TARGET TOTAL
Sharon Campion Member 01/04/2015 22.00 22.75
Jacqueline Carman Employer 01/04/2018 22.00 9.00
Stan Ruddock Member 01/01/2020 22.00 30.00
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal Employer 02/07/2019 22.00 21.50
Mark Smith Employer 01/01/2021 11.00 18.00
Paul Johnson Employer 01/04/2017 22.00 24.00
Ian Martin Employer 01/06/2019 22.00 15.00
Joe McCormick Employer 01/04/2015 22.00 36.50
Adrian Turner Member 01/04/2015 22.00 35.50

TOTAL 187.00 212.25
*membership at 30/04/2021

SUMMARY OF PENSION BOARD TRAINING HOURS 2020-2021*

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The internal audit annual report for 2020 – 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

  
Report title Internal Audit Plan Annual Report 2020 – 2021 
  

Originating service Pensions Services  

Accountable employee Amanda MacDonald  

Tel 

Email 

Client Lead Auditor 

01902 55 0411 

Amanda.macdonald@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Rachel Brothwood       Director of Pensions 

Tel 01902 55 1715 

Email Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 181

Agenda Item No: 12

mailto:Amanda.macdonald@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

1.1 To provide the Committee with the outcome of the work programme for internal audit for 

2020 – 2021. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 The role of internal audit is to provide the Director of Pensions, Section 151 Officer, the 

Pensions Committee and the Local Pensions Board with an independent and objective 

opinion on the Fund’s risk management, internal controls and governance and its 

effectiveness in achieving the Fund’s agreed objectives. In order to provide this opinion, 

we are required to review the risk management and governance process.  

 

3.0 Internal Audit Annual Report 2020 – 2021 

 

3.1  A copy of the outcome report is attached at Appendix A. 

 

3.2  The report confirms that no significant audit issues have arisen throughout the year and 

most importantly, where identified weaknesses / improvements have been identified 

during the course of audit work, management have agreed recommendations. 

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 Internal audit is a key part of the Fund’s governance and financial control framework, and 

seeks to provide assurance that the Fund’s systems, processes and controls are 

operating effectively and in support of the Fund’s overall aims and objectives.  

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 This report contains no direct legal implications.  

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 This report contains no equalities implications.  

 

7.0 Environmental implications 

 

7.1 This report contains no environmental implications.  

 

8.0 All other implications 

 

8.1 This report contains no other implications to consider.  

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

10.1 None. 

 

11.0 Schedule of appendices  

Page 182



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

11.1 Appendix A – Annual Audit Report 2020 - 2021 

 

 

 

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

West Midlands Pension Fund 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2020-2021  

 
 

 

WMPF 2019-20  
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

NEED A PICTURE ?? 

 

Awaiting MW – d&b data  

 

??? Info on nfi work from MW 

 

Page 185



 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Internal Audit Annual 
 Report 2020-2021 

 

 
1. Introduction 

Our internal audit work for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 was carried out in 

accordance with the approved Internal Audit Plan. The plan was constructed in such a way 
as to allow us to make a statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Fund’s 
governance, risk management and control processes. In this way our annual report provides 
one element of evidence that helps to confirm the control environment of the Fund. This is 
only one aspect of the assurances available to the Fund as to the adequacy of governance, 
risk management and control processes. Other sources of assurance on which the Fund may 
rely, include:  
 

• The work of the External Auditors (Grant Thornton) 

• The result of any quality accreditation 

• Other pieces of consultancy or third- party work designed to alert the Fund to areas of 
improvement 

• Other external review agencies  

• Internal compliance  
 

As stated above, the framework of assurance comprises a variety of sources and not only the 
internal audit service. However, internal audit holds a unique role as the only independent 
source of assurance on all internal controls. Internal audit is therefore central to this 
framework of assurance and is required to acquire an understanding not only of the Fund’s 
risks and its overall whole control environment but also all sources of assurance where 
appropriate. In this way, internal audit will be able to indicate whether key controls are 
adequately designed and effectively operated, regardless of the sources of that assurance.  
 

The definition of internal audit, as described in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, 
is “Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations.  It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes”. 

 
Internal audit activity is organisationally independent and further details behind the 
framework within which internal audit operates, can be found in the internal audit charter. 
 
Executive Summary 

As the providers of internal audit to the Fund, we are required to provide the Director, Section 

151 Officer, Pensions Committee and Board with an opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Fund’s governance, risk management and control processes. In giving 
our opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most that internal 
audit can provide is reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in 
governance, risk management and control processes. We have considered: 
 

• All audits undertaken for the year ended 31 March 2021. 

• Any follow-up action taken in respect of audits from previous periods. 

• Any key recommendations not accepted by management and the consequent risks. 

• Any limitations which may have been placed on the scope of internal audit. 

• The Fund’s Strategic Risk Register. 
 

  

Page 186



 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Internal Audit Annual 
 Report 2020-2021 

 

 

Internal Audit Opinion 

We have conducted our audits in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
Within the context of the parameters set out above, our opinion is as follows: 

 

Based on the work undertaken during the year, the implementation by management of the 
recommendations made and the assurance made available to the Fund by other providers 
as well as directly by internal audit, internal audit can provide reasonable assurance that 
the Fund has adequate and effective governance, risk management and internal control 
processes. 

 
In reaching our opinion, the following factors were taken into particular consideration: 

• We have had unfettered access to all records and employees during 2020-2021.  

• The need for management to plan appropriate and timely action to implement our 
and other assurance providers’ recommendations. 

• Key areas of significance identified as a result of our audit work performed in the 
year. 
 

 Compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
   

 

The internal audit service follows the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards, and the Code of Ethics that form 
part of the standards, as laid out in the internal audit 
charter approved by the City of Wolverhampton Council’s 
Audit and Risk Committee.   

  

Summary of work completed 

A detailed written report and action plan is prepared and issued for every review where 
appropriate. We discuss the report with managers and agree recommendations and target 
implementation dates.  

Further, an audit opinion is provided for each report issued, this sets out our overall opinion 
regarding the control environment for the area audited. Three opinions are provided: 

Limited Satisfactory Substantial 

There is a risk of objectives 
not being met due to serious 
control failings. 

 

A framework of controls is in 
place, but controls need to 
be strengthened further. 

There is a robust 
framework of controls 
which are applied 
continuously.  

Page 187



 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Internal Audit Annual 
 Report 2020-2021 

 

 
2. Summary of work undertaken  

 

Planned audit reviews 

The following audit reviews were completed during the 2020-2021 financial year. 

 

Audits Completed 
AAN 

Rating 

             Recommendations 
Level of 

assurance Red Amber Green Total 
Number 
accepted 

Cyber security High - 3 6 9 9 Satisfactory 

Risk management  - 
governance 

High - - 5 5 5 Satisfactory 

Risk management  - 
investments 

 High - - 4 4 4 Satisfactory 

GDPR High - - 7 7 7 Satisfactory 

GMP High - - 3 3 3 Substantial 

Transfers Out High - - 3 3 3 Substantial 

 
Cyber Security  

We reviewed the Fund’s procedures to ensure compliance with the Pension Regulator’s new 
single code of practice.  A framework of controls governing cyber security was found to be in 
place.  Main systems operate on a network provided by CWC which is subject to external 
reviews and accreditation. Advice and expertise was provided through CWC’s IT Team, who 
also perform vulnerability scanning and penetration testing, provide reports and any remedial 
activities that need to be progressed. 
 
Further, cyber risks are considered as part of risk management. However, we found that the 
cyber security policy was in draft format and required updating to reflect current arrangements. 
Further the service level agreement with CWC required review. Assurance regarding the 
security of external providers systems was not routinely obtained. Also, in accordance with the 
Pension Regulator’s requirements, we recommended the development of a digital cyber map 
for the Fund’s digital footprint which will identify where data travels (internally and externally) 
and is stored to determine vulnerabilities, the impact of breaches and the value of data to 
criminals. The establishment of a whole Fund wide incident response plan in liaison with CWC 
has  also been agreed . 
 
Recommendations were also made regarding system logon and permission rights, the 
development of a planned cyber security training and consideration of any insurance 
vulnerabilities.     
All recommendations were accepted by Fund management and agreed implementation dates 
provided. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 188



 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Internal Audit Annual 
 Report 2020-2021 

 

 
Risk Management – Governance  

The Fund recently revised its approach to risk management and our review focused upon new 
procedures which were developed in order to ascertain compliance with CIPFA’s publication 
Managing Risk in Local Government Pension Scheme.  During the course of our work we 
confirmed that the operational approach was consistent with the publication, and risk 
management information was presented to Trustees.  This included new risks, changes to risks 
and horizon scanning for potential new risks. The risk identification process used a range of 
sources to inform the risk process and was found to be well integrated into business activity. 
 

However, we found that not all supporting documents and procedures had yet been 
developed. Overall, it was difficult to identify a “clear thread” regarding Risk Management 
across Fund documents. A risk management policy setting out the approach to risk across the 
Fund had yet to be prepared. Further, there was an absence of a framework document for 
non-investment activities to support the policy. All recommendations have been accepted by 
management. 

  

Risk Management - Investments 

The Fund has developed an Investment Risk and Assurance Framework, which identified the 
investment governance structure and how the Fund manage and monitor investment 
risks.  This audit assessed the framework against key areas identified in CIPFA’s publication 
Managing Risk in the Local Government Pension Scheme.  We found a high level of 
knowledge demonstrated by staff regarding investment risks and appropriate risks 
were included in the Investment Strategy Statement.  
 
However, the guidance had not been fully integrated into the framework, it was therefore 
difficult to evidence and assess the Fund’s overall response to investment risks as stated in 
the CIPFA publication. Recommendations have been made and agreed to ensure the 
measures required by CIPFA are documented.   
 
 
GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) 

This review sought assurance that the GDPR Requirements had been fully embedded within 
Fund procedures, including the effectiveness of the data champion role. From our review, we 
noted that the Fund had robust processes in place and had continued to make improvements 
around data protection and employees’ understanding of the area.  
Some enhancements were recommended, in particular, the Fund should  complete all of the 
relevant Information Commissioner Office checklists, to assess overall compliance with all data 
protection regulations.  
 
GMP  (Guaranteed Minimum Pension) 

We reviewed the procedures adopted for stage two of the process, ensuring a robust 
reconciliation and associated investigation of discrepancies was applied between members’ 
records held on internal systems and the data provided by HMRC.  We found appropriate 
evidence to confirm good practice in the management of the process.   
 

This included the identification of external resources to assist in the delivery of the Stage 2 
Reconciliation. Regular progress reports were received from the external provider and the 
contracted service was delivered at the cost agreed.  Further, controls were evidenced to ensure 

Page 189



 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Internal Audit Annual 
 Report 2020-2021 

 

that the external provider did not make incorrect decisions on behalf of the Fund. Also, the Fund 
received case samples to check and approve where a reconciliation proposal was made by the 
provider. 
 
Three minor administrative recommendations were agreed with management to further enhance 
procedures. 

 

Transfers Out 

Our review found that procedures for dealing with Transfer Out requests were being dealt with in 
accordance with the Voluntary Code for Combatting Pension Fraud produced by the 
Pensions Scam Industry Group. Processes and procedures in place met best practice advice. 
Training and awareness were taken very seriously and were updated to take account of the 
common warning signs of a potential scam. Regular checks were made on the Financial Services 
Register (FCA) and The Pension Regulators’ (TPR) website for warning signs of a scam. There 
was also guidance and warning information on the Fund website. Further, the Transfer Out 
election member letter had been updated to include the additional risks since Covid-19. We 
identified some minor issues and made appropriate recommendations to further enhance risk 
control and operational efficiency.    
 
 
Follow up of previous recommendations  

We also continue to monitor the implementation of previous key recommendations, and an 

annual review of agreed key actions from reviews is undertaken and reported to management. 
From our review, we have updated two recommendations where issues have not yet been 
addressed.   It is acknowledged that management were aware of these issues but, due to the 
unprecedented year resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic and the additional work this caused 
the issues that remain outstanding were as follows: 

• Accounts Receivable – an updated debt policy was required which should also provide an 

approach for dealing with older debts.  

• Treasury Management – a policy to support the management of treasury management 
activity was also required. 
 

Progress on the implementation of these recommendations will be reviewed as part of ongoing 
internal audit work. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 190



 

 

 wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Internal Audit Annual 
 Report 2020-2021 

 

 

LGPSC Assurance Work  

LGPSC (Local Government Pension Scheme Central)   is the company owned by WMPF and 
partner funds, to manage the pooled assets of the eight midlands Local Government Pensions 
Schemes. As a member of the Internal Audit Working Group, the following work has also been 
completed during the year. 

 

Work Completed Details 

LGPSC Ltd Internal 
Controls Progress 
Report.  
 

A review of LGPSC Ltd self-assessment of the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of controls within the 
company.  

AAF review ( Audit and 
assurance faculty)  

Review of the company interim AAF 01/06  report  produced by 
independent external auditors.  This did not identify any significant 
issues. 

Review of the LGPS 
Governance Report  

We reviewed the report produced by Shropshire County Council 
which assessed the governance arrangements for the pool. A 
‘’Good’ level of assurance was provided. 
 

Internal Audit Working 
Group 

Continued membership and participation in the partner fund 
internal audit working group. 

 
 
On-going assurance work  

Counter Fraud Activities 

We continue to act as the Fund’s key contact for the National Fraud Initiative along with providing 
details of initiatives put in place, in order to both raise awareness of, and tackle fraud.  Fund data 
was submitted to the NFI  in October 2020 and results returned in January 2021, we are currently 
working with the Fund to investigate the results and ensure appropriate action is taken.  
 

      
    Consultancy and advice work  

In addition to the planned audits completed in the year, we have also been involved in consultancy 

and advice projects, and  as part of our ongoing support to the Fund, we completed 23 credit 
checks using  Credit Safe LTD to review individual organisations financial stability when seeking 
admission to the Fund.  
 

 

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The quarterly accounts for the period ending 31 March 2021 which estimate the value of 

West Midlands Pension Fund at this date to be £18.9 billion, an increase of £3.6 billion 

(23%) since 31 March 2021. 

 
2. The Fund out-turn for 2020/21 against the operating budget for the year, noting the 

underspend in Fund management costs and increased disclosure of investment 

management costs over the year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 
 

  
Report title Budget Monitoring 2020/2021 and Quarterly 

Accounts 31 March 2021 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Darshan Singh 

Tel 

Email 

Head of Finance                                    

01902 55 2768 

darshan.singh@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Rachel Brothwood      

Tel                               

Email                          

 

Director of Pensions 

01902 55 1715 

rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Page 193

Agenda Item No: 13

mailto:darshan.singh@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Pensions Committee on the out-turn for the year 

against operating budgets as at the end of March 2021.  

 

1.2 The operating budget for the year to 31 March 2021 was approved by Committee in 

March 2020.   

 

2.0 Forecast Out-turn against Operating Budget 2020/2021 

 

2.1 The following table sets out the forecast out-turn compared with the Fund’s operating 

budget as at the end of the financial year 2020/2021: 

 

2.2   

  Budget 

2019/20 

Budget 

2020/21 

Out-turn 

2020/21 

Variance 

Out-turn 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Employees 7,358  9,066 6,935  (2,131) 

Premises 302  300 295  (5)  

Transport 37  38 15  (23) 

Other Supplies and Services 430  437 382  (55) 

Service Development 949  1,027 340  (687) 

Professional Fees 1,484 1,552 1,396  (156)  

Communications and Computing 585  613 549  (64) 

Support Services 634  723 686  (37)  

Miscellaneous Income (584) (595) (438) 157  

Net Expenditure 11,195  13,161 10,160  (3,001) 

External Investment Management 

Costs 73,836  77,970 95,397  17,427  

LGPS Central Charges 4,669  4,949 4,693  (257)  

Total External Investment Costs 78,505 82,919 100,090 17,171 

Total 89,700  96,080 110,250  14,170  

 *There may be slight differences due to rounding. 

 

2.3 Budget monitoring reports to Committee during the past year already anticipated an 

underspend on staffing due to challenges posed to recruitment by the Covid-19 

pandemic. Recruitment activity restarted to some degree from quarter three onwards and 

continues into 2021 however, a number of roles envisaged at the outset of the 2020/21 

budgeting process together with posts which have become available due to natural 

turnover, were not/will not be filled until after the end of the current budget year.  

 

 

 

Page 194



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

These delays in recruiting to vacant posts contributed to an overall underspend on 

employees of £2.1m. Included in this underspend is £0.6m across all budgeted posts on 

employer’s pension contributions arising due to a reduction in the actual rate paid during 

the year, with the rate finalised as part of the 2019 Actuarial Valuation, after the WMPF 

budget for 2020/21 had already been set. The employee underspend in turn reduced 

associated computing and ICT support costs from the numbers originally budgeted for in 

March 2020. 

 

2.4 Resulting from the pandemic and associated lockdown restrictions, the Fund has 

underspends on transport, training and conference activities in comparison to the levels 

originally budgeted for. These are reflected in the “transport” and “other supplies and 

services” summary budget lines. For the same reasons service development is 

underspent by £0.6m as delivery of a number of projects and initiatives has had to be 

carried forward to 2021/2022, most notably, allowance for further phases of the Digital 

Transformation Project to enhance functionality of the Fund’s administration systems, 

work in developing the Fund’s website,  improving and expanding the Fund’s data 

management capabilities and review of the investment recording and reporting systems.  

Professional fees were lower than budget with savings on actuarial fees, legal fees and 

covenant work from reduction in activity for part of the year and efficiency savings arising 

from the 2019/2020 merger with the WMITA Fund.  

 

2.5 Reported external investment management costs as shown in 2.2 above and disclosed in 

the Fund’s 2020/2021 draft Statement of Accounts are £100.1m which is above the 

estimate at the start of year based on prior year cost data collection. Part of the increase 

is a consequence of the gains in the value of the Fund’s invested assets over the year as 

investment fees calculated by reference to the valuation of assets under management 

will be higher as this value grows.  However, the most significant driver of change is the 

increased disclosure and reporting of investment management costs deducted at source 

by the Fund’s investment managers.  These include reported costs of transitions and 

transactions undertaken by both the Fund (on transfer between investment mandates) 

and by investment managers (on transactions within investment mandates) during the 

year. 

 

2.6 Further commentary on the analysis and reporting on investment management costs 

during the year is included with the paper to the Committee on the Statement of 

Accounts. 

 

2.7 It should be noted that actual investment management costs are heavily influenced by 

market movements and investment performance and are therefore expected to fluctuate 

during the year and between years. Portfolio changes during the year and asset 

allocation or strategic changes will also impact the development of costs over time.. 

 
2.8 LGPS Central Limited management costs have come in slightly lower (£257k) than 

budgeted due to similar COVID-19 impacts slowing down expenditure on employees 

during 2020/21 together with some savings realised by the Company on implementation 

of new risk and client reporting systems.  

Page 195



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

2.9 The majority of investment management costs and fees are deducted at source by fund 

managers. Total investment management costs of £100.8m can be broken down as 

follows: 

 

  

Actual 
2019/20 

Budget 
2020/21 

Actual 
2020/21 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

External Costs:       

-       Invoiced 10,476 9,678 14,827 

-       Deducted at Source 67,180 68,292 80,570 

-       LGPS Central  4,022 4,949 4,693 

Total External Investment Management 
Costs 

81,678 82,919 100,090 

Internal Investment Management Costs 860 1,261 760 

 

Total Investment Management Costs 

 

82,538 84,180 100,850 

 

2.10 Investment costs remain a key consideration throughout the Fund’s investment decision 

making and the Fund continues to review and seek opportunities for cost reduction 

where these can be achieved on implementation without impacting risk or expected 

return. 

2.11  Cost-per-member is used as a measure of pension schemes’ cost-effectiveness but does 

not necessarily reflect the level of service provided to employers or scheme members.  

The following table sets out the forecast cost-per-member compared to budget using the 

three standard headings specified by CIPFA: administration, oversight and governance 

and investment management costs. The out-turn represents a decrease on budget from 

£34.91 per member to £28.05 with disclosed investment management costs relative to 

assets under management emerging at 0.54% in line with 2019/2020 as a result of the 

growth in asset valuation offsetting the impact of increased cost disclosure within this 

measure. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 196



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

 

 

2.12 The Fund, like all public-sector bodies, remains cost-conscious and keeps its operating 

costs and procedures under constant review. 

  

3.0 Quarterly Accounts – West Midlands Pension Fund 

 

3.1 Appendix A provides a Fund Account for the final quarter ending 31 March 2021 together 

with a Net Assets Statement as at that date. 

 

3.2 The Net Assets Statement estimates a value for the Fund at 31 March 2021 of £18.9 

billion. This is an increase of £3.6 billion (23%) from the 31 March 2020 value shown in 

last year’s accounts. 

  
2019/20 
Actual  

2020/21 
Budget 

2020/21 
Actual  

Total Administration Costs (£000) 6,067  7,710 6,268  

Administration Cost per Member 
(£) 18.17  22.62 18.70  

        

Total Oversight and Governance 
Costs (£000) 2,869  4,190 3,133  

Oversight and Governance Cost 
per Member (£) 8.59  12.29 9.35  

        

Number of Members 333,934  340,903 335,101  

        

Total Administration, Oversight 
and Governance cost per 
Member (£) 26.76  34.91 28.05  

        

Total Investment Management Costs (£000) 82,538  84,180 100,850  

Investment Management Cost per Member (£) 247.17  246.93  300.95  

Investment Management Costs as a Percentage of 
Forecast Net Assets 0.54% 0.50% 0.54% 

Page 197



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

 

There are two main reasons for this increase.  

  

- Investment markets experienced sharp falls in the last few weeks of the prior 

financial year due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown of 

economies around the world and the valuation of the Fund’s investments was 

therefore, some £1.4bn lower than had originally been forecast for end of March 

2020. Global investment markets have since made significant recoveries over 

2020/2021 pushing valuations back up to and beyond pre-COVID levels. 

 

- Following the actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2019, some employers chose to pay 

their full 2020/2021 – 2022/2023 future service and past service deficit contributions 

as a lump sum before the end of April 2020 and these payments were accounted for 

in full in the first quarter of this year. 

  

3.3 The Fund’s 2020/2021 Statement of Accounts is currently subject to external audit review 

and initial commentary is included as another report at this Committee. 

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 The financial implications are discussed in the body of the report. 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 This report contains no direct legal implications. 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 This report has no direct equalities implications. 

 

 

15.3

17.4 17.8
18.7 18.9

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

31 March 2020 30 June 2020 30 September
2020

31 December
2020

31 March 2021

West Midlands Pension Fund - Total Fund Value £bn

Page 198



This report is PUBLIC (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

 

 

7.0 All other implications 

 

7.1 This report has no other direct implications. 

 

8.0  Schedule of background papers 

 

8.1  Budget Monitoring 2020/2021 and Quarterly Accounts to 31 December 2020, Report to 

Pensions Committee, 24 March 2021 

  

9.0 Schedule of appendices 

 

9.1 Appendix A: West Midlands Pension Fund Quarterly Accounts to 31 March 2021 

 

 

 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Fund Account

 2019/20  2020/21 

 £m  £m 

Contributions & Benefits

353.2                        Contributions Receivable 1,182.7                        

31.2                          Transfers In 22.3                             

14.3                          Other Income 13.9                             

398.7                        Total contributions and other income 1,218.9                        

(637.8)                       Benefits Payable (646.8)                          

(40.0)                         Payments To and On Account of Leavers (31.0)                            

(0.9)                           Other Payments (0.4)                              

(678.7)                       Total benefits and other expenditure (678.2)                          

(280.0)                       Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members 540.7                           

(91.5)                         Management expenses (110.2)                          

491.7                        Transfer in of WMITA Fund at market value -                               

Returns on Investments

178.2                        Investment Income 84.8                             

(745.1)                       Changes in Value of Investments 3,123.8                        

20.7                          Revaluation of bulk annuity insurance buy-in contract (14.1)                            

(546.2)                       Net return on investments 3,194.5                        

(426.0)                       Net (decrease)/increase in the Fund during the year 3,625.0                        

15,714.1                   Net Assets of the Fund at the beginning of the year 15,288.1                      

15,288.1                   Net Assets of the Fund at the end of the year 18,913.1                      

WEST MIDLANDS PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

1Page 201



Appendix A

Net Assets Statement

31 March 2020 31 March 2021

£m £m

Investment Assets (at Market Value)

494.0                        Bonds 508.4                           

28.9                          UK Equities 27.0                             

1,408.8                     Overseas Equities 2,567.5                        

10,869.9                   Pooled Investment Vehicles 13,640.8                      

965.1                        Property (Direct) 1,014.0                        

11.7                          Derivatives - Futures -                               

-                            Derivatives - Forward Foreign Exchange 3.1                               

582.5                        Foreign Currency Holdings 399.6                           

569.6                        Cash Deposits 498.2                           

75.8                          Other Investment Assets                                                            19.2                             

7.0                            Outstanding Dividend Entitlement and Recoverable With-Holding Tax 7.5                               

15,013.3                   Investment Assets 18,685.3                      

Investment Liabilities (at Market Value)

-                            Derivatives - Futures (2.3)                              

(76.8) Derivatives -  Forward Foreign Exchange -                               

(76.8) Investment Liabilities (2.3)                              

14,936.5 Net Investment Assets 18,683.0 

229.4                        Bulk annuity insurance buy-in policy 200.0 

14.5                          Long-term Debtors 10.2 

132.4                        Current Assets 40.4 

(24.7) Current Liabilities (20.5)

15,288.1 Net Assets of the Fund at the end of the year 18,913.1 

WEST MIDLANDS PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2Page 202



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 

1. The global market and investment update paper prepared by the Fund’s Investment 

Consultant, Redington (appendix A). 

 

2. Asset Allocation and Performance Reporting for the West Midlands Pension Fund 

(WMPF), Main Fund and Admitted Body Sub Funds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

  
Report title Quarterly Investment Report to 31 March 2021  

 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Tom Davies  

Tel 

Email 

Assistant Director, Investment Strategy 

01902 55 8867 

Tom.davies@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Rachel Brothwood 

Tel 

Email 

 

 

Director of Pensions 

01902 55 1715 

rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk   

 

Page 203

Agenda Item No: 14

mailto:Tom.davies@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1  The investment report covers developments in investment markets, asset allocation and 

investment performance over the latest quarter in relation to the West Midlands Pension 

Fund (Main Fund and Admitted Body Sub Funds). Supporting responsible investment 

activities are covered in a separate paper.  

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 This paper aims to bring together routine investment matters relevant to the management 

and implementation of the Fund’s investment strategy and related policies: 

  

I. The economic and market background environment in which the Fund operates 

and the outlook for different asset classes. 

 

II. WMPF’s investment strategy is outlined in the Investment Strategy Statement 

(ISS) and set in conjunction with the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) to target a 

return over the long term to deliver the asset values required to meet benefit 

payments due to members. The Strategic Investment Allocation Benchmark 

(SIAB) forms part of the ISS and includes the target asset allocation and the levels 

of returns investment policies will be benchmarked against.  

 

III. This report provides separate commentary on the Main Fund and Admitted Body 

Sub Funds (ABSF), established for former employers of the West Midlands 

Integrated Transport Authority Pension Fund, West Midlands Transport Limited 

(WMTL) and Preston Bus (PB). 

 

IV. This report refers to Fund positioning against previous ISS and SIAB policy 

targets. These were refreshed as part of the 2020 ISS review and later re-

confirmed in the interim 2021 review, approved by the Pensions Committee in 

March 2021. Implementation of the ISS updates is underway and will see the 

Fund transition to new strategic policy targets, designed to better meet the future 

needs of the WMPF. 

 

3.0 Executive Summary 

 

3.1  As at 31 March 2021, the West Midlands Pension Fund’s market value was £18.7 billion 

(incl. WMTL and PB ABSF). Investment markets generally rose in the quarter continuing 

the strong recovery from lows seen in March 2020. 
 

3.2  The Main Fund increased by 1.7% over the quarter matching the return of its benchmark. 

The Fund’s growth assets (largely equities) delivered strong positive returns in the 

quarter and for the 12 month period to end March 2021. Income and stabilising assets 

performed less well. The Fund’s returns are below that of its benchmark for 1, 3 and 5 

years but are marginally ahead over 10 years. 
 
 

Page 204



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

3.3 The Admitted Body Sub Funds are ahead of the benchmark return over 1 year and 

longer time periods. For WMTL, positive relative performance for the quarter was driven 

by a rebound in Multi-Asset Credit and Diversified Growth Funds. For both ABSF Multi-

Asset Credit contributed positively to deliver excess return over the quarter and year. 

 

4.0 Markets and Investment Background 

 
4.1 The Fund’s Investment Consultant, Redington provides a quarterly update on the market 

background and market performance over the quarter. The report for the quarter to 31 
March 2021, which further sets out the outlook for the Fund’s key asset classes over the 
coming months, can be found in Appendix A. 

 

4.2 Returns for the major asset classes for the period are shown below: 
 
 

Asset Class Returns (£) 
3 months 

(%) 
12 months 

(%) 

US Equity (S&P 500) 5.2% 40.5% 

UK Equity (FTSE All Share) 5.2% 26.7% 

Emerging Market Equity 1.3% 42.3% 

UK Gilts (All Maturities) -7.4% -5.6% 

Corporate Bonds -4.1% 7.0% 

Global High Yield Bonds -1.0% 12.9% 

 
 

4.3 Equities advanced further in Q1 2021 capping a very strong rebound for the 12-month 

period. Cyclical and lowly-valued parts of the market fared well. Emerging Markets 

lagged developed markets. Government bond yields rose and Corporate Bonds 

outperformed Government Bonds. Uncertainty remains in commercial UK property 

markets with low transaction levels and ongoing rent deferrals.  

Page 205



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

5.0 West Midlands Pension Fund 

Main Fund Performance Summary  

 
5.1 Including the currency hedge the Main Fund delivered a return of 1.7% over the quarter 

matching the benchmark return. The Fund’s relative return remains negative over 1, 3 
and 5 years.  

 

 

5.2  The Fund trailed its benchmark significantly over the 12 months to 31/03/2021. Private 

Equity, Infrastructure and holding excess cash were the main causes. Relative returns 

are also negative over 3 and 5 years. Strong performance from Active Equity and Direct 

Property portfolio are the main positives. The currency hedge added to absolute returns 

(as Sterling strengthened) but Fund relative return worsens vs benchmark when the 

hedge is considered (the Fund was underhedged vs the ratio assumed benchmark). 

 

5.3 Over 3 years the main detractors remain Private Equity, Infrastructure and Insurance 

Linked Securities. 

 

5.4 The asset allocation of the Main Fund as at the quarter end, compared to strategic 

targets is set out overleaf. Note that this table and accompanying commentary refers to 

previous policy targets. The revised Strategic Investment Allocation Benchmark within 

the revised Investment Strategy Statement will be adopted as new strategies are 

implemented and meaningful allocation changes are made. New target weights are 

shown for reference. 

 
5.5 The Fund remained overweight in stabilising assets versus previous policy targets, as a 

result of the higher than allocations to sovereign debt. This position is being deliberately 
maintained whilst the Fund holds excess Growth assets versus new targets being 
adopted. 

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Quarter 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

Fund Performance to 31 March 2021

Fund Benchmark

Page 206



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

 
 
5.6 The Fund's attention is focused on implementing the Strategic Asset Allocation (SAA) 

changes as agreed as part of the 2020 investment strategy review. Efforts are focused 
on fixed income assets, with steps being taken to move towards new target weights in 
multi-asset credit and illiquid credit (private debt) in particular, with cash holdings 
expected to be deployed over the coming quarters. 

 

6.0 West Midlands Pension Fund  

 

Detailed Performance Commentary   

 

Growth Assets  

 
6.1 The total Combined Equity Fund delivered strong absolute performance during the 

quarter and for the 12 months to 31 March 2021.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Value (£m) Allocation (%) Current Benchmark (%) New Target (%)

Quoted equities 9,900,382,079.06      53.9% 48% 42.0%

Private Equity 1,375,520,896.38      7.5% 10% 6.0%

Opportunistic 304,745,372.48          1.7% 5% 2.0%

Total growth 11,580,648,347.92    63.1% 63% 50.0%

UK Gilts 429,611,851.78          2.3% 2% 2.0%

Index Linked bonds 1,247,946,545.81      6.8% 5% 4.0%

Cash 524,890,713.98          2.9% 2% 2.0%

Corporate bonds 1,163,994,590.65      6.3% 5% 6.0%

Total Stabilising 3,366,443,702.22      18.3% 14% 14.0%

Multi-Asset Credit 392,204,225.30          2.1% 4% 6.5%

Private Debt 65,837,774.15            0.4% 0% 7.0%

Emerging Market Debt 750,128,613.62          4.1% 4% 4.5%

Property 1,377,101,350.92      7.5% 10% 9.0%

Infrastructure 819,688,000.51          4.5% 6% 9.0%

Total Income 3,404,959,964.50      18.6% 23% 36.0%

TOTAL 18,352,052,014.64    100%

Page 207



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

6.2 The Main Fund’s passive equity assets are now almost exclusively managed by the 
investment pool company, LGPS Central Ltd (LGPSC) with a large proportion of these 
assets held in an LGPSC Global Equity passive fund. All passive funds performed 
broadly in line with the respective benchmarks during the quarter but with significant 
divergence between region and strategy as shown below. 

 

 Q1 2021 Full Year 2020 

LGPSC UK (FTSE All Share) 5.0% 26.4% 

LGPSC Global ex UK  3.0% 38.0% 

LGPSC Dividend Growth (Blended) 4.2% 28.4% 

LGPSC Climate Multi-Factor 3.1% 34.7% 

 

 
6.3 Over the quarter the Fund’s actively managed global equities comprised the LGPSC 

Active Equity fund, an allocation to sustainable equity managers and a basket of global 
equity futures.  

 
6.4 For the quarter, the LGPSC Global Active Equity Fund returned 5.8% outperforming by 

the benchmark and target return by 1.4%. The fund also ended the full year ahead of the 
benchmark. The LGPSC Global Active Equity Fund is a blended multi-manager portfolio 
consisting of 3 underlying portfolios.  

 
6.5 Emerging Markets delivered strong returns in Q4 and the Fund’s portfolio outperformed 

its benchmark. All three managers outperformed during the quarter and over 1 year. A 
review of these managers is being undertaken prior to effecting the increase in allocation 
set within the 2020 ISS. 

 
6.6 The Private Equity outperformed during the quarter but significantly underperformed over 

1 year. The benchmark used for this asset class comprises listed equities plus an 
outperformance target. Most Private Equity assets experience at least a 3 month ‘lag’ in 
being valued. As such, during volatile periods (such as last year) the relative 
performance (against benchmark) should be interpreted with caution. Over longer time 
periods the portfolio has met expectations and achieved benchmark level returns. 
Underperformance from the Private equity portfolio was a significant driver for 
underperformance for the entire Fund. For illustration purposes, the portfolio is shown 
below against the assigned benchmark (global equities +1% outperformance target) and 
the same index with a lag (i.e. to December 2020). 

 
 

 Quarter 1 Year 3 year 5 Year 

Private Equity Portfolio 14.0% 20.2% 12.8% 12.6% 

FTSE All World +1%  4.1% 40.6% 14.2% 16.1% 

FTSE All World (to Dec'20) 8.5% 13.0% 10.1% 14.5% 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 208



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

Income Assets  

 

6.7 The Income pool underperformed its respective benchmark over the quarter. The 

aggregate property portfolio had a very mixed 12 months and continues to outperform on 

a longer-term basis. The Direct portfolio performed particularly well (significantly ahead of 

IPD/MSCI indices) due to resilient performance from sectors such as industrial, 

supermarkets and offices. As previously highlighted, valuation uncertainty persists, and 

future rental levels remain unclear. The Indirect portfolio performance was weaker.  

  

6.8 The infrastructure portfolio delivered a negative return over the course of the year. The 

portfolio has significantly underperformed its target return (CPI +4%) over 3 years but 

has done better on a longer-term basis. The Fund’s UK assets have struggled during the 

pandemic, and the US portfolio has also fared poorly. 

 

 

6.9 The Fund’s Fixed Interest holdings performed well over the year. Both Emerging Market 

Debt holdings are ahead of benchmark (the LGPS Central fund making a strong start 

since launch). The Fund’s Multi Asset Credit investment had a good twelve months 

(despite underperforming at the onset of the pandemic) as high duration assets such as 

sovereign and investment grade bonds underperformed high yield. The Fund remains 

tilted to floating-rate assets. The Fund’s Corporate Bond allocations delivered negative 

returns over the final quarter but outperformed their benchmarks. Longer-term 

performance remains strong.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

Quarter 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

Infrastructure Performance to 31 March 2021

Portfolio Benchmark

Page 209



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

Fixed Income Performance highlights     

 

 Stabilising Assets 

6.10 Stabilising Fixed Income: The stabilising portfolio comprises the Fund’s exposure to 
government bonds and index linked securities, high-grade corporate bonds and cash. 
The stabilising component of the fixed interest portfolio delivered negative returns for the 
quarter as yields on sovereign debt rose (meaning prices fell). This performance should 
be expected when risky assets such as equities deliver such strong returns.  

 
6.11 Over the 1 and 3 year timeframes the stabilising portfolio has outperformed its 

benchmark. 

 

Currency  

 

6.12 The Fund changed its hedge ratios from 50% EUR and 25% USD to 25% EUR effective 

16 September 2020. The hedge has had a positive impact on performance over the 

course of the last 12 months. It has however, had a larger impact on the performance of 

the benchmark (which reflect higher hedge ratios for these currency pairs) impacting 

relative returns (i.e. versus benchmark). The hedge overlay is primarily a risk reduction 

tool. 

 

  

Return Relative Return Relative Return Relative Return Relative

Corporate Bonds -3.7% 0.4% 8.9% 1.9% 5.8% 4.0% 6.2% 4.5%

Multi Asset Credit 2.1% 0.1% 25.0% 2.2%

Emerging Market Debt -6.3% 0.2% 6.1% 3.2% 3.4% 1.2%

Quarter 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

Page 210



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

7.0  Admitted Body Sub Funds (ABSFs) 

7.1 The current allocation for the two ABSFs is shown below.  

WMTL asset allocation (excluding buy-in policy): 

  

WMPB asset allocation: 

 
 

Value (£m) Allocation (%)

Equities 85,828                 30%

Diversified Growth Funds 107,146               38%

Total Growth 192,974               68%

Corporate Bonds 10,135                 4%

Multi Asset Credit 51,038                 18%

LDI/Index Linked Bonds 27,015                 10%

Cash 2,352                    1%

Total Defensive 90,540                 32%

TOTAL 283,574               100%

Value (£m) Allocation (%)

Equities 3,429                    18%

Total Growth 3,429                    18%

Corporate Bonds 5,454                    28%

Multi Asset Credit 5,586                    29%

LDI/Index Linked Bonds 5,054                    26%

Cash <1 0%

Total Defensive 16,094                 82%

TOTAL 19,534                 100%

Page 211



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

WMTL Performance  

7.2 The Fund outperformed for the quarter and also significantly for 1 year. The Fund is also 
now marginally ahead of its benchmark for 3 years. Relative performance is driven by the 
Multi-Asset Credit and Diversified Growth Fund holdings which outperformed ‘base rate 
plus’ target performance.  

 

 

 

 

Fixed Income 

 

7.3 Alongside the Multi-Asset Credit holding in the bond portfolio, there are passive Index 

Linked Gilts and actively managed Corporate Bonds. The Corporate Bond mandate is 

performing well, ahead of benchmark over the 1-year period. 

 

7.4  Multi-Asset Credit was introduced in Q3 2018. The fund continued its recovery in Q1 

2021 and ended the year with a very strong return (but behind its benchmark).  

 

Diversified Growth Funds 

 

7.5 Both Diversified Growth Fund holdings delivered positive absolute and relative 

performance for the quarter and 1 year performance is now ahead of target. In both 

cases, equities were the largest contributor to quarterly gains. More defensive holdings 

held back performance for both funds. 

 

 

 

 

 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Quarter 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

WMTL Performance to 31 March 2021

Fund Benchmark

Page 212



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

WM PB Performance Summary 

7.6 WM PB performance is summarised below. The Fund very slightly underperformed for 

the latest quarter but significantly outperformed for 1 year. Relative performance for PB is 

almost entirely driven by the Multi-Asset Credit allocation, for the same reasons as those 

described above (for WMTL).  

 

 

7.7 PB’s holding in Passive Equities, Index-Linked Gilts, Multi-Asset Credit and Corporate 

Bonds are the same as those held by WMTL, with performance outlined above. 

 

8.0  Investment Pooling Update – LGPS Central Ltd 

8.1 The Fund continues to work closely with its investment pool company LGPS Central Ltd 

(LGPSC) and Partner Funds to look for opportunities to transition assets where it can see 

value add from doing so including the opportunity to make cost savings. In Q4 2020 

assets were transitioned to the LGPSC Emerging Market Debt fund (at its launch). 

 

8.2 Work has taken place alongside input from the Fund and other Partner Funds to 

establish a Multi-Asset Credit (MAC) sub-fund launched in April 2021. In addition, the 

Fund has been working with a number of Partner Funds and LGPSC to develop a Private 

Debt offering.  

  

9.0 Financial implications 

 

9.1 The financial implications are set out throughout the report. 

 

10.0 Legal implications 

 

10.1 This report contains no direct legal implications. 

 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Quarter 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

Preston Bus Performance to 31 March 2021

Fund Benchmark

Page 213



This report is PUBLIC  
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

 

 

 

11.0 Equalities implications 

 

11.1 This report contains no direct equal opportunities implications. 

 

12.0 All other implications 

 

12.1 This report contains no other direct implications. 

 

13.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

13.1 Investment Strategy Statement  - 

https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16022&p=0  

 

13.2 Funding Strategy Statement - 

https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=12481&p=0  

 

14.0  Schedule of appendices 

 

14.1 Appendix A – Redington Economic and Market Update Q1 2021 

 

 

Page 214

https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16022&p=0
https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=12481&p=0


Q1 2021

YOUR MARKET AND 
INVESTMENT UPDATE

Private and Confidential

West Midlands Pension Fund

Appendix A

P
age 215



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

WHAT HAPPENED DURING THE QUARTER 

Q1 2021 saw the combination of continued fiscal stimulus and the hope of 

an end to the pandemic further reverse some of the market moves seen in 

the first three quarters of 2020. The combination of fiscal and monetary 

policy (at least in the US) looks to make up for the fall in growth due to the 

pandemic and potentially some of that from the 2008 financial crisis. 

Whether the US will succeed in stimulating growth and/or inflation where 

Japan has failed remains to be seen with pandemic-related “bounce-back” 

effects likely to the main driver of economic statistics over the next few 

quarters. The lack of such aggressive policy intervention in the UK and the 

rest of Europe may lead to a divergence in both economic and market 

performance with the US. 

Expected return increased from Gilts + 3.3% at 31 December 2020 to 

Gilts + 3.5% at 31 March 2021. This was largely driven by an increase in 

equities and a reduction in cash as a percentage of total assets, and an 

increase in the expected return on equity assets. 

Asset-side risk, as measured by VaR 95%, increased from 15.4% at 31 

December 2020 to 16.4% at 31 March 2021. This was driven by a higher 

allocation to equities, with equity risk being the main driver of overall 

risk, and a reduced allocation to cash. Asset-side risk at 31 March 2021 

has moved higher than the stated risk budget of 16%, however remains 

within an acceptable range of this target.

Market Summary Key Points for You

Market Data Market Data

Philip Rose 

(CIO, Strategy 

& Risk)

Equity Index Level 
Change since 

31-Dec-20

Change since 

31-Mar-20

FTSE 100 (Total Return) 6482 5.0% 21.9%

S&P 500 (Total Return) 8238 6.2% 56.4%

EuroStoxx 50 (Total Return) 1669 10.8% 44.4%

Nikkei 225 (Total Return) 48538 7.0% 56.7%

MSCI World (Total Return) 6350 6.1% 50.7%

MSCI Emerging Markets (Total Return) 774 4.0% 53.0%

FX

USD vs GBP 1.38 0.8% 11.0%

EUR vs GBP 1.18 5.0% 4.4%

GBP vs JPY 0.7 -7.5% -12.5%

Credit Spreads

Sterling Non-Gilt Index 90 -10 bps -112 bps

Sterling Non-Gilt 15Y+ Index 144 -14 bps -103 bps

Global Investment Grade 92 -11 bps -173 bps

US Investment Grade 102 -11 bps -196 bps

Global High Yield 352 -30 bps -408 bps

European High Yield 290 -36 bps -338 bps

UK Gilts Level
Change since 

31-Dec-20

Change since 

31-Mar-20

10Y 0.94 71 bps 58 bps

30Y 1.41 62 bps 57 bps

UK Nominal Swaps

10Y 1.07 67 bps 47 bps

30Y 1.25 67 bps 64 bps

Gilt Breakeven Inflation

10Y 3.62 42 bps 63 bps

30Y 3.38 28 bps 70 bps

UK RPI Swap

10Y 3.72 31 bps 40 bps

30Y 3.40 29 bps 61 bps

UK Gilt Real Rates

10Y -2.68 29 bps -4 bps

30Y -1.97 33 bps -13 bps

US TIPS

20Y -0.01 39 bps -16 bps

30Y 0.20 46 bps 3 bps

P
age 216



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

VIEWS FROM THE ASSET CLASS SPECIALISTS

 

 

Kate Mijakowska 

LDI and Overlay
 

The UK nominal gilt yield curve moved sharply higher over the quarter, following positive news about 

vaccine rollout and investors’ optimism about economic prospects. The largest move occurred at the 10-

year point, with the nominal yield up 70bps, which is remarkably high. Inflation expectations also rose 

significantly, with the 20-year inflation breakeven rate up 30bps over the quarter. Overall, real yields are 

up considerably (38bps at the 20-year point); we therefore expect most clients to have experienced a 

reduction in their LDI collateral buffers. Repo spreads remain low relative to history, with all tenors now 

below SONIA + 10bps. 

In March, the Chancellor's Budget announcement revealed there will be at least £15bn of green gilt 

issuance this fiscal year. Also in March, the FCA announced that GBP LIBOR will either cease to be 

provided or no longer be representative from January 1st, 2022. 

 
 

Oliver Wayne 

Liquid Markets (Equities) 

Developed markets delivered a positive return during the first quarter of 2021, supported by the roll-out 

of COVID-19 vaccines and news of further US fiscal stimulus. Emerging markets registered a moderately 

lower positive return, with emerging-market vaccine programmes lagging developed markets. China was 

the worst-performing market following exceptionally strong returns in 2020. Economically sensitive 

sectors continued to extend their recovery. From a factor perspective, the rotation observed in Q4 2020 

broadly persisted in Q1 2021. Value and high volatility outperformed in all regions. Momentum was the 

worst-performing factor group. From a size perspective, smaller companies continued to outperform 

larger companies as investor risk appetite remained elevated in both developed and emerging markets. 

 
 

Tom Wake-Walker 

Liquid Markets (Multi-

Asset) 

The majority of multi-asset and liquid alternative strategies generated positive performance in Q1 as 

risk-on assets – equities and commodities – rose on continued optimism around an economic recovery. 

Significant government stimulus drove inflation expectations, positively affecting both asset classes while 

proving detrimental to government bond pricing. As a consequence, risk parity performance was 

generally muted but discretionary strategies holding more equity beta generally profited. Trend 

following benefited over the quarter as long equity and commodities positioning and short bond 

positioning drove returns. Equity style premia strategies were generally positive, with some dispersion 

driven by the degree to which managers weight the value factor. Value continued its strong performance 

as investors reacted to economy reopening news and higher interest rates by rotating into more cyclical 

names. 

P
age 217



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

VIEWS FROM THE ASSET CLASS SPECIALISTS

 
 

Chris Bikos 

Liquid & Semi-Liquid Credit 

Government yields rose across major markets, with the 10-year US treasury yield reaching 1.74%. The UK 

10-year yield increased by 70 basis points (bps) to 0.91% and in Europe yields rose by 20bps (as 

measured by 10-year Bund). Yield curves steepened, and credit markets were range-bound as investors 

considered potential inflation risks on fixed income markets. In the US, high yield returned 0.9% in the 

first three months, but leveraged loans (which are predominately floating rate) returned 2.0% over the 

same period. It was a similar picture in Europe, with high yield returning 1.5% and loans 1.7%. Across 

corporate credit markets, spreads tightened but that was not enough to offset the negative impact from 

rising rates, leading to negative total returns across maturity buckets (especially at the long end). 

Structured credit markets traded with a positive tone in Q1 2021, benefiting from their floating-rate 

nature, tightening spreads and lower defaults. In emerging markets, Turkey was in the news as President 

Erdogan fired another central bank governor and, whilst Turkish assets underperformed, the contagion 

to other emerging markets was limited. 

  

Sarah Miller 

Illiquid Credit 

Private market activity held strong over the first quarter of the year, with c.$1.3trillion worth of M&A 

deals announced, the second highest ever to be reported in any quarter. Deal activity across private 

credit echoed this sentiment with a bias towards sectors less affected by COVID-19. This clear bifurcation 

in activity between sectors – with fewer deals closed in sectors worst hit by COVID-19 such as travel, 

leisure and hospitality – continued to be a theme over Q1. Globally, direct lending dry powder continues 

to increase; as at the end of February 2021 it was reported at c.$108bn compared to $82bn and $107bn 

at year-end 2019 and 2020 respectively. Special purpose acquisition company (SPAC) IPOs – an 

alternative route for private corporates to go public – reached new highs in Q1, accounting for 17% of 

quarterly M&A activity. 

  

Jaspal Phull 

Illiquid Markets 

Rental collection has picked up significantly over the last two quarters and investor confidence appears 

to be increasing in line with general business confidence. However, transactional volumes across all of 

the commercial property sectors remained subdued, driven by the fall in activity across the London office 

market. This activity is expected to recover as social distancing measures ease. The UK industrial property 

market remains pressured by the inexorable rise of e-commerce and structural change in retail 

distribution. Demand for industrial space from tenants is strong, whilst investors are also actively looking 

to get more exposure. This increase in demand is pushing both rents and pricing higher. Lending 

markets remain active, but pricing and liquidity has diverged, with sectors out of favour (such as retail 

and hotels) treated very differently to the rest. 

P
age 218



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

YOUR ASSET ALLOCATION AND EXPOSURE

Detailed Asset Allocation

Asset Allocation Change Expected Return Contribution Change (over gilts)

Note, asset class expected returns are in the appendix.

12.1%

53.7%

12.6%

0.4%

21.3%

Sovereigns & Cash

Liquid Markets

Liquid Credit

Illiquid Credit

Illiquid Markets

3.0% Cash

5.2% Index-Linked Gilts

1.8% Nominal Gilts

0.6% LGIM Overseas Bond Fund

1.6% US TIPS

5.9% ACS LGPS UK Equity Passive Fund

13.8% ACS LGPS Global Ex UK Passive Equity Fund

3.0% ACS LGPS Global Equity Dividend Growth Factor Fund

10.1% ACS LGPS All World Equity Climate Multi Factor Fund

5.8% LGPS Central Global Equity Multi Manager Fund

0.3% LGIM UK All Share

1.1% Global Active Futures

0.6% Equities held with Merrill Lynch

0.1% Smaller Equity Positions

2.3% Sustainable Equities - Impax

2.2% Sustainable Equities - RBC

0.6% Sustainable Equities - WHEB

2.8% Emerging Markets Equities - AGF

3.0% Emerging Markets Equities - BMO

2.1% Emerging Markets Equities - Mondrian

1.6% Aegon Short Dated Investment Grade Bond Fund 

3.6% UK Corporate Bonds

1.1% LGPS Central Global Active IG Corporate Bond Fund

2.1% Multi-Class Credit 

4.1% Emerging Market Debt Funds

0.4% Schroders FOCUS II

4.6% Infrastructure

7.5% Property

1.7% Opportunistic Funds

7.5% Private Equity

15.1%

12.1%

52.8%

53.7%

11.5%

12.6%

0.4%

0.4%

20.2%

21.3%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Dec-20

Mar-21

Sovereigns & Cash Liquid Markets Liquid Credit Illiquid Credit Illiquid Markets

2.2%

2.3%

0.2%

0.2%

0.0%

0.0%

1.0%

1.0%

3.3%

3.5%

0.0% 0.5% 1.0% 1.5% 2.0% 2.5% 3.0% 3.5% 4.0%

Dec-20

Mar-21

Liquid Markets Liquid Credit Illiquid Credit Illiquid Markets

P
age 219



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

-4938, (-26.9%)

-192, (-1.0%)

278, (1.5%)

512, (2.8%)

-8000 -6000 -4000 -2000 0 2000

Equity down 40%

Credit up 100bps

Inflation rates up 100bps

Interest rates down 100bps

Change in Fund Value (£m) 

HELPING YOU UNDERSTAND YOUR RISK

Current Value-at-Risk 95% (Asset Only)

Scenario Analysis

15.6%
2.3% 0.1% 0.1% 0.3% 0.2% 1.3%

3.5% 0.0%
1.7%

1.4% 0.3% 0.1%
1.3%

2.3% 0.8% 14.9%

16.4%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

V
aR

9
5

 (
%

 o
f 

as
se

ts
)

-4557, (-24.8%)

-398, (-2.2%)

-952, (-5.2%)

-8000 -6000 -4000 -2000 0

2008 Stress

Tapering

Lehman

Change in Fund Value (£m) 

P
age 220



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

APPENDICES

P
age 221



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

REDINGTON’S EXPECTED RETURNS – MARCH 2021

Fee data is estimated based on fees of preferred managers in each strategy. In practice, each fee would be negotiated for West Midlands and may be considerably lower.  

Asset Class Expected Return (Gilts +) Volatility Expected Fees (p.a.)

Equity

Developed Market Equities 4.0% 17.8% 0.0%-0.1%

Sustainable Equities 4.3% 16.3% 0.2%-0.4%

Emerging Markets Equities 4.6% 20.9% 0.1%-0.2%

China A Share Equities 5.9% 30.7% 0.3%-0.8%

Liquid Credit

Corporate Debt GBP – Passive 0.8% 5.4% 0.1%-0.2%

Corporate Debt GBP – Active 1.1% 5.5% 0.2%-0.3%

Emerging Market Debt – Corporates 1.9% 5.8% 0.4%-0.6%

Emerging Market Debt – Local Currency Sovereign 2.6% 13.3% 0.5%-0.8%

Emerging Market Debt – Hard Currency Sovereign 1.7% 7.9% 0.5%-0.8%

Multi-Class Credit Global 2.2% 6.7% 0.4%-0.7%

Illiquid Credit

Diversified Matching Illiquids (Uninvested) 2.4% 6.6% 0.3%-0.5%

Opportunistic Illiquid Credit 3.8% 9.8% 1.0%-1.5% (+ performance fee)

Securitised Opportunities 2.8% 5.6% 0.5%-0.7%

Special Situations 4.4% 15.7% 1.0%-1.5% (+ performance fee)

Illiquid Markets

Private Equity 5.9% 31.7% 1.0%-1.5% (+ performance fee)

Insurance-Linked Securities 4.4% 10.0% 1.0%-1.5%

Renewable Infrastructure (Whole Projects) 3.7% 13.7% 0.5%-0.7% (+ performance fee)

P
age 222



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

GLOSSARY

Term Description

Annual Management 

Charge (AMC)

The fee charged by the asset manager for managing the fund, typically expressed as an annual percentage on the invested assets. This excludes 

additional expenses, e.g. administrative costs, which when combined with the AMC make up a fund’s total expense ratio (TER).

Credit Risk

The risk of financial loss as a result of the inability or unwillingness of an entity to make payments as they become due. Many types of relationships 

involve credit risk, such as those in which a company owes money to its suppliers (trade debt) or where a counterparty is required to make payments 

under a derivative contract (counterparty credit risk).

Credit Spread
The difference in the yield between two different bonds, due to different credit quality. The credit spread reflects the additional yield an investor can 

earn from taking incremental credit risk. Is it often quoted in relation to the yield on government bonds.

Inflation
The average rate at which prices (of products and services) increase over time. It gradually reduces the value of money over time – the higher the rate of 

inflation, the greater the erosion of value.

Risk Attribution The process of attributing certain components of total risk to various sources such as inflation risk, credit risk, equity risk, etc.

Stress Testing

A tool used to assess a portfolio’s exposure to large – but plausible – shocks. In the broadest sense, stress testing is a ‘what if’ exercise and can be 

modelled across various scenarios. For example, a stress test can be used to simulate the performance of a portfolio during 9/11, Black Monday and the 

Global Financial Crisis of 2007-08.

Value-at-Risk (VaR)

The minimum value that the Fund would expect to lose (at risk) for a given confidence level, over a given time horizon. We have used a 1-in-20 (i.e. 95%) 

confidence level. For example, if a portfolio’s 95% 1-year VaR is £200 million, it would have a 5% chance (1-in-20) of suffering a loss over the year of 

£200 million or more.

Volatility
A measure of variability that is used as a common metric for risk. It represents the value of one standard deviation change in the value of an assets’ 

return. Under certain assumptions, we are able to use this measure to calculate the probability of a given change in the value of the asset or portfolio.

Yield The income return on an investment. It is based on the received cash flows of a security and is usually expressed as an annual percentage.

Yield Curve
A graphical representation showing the yields of a set of financial instruments by maturity. For example, the par interest rate swap curve or the UK Gilt 

curve.

P
age 223



West Midlands Pension Fund Private and Confidential Q1 2021

CONTACTS Floor 6, One Angel Court, London. EC2R 7HJ

+44 (0)20 7250 3331  | www.redington.co.uk 

Disclaimer

Chief Investment Officer

Pete Drewienkiewicz

Tel: +44 20 3326 7138 

pete.drewienkiewicz@redington.co.uk

Vice President

Howard Alford

Tel: +44(0) 203 463 8020 

howard.alford@redington.co.uk

Managing Director

Karen Heaven

Tel: +44(0) 20 3326 7134

karen.heaven@redington.co.uk

The information contained herein was obtained from various sources. Accordingly, no representation, warranty, 

guarantee or other assurance, express, implied or statutory, (including, without limitation, as to the accuracy or 

completeness, the inclusion or omission of any facts or information, or as to the suitability, sufficiency or 

appropriateness of the information), is made by Redington Limited regarding this document. Neither Redington 

Limited, nor any other person, accepts any liability whatsoever for any direct, indirect or consequential loss arising from 

any use of or reliance on this document or the information contained herein. 

The information contained herein is for your private information and is for discussion purposes only. A variety of market 

factors and assumptions may affect this analysis, and this analysis does not reflect all possible loss scenarios. There is no

certainty that the parameters and assumptions used in this analysis can be duplicated with actual trades. This 

document is based on data/information available to Redington Limited at the date of publication and takes no account 

of subsequent developments after that date. Any historical exchange rates, interest rates or other reference rates or 

prices which appear above are not necessarily indicative of future exchange rates, interest rates, or other reference rates 

or prices. Neither the information, recommendations or opinions expressed herein constitutes an offer to buy or sell any 

securities, futures, options, or investment products on your behalf. Unless otherwise stated, any pricing information in 

this message is indicative only, is subject to change and is not an offer to transact. Where relevant, the price quoted is 

exclusive of tax and delivery costs. Any reference to the terms of executed transactions should be treated as preliminary 

and subject to further due diligence.

Redington Limited does not advise on all implications of the transactions described herein. Prior to undertaking any 

trade, you should also discuss with your professional tax, accounting and / or other relevant advisers how such 

particular trade(s) affect you. 

All analysis (whether in respect of tax, accounting, law or of any other nature), should be treated as illustrative only and 

not relied upon as accurate. This document is not intended by Redington Limited to form a basis of any decision by you 

or a third party to do or omit to do anything.

©Redington Limited 2021. All rights reserved. No reproduction, copy, transmission or translation in whole or in part of 

this document may be made without permission. Application for permission should be made to Redington Limited at 

the following address - Floor 6, One Angel Court, London, EC2R 7HJ. 

Redington Limited (6660006) is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and is registered in England and Wales. 

Registered office: 55 Baker Street, London, W1U 7EU.

Analyst

Charlie Sheridan

Tel: +44(0) 203 326 7136

charlie.sheridan@redington.co.uk

P
age 224



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

 

 

Recommendations for noting: 

 

The Pensions Committee is asked to note: 

 
1. The Fund’s engagement and voting activity for the three months ending 31 March 

2021.  

2. The issues discussed by LAPFF are set out in the Quarterly Engagement Report, 

which is available on the LAPFF website: LAPFF_QER1_2021.pdf (lapfforum.org) 

3. The voting and engagement activity of LGPS Central, as set out in the Quarterly 

Stewardship Report, available on the LGPS Central website: LGPSC-Stewardship-

Update-Q1-2021.pdf (lgpscentral.co.uk) 

4. The research and engagement activity undertaken by EOS at Federated Hermes as 

set out in the Quarterly Engagement Report, which is available on the EOS website: 

EOS Public Engagement Report (hermes-investment.com) 

5. The Fund’s 2021 Annual Stewardship Report, available at 

https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17878&p=0 

 

 

  

 

Pensions Committee 
23 June 2021 

  
Report title Responsible Investment Activities 
  

Originating service Pension Services          

Accountable 

employee 

Rachael Lem               

Tel                                         

Email 

 Responsible Investment Officer 

 01902 55 4764 

 Rachael.lem@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

  

Report to be/has 

been considered by 

 

 

 

Rachel Brothwood 

Tel 

Email 

 Director of Pensions 

 01902 55 1715 

 Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 225

Agenda Item No: 15

https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/LAPFF_QER1_2021.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-2021.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-2021.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uki/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/public-engagement-report-q1-2021-spreads.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17878&p=0
mailto:Rachael.lem@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 To update the Pensions Committee on the work undertaken in relation to responsible 

investment activities since the last Pensions Committee meeting.  

 

2.0 Background 

 
2.1 The Fund has a longstanding policy of supporting good corporate governance in the 

companies in which it invests. The Fund will also challenge companies who do not meet 
either the standards set by their peers or reasonable expectations as measured by best 
practice. The Fund’s approach is part of its overall investment management 
arrangements and its active responsible investment framework. There are three main 
pillars to the framework: selection (of assets), stewardship (of assets), and transparency 
& disclosure.  
 

3.0  Responsible Investment Activities  

 

Engagement through Partnerships 

 

3.1 The Fund’s strategy is to engage with its investee companies and other key stakeholders 

through partnerships and on its own. The Fund aims to protect and increase shareholder 

value by engaging on a range of financially material ESG investment factors. A significant 

part of the Fund’s engagement programme is implemented through partnerships 

including the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), EOS at Federated Hermes 

(‘EOS’ - via a contract held by LGPS Central Ltd, the Fund’s investment pool operator), 

the Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change (IIGCC), Climate Action 100+ (CA 

100+), and the Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI).  

3.2 Through LAPFF, the Fund undertook approximately 60 engagements with 38 companies 
during the quarter, addressing human rights, climate change and governance issues. 
Most engagements were conducted through dialogue with company Chairpersons; eight 
engagements are currently categorised as change in process, whilst substantial and 
moderate improvements were documented in 11 engagements.  

3.3 The quarter LGPS Central undertook 1,5631 engagements with 605 companies on behalf 
of the Fund, the majority of which were carried out by EOS. Against 579 specific 
engagement objectives set by EOS, there was achievement of some or all on 137 
occasions. Most engagements were conducted through letter issuance or remote 
company meetings, where LGPS Central, collaborative engagement partners or EOS in 
a majority of cases met or wrote to the Chair, a Board member or a member of senior 
management. 

3.4 Through LGPS Central and EOS, the Fund has been closely monitoring the developing 
engagement activity in support of responsible financial management, with focus on the 
banking sector and company response to social needs highlighted by the COVID-19 
pandemic. Topical issues such as fair tax payment and coronavirus vaccine distribution 
have come to the fore as attention turns to global recovery. 

                                            
1 There can be more than one engagement issue per company, for example board diversity and climate change. 

Page 226



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

3.5     The ongoing global COVID-19 pandemic continues to cause disruption with potentially 
long-lasting repercussions for the economy and society as a whole and the Fund 
continues to reflect and engage on the impact that this is having for companies and their 
stakeholders. During 2020, LGPS Central signed IIGCC-coordinated letters to EU and 
UK leaders calling for a sustainable recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Climate Change 

 

3.6 With the UN’s COP26 meeting set to take place in November 2021, this is a critical year 
for both corporate and policy makers in accelerating action towards the goals of the Paris 
Agreement - to limit global warming to well below 2, preferably to 1.5 degrees Celsius, 
compared to pre-industrial levels. The focus is now on the UK and the contribution that 
local authority pension funds and other institutional investors can make to help 
decarbonise the economy in a way that protects beneficiaries and secures just transition 
to net zero.  

 
3.7  An investor group including LGPS Central have also asked the COP26 President (The 

Rt. Hon Alok Sharma) to support investors by seeking publication of key underlying 
assumptions tied to the International Energy Agency’s (IEA’s) Net Zero Emissions 2050 
scenario. Further clarity from IEA on underlying assumptions and commodity price 
projections for this scenario will provide a basis on which to conduct further analysis into 
the implications of climate change for investment portfolios and asset allocation 
decisions. 

 

3.8 During the quarter LAPFF undertook climate change engagement with 22 companies. 

Four of the engagements are categorised as change in progress and substantial 

improvements have been recognised for five of the company engagements, one of which 

was Anglo American PLC.  

 

3.9 LAPFF wrote to Anglo American in November 2020 as part of a collaborative initiative 

coordinated by Sarasin and Partners, underscoring the vital role of accounting and audit 

in driving the net-zero transition. LAPFF received one of its best responses obtained to 

date from the Audit Committee Chair (ACC) who stated that the company has 

undertaken a review of climate risks in its financial statements and will publish the results 

in its forthcoming Annual Report and Accounts. The ACC has asked that, due to clear 

parallels, issues raised in this engagement be aligned with engagement undertaken by 

Climate Action 100+, of which the Fund, LAPFF and LGPS Central are members.  

 

3.10 For the first time, companies are seeing ‘say on climate’ resolutions at their AGMs this 

year. LAPFF has supported the say on climate resolutions and has issued voting alerts 

on these resolutions at a number of companies. LAPFF and LGPS Central voted to 

oppose Shell’s climate plan; the Fund is supportive of this position and communicated 

this response to correspondence received on the topic in the run up to the AGM on 18 

May. While Shell’s net-zero by 2050 goal and accompanying targets are ambitious, they 

are still not fully aligned with Paris and a 1.5 C temperature rise. It is our view that we 

can and should ask more of leading companies, in order to really see a step-change for 

the sector and we will continue to support engagement and dialogue with Shell to this 

effect. 

Page 227



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

3.11 This quarter LGPS Central’s climate change engagement set comprised 252 companies 

with 324 engagements issues. There was engagement activity on 315 engagement 

issues and achievement of some or all specific engagement objectives on 102 

occasions. 

 

3.12    LGPS Central is co-leading or in the focus group of eight climate change engagements 

with CA100+ companies. Through a combination of direct and collaborative engagement, 

LGPS Central have engaged with an electric utility on the topics of Paris Alignment and 

corporate lobbying practices. The company lacked top-line statements on climate policy 

and its industry association relationships are considered to contradict its positive 

advocacy on climate policy. Following a period of engagement, the company has agreed 

to conduct an annual review of its trade association memberships and hire a new staff 

member with an investor relationship focus. Looking forward, LGPS Central and fellow 

investors would like to see a stronger climate ambition, including a commitment to clear 

medium and long-term greenhouse gas reduction targets. 

 
3.13  In 2017 the pool company’s Stewardship provider, EOS, raised its concerns about the 

weakness in Hyundai Motor’s sustainability performance, particularly the carbon intensity 
of its vehicles, as revealed in a report published by the Carbon Disclosure Project. With 
little initial improvement, EOS continued to question vehicle sustainability performance 
over the next three years, including meeting with the independent chair in 2018. Hyundai 
has now made good progress in improving the sustainability of its vehicles, launching a 
number of lower emissions models including hybrid, plug-in hybrid and fully electric 
vehicles. The company is also accelerating the development and promotion of hydrogen 
fuel cell vehicles and plans to increase its sustainable vehicle models from approximately 
3.8% to 20% of total sales by 2025. 

 
Sustainable Food Systems 

 
3.14  This quarter LGPS Central’s single-use plastics engagement set comprised 33 

companies with 41 engagement issues2. There was engagement activity on 39 
engagements and achievement of some or all engagement objectives on 11 occasions. 
 

3.15 Through the PRI Plastic Working group, LGPS Central has continued its engagement 
with six packaging companies. With increased governmental attention on the negative 
impacts of plastic use, in tandem with consumers calling for less harmful alternatives, 
investee companies in the plastic value chain are becoming exposed to increasing 
regulatory, environmental and reputational risks. The investor group has put forward 
expectations of companies to: set targets for their use of sustainable materials and 
disclose progress against those targets; outline the initiatives they are using to reduce 
plastic pollution; ensure full alignment between the company’s sustainable materials 
strategy and carbon emissions reduction strategy; and include sustainability-related 
performance KPIs in executive remuneration. 

 
 
 

                                            
2 There can be more than one plastic-related engagement issue per company. 

Page 228



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

3.16 During January 2021, LAPFF met with Tesco to discuss the company’s long-term 
strategy relating to health and nutrition. Part of the objective of this engagement was to 
encourage the company to disclose metrics relating to the proportion of healthy versus 
unhealthy produce available to customers and to set relevant targets to improve the 
availability of healthy items. This engagement aligns with the Healthy Markets initiative 
being coordinated by ShareAction. Tesco outlined that it already collected data relating to 
health and nutrition. Since the engagement took place, ShareAction has announced the 
filing of a resolution at the upcoming Tesco AGM requesting that the company disclose 
the share of total food and non-alcoholic drink annual sales by volume made up of 
healthier products and publish a target to significantly increase that share by 2030. 

 
3.17    During the quarter EOS had a meeting with the coordinators of the Finance for 

Biodiversity Pledge3 to share initial ideas about the focus and objectives for the 
engagement group. EOS shared views on how companies with material impacts on 
biodiversity could be identified, whether by sector or sub-theme. This task is 
challenging in the absence of a single metric, such as greenhouse gas emissions, that 
would enable comparison between different companies’ biodiversity impacts. EOS 
emphasised the importance of setting clear engagement goals so that companies 
understand the aims and requests of the collaborative engagement group. These are yet 
to be defined, although we suggested that there should be an emphasis on positive 
impacts as well as mitigating negative impacts. 

 
Human Rights 

 
3.18  On behalf of the Fund, LAPFF has engaged two companies on human rights issues 

during the quarter. In April 2021 the Financial Times reported on the UK High Court 
ruling that Ryanair must pay passengers for flights cancelled during a 2018 strike. Pay-
outs are expected to be between 250 and 400 Euros per passenger amounting to 
millions of Euros as around 15 million passengers were affected. LAPFF has attended 
Ryanair AGMs, written voting alerts, and met with the company to warn of the financial 
consequences of the company’s failure to engage adequately with unions and workers. 

 
3.19  LAPFF has been engaging with Vale and BHP for around two years in relation to both 

the Samarco and Brumadinho dam collapses. LAPFF deem Samarco to be a particular 
concern in relation to the time it is taking to make appropriate reparations. Given the 
delays, LAPFF’s primary objective is to put pressure on BHP, Vale, and Renova to speed 
up the reparations process. LAPFF will continue to engage with the companies and 
affected communities in the hopes of speeding up reparations. It will check in monthly 
with Renova and the communities to ensure that it has the accurate number of houses to 
post on the LAPFF website. This process highlights the importance of ensuring that 
companies prevent these disasters rather than scrambling to make reparations, where 
these are even possible, after the fact. 

 
 
 
 

                                            
3 https://www.financeforbiodiversity.org/ 

Page 229



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

3.20  The Fund has re-joined the Rathbones modern slavery engagement initiative to improve 
employment standards in companies’ supply chains. Rathbones is re-running its vote 
against slavery engagement in 2021 with 69 FTSE350 companies after success in 2020 
in getting target companies to comply with the UK Modern Slavery Act. As per end April 
2021, all companies have responded and 45 are now compliant. Initial positive responses 
have given an opening for future meetings to discuss companies’ approaches to modern 
slavery. This is an important step beyond the initial ask of compliance with the Modern 
Slavery Act, to focus on the content of the statement and to enable investors an 
understanding of the key risks facing individual companies. 

 
3.21 During the quarter LGPS Central’s technology and disruptive industries engagement set 

comprised 31 companies with 52 engagements issues. There was engagement activity 
on 49 engagement issues and achievement of some or all engagement objectives on 
eight occasions. LGPS Central has joined a collaborative investor engagement, led by 
the Council on Ethics to the Swedish National Pension Funds discussing human rights 
risks with a group of American technology companies. The collaboration has developed a 
set of human rights expectations which were shared and discussed with the identified 
technology companies in Q4 2020. These expectations are designed to provide a 
baseline for ongoing engagement and a means for more constructive and effective 
dialogue. 

 
3.22 The Fund continues to support the New Zealand Superfund’s collaborative engagement 

with social media companies’ engagement, which has a targeted focus upon Facebook, 
Alphabet and Twitter. During the quarter, as a direct response to the NZ Superfund’s 
engagement efforts, the charter for Facebook’s Risk and Oversight Committee has been 
updated to include ‘the sharing of content on its services that violate the Company’s 
policies’. The NZ Superfund deem this to be a major win for the Collaboration and a real 
strengthening of governance and accountability for the Risk and Oversight Committee on 
this issue, putting the Board on the front foot in working towards prevention of the issue 
rather than just fire-fighting inherent problems. 

 

Responsible Financial Management 

 
3.23  This quarter, LGPS Central’s tax transparency engagement set comprised 14 companies 

with 14 engagement issues. There was engagement activity on 9 engagements and 
achievement of some or all engagement objectives on three occasions. During 2020, 
LGPS Central collaborated with five fellow European investors to engage a selection of 
companies across technology, telecommunication, finance and mining sectors. During 
the last quarter, LGPS Central held discussions to assess progress for these 
engagements and whether to expand the scope of the project. 
 

3.24 LGPS Central consider four of the six companies engaged during 2020 to be largely 
lacking in tax transparency. There are “red flags” on issues like companies having 
subsidiaries incorporated in one jurisdiction but which are tax residents in another 
jurisdiction paying zero tax. This does not appear to be in line with OECD’s Base Erosion 
and Profit Shifting Framework, which the pool company see as a standard that is relevant 
to assessing responsible tax behaviour. LGPS Central will continue engagement with the 
four “laggard” companies and are assessing the inclusion of some more companies that 

Page 230



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

appear to pursue particularly aggressive tax strategies and/or lack a tax policy, and/or 
pay the lowest effective rate of tax.  

 

Voting Globally  

 

3.25 The Fund’s voting policies are currently executed by EOS via a contract held by LGPS 

Central Ltd, the Fund’s asset pool company. The Fund has contributed to and endorses 

LGPS Central’s Voting Principles.  

 

3.26 During the quarter LGPS Central revised their Voting Principles to reflect their heightened 

expectations on companies in two areas. LGPS Central would firstly like to see stronger 

diversity on Boards both in terms of gender and ethnicity. They expect FTSE 100 and 

250 companies to have at least 33% women on their Boards. The Pool company have 

also reinforced their view that companies should align their operations and business 

strategy with the Paris Agreement. LGPS will consider voting against the Chair of 

companies if there is not clear justification when these expectations have not been met. 

WMPF will renew its Voting Principles and submit to Committee for approval in 

December 2021, ahead of the 2022 AGM season.  
 
3.27 The voting activity for the quarter across markets and issues can be found in Appendix B.  

During the period, the Fund voted at a total of 477 company meetings (4,996 resolutions) 
– 68 UK, 101 Europe, 45 North American, 212 Developed Asia, 3 Australasian and 48 in 
Emerging and Frontier Markets. At 199 meetings we recommended opposing one or 
more resolutions. The largest number of resolutions that were opposed concerned board 
structure and remuneration (usually voting against non-independent non-executive 
directors where the Fund or its advisors do not see sufficient independent oversight on a 
company board).   

 
Correspondence 

 
3.28 The Fund continues to receive correspondence from individual members of the public, 

and more established divestment groups in connection with climate change and calls for 
divestment. During the quarter the Fund received queries and correspondence on 
responsible investment topics relating to investment in Palestine and the arms trade.  

 
3.29 Through membership of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) dialogue with 

both Palestinian and Israeli interest groups have taken place following the Supreme 
Court decision on the 29th April 2020. In its work for the LGPS, the Forum undertakes 
holdings-based engagement with the aim of protecting long-term shareholder value 
through adherence to the appropriate standards of human rights and humanitarian law. 
LAPFF undertook preliminary engagement during Q4 2020 with three of the seventeen 
companies identified by the United Nations and operating in Occupied Palestinian 
Territories with the objective of understanding and promoting company conduct and 
publication of human rights impact assessments. The Forum is continuing a programme 
of engagement over 2021 and is monitoring both UN activity and the developing political 
situation in the area. 

 

Page 231



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

3.30 Engagement on the Fund’s behalf is also undertaken through LGPS Central’s external 
stewardship provider, EOS at Federated Hermes, with whom its shares the view that 
companies operating in areas of conflict have enhanced governance obligations thus 
demanding enhanced transparency and use of leveraged opportunities for engagement 
over the longer term for positive change. Through a variety of engagements and asks for 
further due diligence on Human Rights risks and HR policy, company commitments have 
been secured to help ensure equal employment opportunities and prevent discrimination. 
Engagement has led to one company confirmed a cessation of activities linked to the 
construction of illegal or contested settlements. These engagements will continue in 2021 
and the engagement approach is apolitical, while distinguishing between those situations 
that contravene international law and those that do not. 

 
3.31 The Fund continues to respond to all correspondents and will continue to monitor progress 

on the issues outlined, with updates to each quarterly Pensions Committee Meeting. 
 
 Leadership and Policy Development 
 
3.32    The IIGCC Net Zero Investment Framework was launched on 10 March. This aims to 

provide a comprehensive set of recommended actions, metrics and methodologies to 
enable both asset owners and asset managers to maximise the contribution they can 
make to decarbonisation of the global economy in tackling climate change. It provides an 
important tool to support alignment with net zero and is one output from the Paris Aligned 
Investor Initiative (PAII) that the West Midlands Pension Fund, along with LGPS Central, 
has contributed to since 2019. The Fund continues to support PAII and development of 
framework implementation through two working groups. 
 

3.33 In March 2021 Climate Action 100+ released its Net Zero Company Benchmark which 
assesses the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters on their progress in the 
transition to a net zero future. The benchmark framework, developed in collaboration with 
signatory investors and leading climate research, will be a valuable resource for investors 
attempting to assess and engage with corporations on their progress and alignment with 
key commitments. This, together with the IIGCC framework will inform a review of the 
Fund’s Climate Change Framework and Strategy over 2021/22. 

 
  Annual Stewardship Report 2021 
 
3.34 In April 2021 the Fund submitted its first Annual Stewardship Report (ASR) to the 

Financial Reporting Council. The ASR provides an overview the Fund’s approach to 
stewardship and the efforts taken to ensure that WMPF practices stewardship at the 
highest level both in our own operations and throughout our investment chain. It covers 
each of the 12 principles of the UK Stewardship Code 2020 grouped into four categories: 
Purpose and Governance, Investment Approach, Engagement and Exercising Voting 
Rights and Responsibilities. The Fund is proud of the outcomes and effective actions that 
it was able to demonstrate within its first ASR and expect our approach to continue to 
evolve as we continue to engage in collaboration with key partners to drive our common 
ambition to build sustainable futures for all. 

 

 

 

Page 232



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 

4.0    Financial implications 

 
4.1  The promotion of good corporate governance amongst companies in which the Fund 

invests is complementary to the Fund’s objective of maximising financial returns, as it is 
widely believed that good corporate governance improves shareholder value in the long 
term. 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 This report contains no direct legal implications. 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 This report contains no equal opportunities implications. 

 

8.0 All other implications 

 

8.1 Environmental implications are addressed through the Fund’s Responsible Investment 

Framework. This report contains no other direct implications. 

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

 
10.1    LAPFF Quarterly Engagement Report:  

LAPFF_QER1_2021.pdf (lapfforum.org) 

 

10.2   LGPS Central Quarterly Engagement Report: 

 LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-2021.pdf (lgpscentral.co.uk) 

10.3  EOS at Federated Hermes Public Engagement Report: 

 EOS Public Engagement Report (hermes-investment.com) 

10.4 The Fund’s 2021 Annual Stewardship Report, available at 

https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17878&p=0 

11.0 Schedule of appendices 

 

11.1 Appendix A: WMPF Engagement Activity 

 

11.2 Appendix B: WMPF Voting Activity 

 

 

Page 233

https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/LAPFF_QER1_2021.pdf
https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/LGPSC-Stewardship-Update-Q1-2021.pdf
https://www.hermes-investment.com/uki/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/public-engagement-report-q1-2021-spreads.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=17878&p=0


This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Midlands

Engagement Report, Q1 2021

EOS at Federated Hermes

Engagement by region
Over the last quarter we engaged with 415 companies held in the West Midlands portfolios on a range of 1,415 environmental, social and
governance issues and objectives.

Global

We engaged with 415 companies over the last quarter.

Australia & New Zealand

We engaged with eight companies over the last quarter.

Developed Asia

We engaged with 45 companies over the last quarter.

Emerging & Developing Markets

We engaged with 42 companies over the last quarter.

Europe

We engaged with 120 companies over the last quarter.

North America

We engaged with 161 companies over the last quarter.

United Kingdom

We engaged with 39 companies over the last quarter.

     Environmental 28.1%

     Social and Ethical 21.3%

     Governance 35.6%

     Strategy, Risk and Communication 15.0%

     Environmental 83.3%

     Governance 8.3%

     Strategy, Risk and Communication 8.3%

     Environmental 37.1%

     Social and Ethical 26.6%

     Governance 27.4%

     Strategy, Risk and Communication 8.9%

     Environmental 29.6%

     Social and Ethical 15.6%

     Governance 31.9%

     Strategy, Risk and Communication 23.0%

     Environmental 28.5%

     Social and Ethical 19.4%

     Governance 39.8%

     Strategy, Risk and Communication 12.3%

     Environmental 22.8%

     Social and Ethical 23.0%

     Governance 36.9%

     Strategy, Risk and Communication 17.3%

     Environmental 37.0%

     Social and Ethical 22.7%

     Governance 30.3%

     Strategy, Risk and Communication 10.1%

For professional investors only www.hermes‐investment.com

' 

�� ,,

,,17 
' !I 

LGPS Central Limited

/-..._ 

Appendix A

Page 235



Engagement by theme
Over the last quarter we engaged with 415 companies held in the West Midlands portfolios on a range of 1,415 environmental, social and
governance issues and objectives.

Environmental

Environmental topics featured in 28.1% of our
engagements over the last quarter.

Social and Ethical

Social and Ethical topics featured in 21 . 3% of our
engagements over the last quarter.

Governance

Governance topics featured in 35 . 6% of our
engagements over the last quarter.

Strategy, Risk and Communication

Strategy, Risk and Communication topics featured in
15 .0% of our engagements over the last quarter.

     Climate Change 81.1%

     Forestry and Land Use 4.5%

     Pollution and Waste Management 10.3%

     Supply Chain Management 1.3%

     Water 2.8%

     Bribery and Corruption 1.7%

     Conduct and Culture 12.9%

     Diversity 24.2%

     Human Capital Management 21.5%

     Human Rights 31.8%

     Labour Rights 5.6%

     Tax 2 .3%

     Board Diversity, Skills and Experience 22.4%

     Board Independence 16.3%

     Executive Remuneration 43.7%

     Shareholder Protection and Rights 13.7%

     Succession Planning 4.0%

     Audit and Accounting 7.5%

     Business Strategy 40.1%

     Cyber Security 1.4%

     Integrated Reporting and Other Disclosure 28.3%

     Risk Management 22.6%

2021Q1EFS

For professional investors only www.hermes‐investment.com

Engagement Report West Midlands

Page 236



 

West Midlands

Voting Report, Q1 2021

EOS at Federated Hermes

Over the last quarter we made voting recommendations at 477 meetings (4,996 resolutions). At 199 meetings we recommended opposing one
or more resolutions. We recommended voting with management by exception at 18 meetings and abstaining at four meetings. We supported
management on all resolutions at the remaining 256 meetings.

Global

We made voting recommendations at 477 meetings
(4,996 resolutions) over the last quarter.

Australia and New Zealand

We made voting recommendations at three meetings
(eight resolutions) over the last quarter.

Developed Asia

We made voting recommendations at 212 meetings
(1,675 resolutions) over the last quarter.

Emerging and Frontier Markets

We made voting recommendations at 48 meetings (449
resolutions) over the last quarter.

Europe

We made voting recommendations at 101 meetings
(1,715 resolutions) over the last quarter.

North America

We made voting recommendations at 45 meetings
(487 resolutions) over the last quarter.

United Kingdom

We made voting recommendations at 68 meetings (662
resolutions) over the last quarter.

     Total meetings in favour 53.7%

     Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 41.7%

     Meetings abstained 0.8%

     Meetings with management by exception 3.8%

     Total meetings in favour 66.7%

     Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 33.3%

     Total meetings in favour 62.3%

     Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 37.3%

     Meetings with management by exception 0.5%

     Total meetings in favour 35.4%

     Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 60.4%

     Meetings with management by exception 4.2%

     Total meetings in favour 41.6%

     Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 49.5%

     Meetings abstained 4.0%

     Meetings with management by exception 5.0%

     Total meetings in favour 20%

     Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 62.2%

     Meetings with management by exception 17.8%

     Total meetings in favour 79.4%

     Meetings against (or against AND abstain) 17.6%

     Meetings with management by exception 2 .9%

For professional investors only www.hermes‐investment.com

' 

�� ,,

,,17 
' !I 

LGPS Central Limited

/-..._ 

Appendix B

Page 237



The issues on which we recommended voting against management or abstaining on resolutions are shown below.

Global

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 5 1 1
resolutions over the last quarter.

Australia and New Zealand

We recommended voting against or abstaining on o n e
resolution over the last quarter.

Developed Asia

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 1 6 3
resolutions over the last quarter.

Emerging and Frontier Markets

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 7 9
resolutions over the last quarter.

Europe

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 1 7 1
resolutions over the last quarter.

North America

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 7 0
resolutions over the last quarter.

United Kingdom

We recommended voting against or abstaining on 2 7
resolutions over the last quarter.

     Board structure 48.9%

     Remuneration 29.2%

     Shareholder resolution 4.5%

     Capital structure and dividends 2.7%

     Amend articles 4.1%

     Audit and accounts 6.8%

     Other 3.7%

     Remuneration 100%      Board structure 68.1%

     Remuneration 9.8%

     Shareholder resolution 0.6%

     Capital structure and dividends 1.8%

     Amend articles 6.7%

     Audit and accounts 12.9%

     Board structure 27.8%

     Remuneration 31.6%

     Shareholder resolution 1.3%

     Capital structure and dividends 3.8%

     Amend articles 10.1%

     Audit and accounts 13.9%

     Other 11.4%

     Board structure 47.4%

     Remuneration 32.7%

     Shareholder resolution 6.4%

     Capital structure and dividends 4.7%

     Amend articles 1 .2%

     Audit and accounts 1.8%

     Other 5.8%

     Board structure 42.9%

     Remuneration 42.9%

     Shareholder resolution 14.3%

     Board structure 22 .2%

     Remuneration 77.8%

2021Q1VFS

For professional investors only www.hermes‐investment.com

Voting Report West Midlands

Page 238



Document is Restricted

Page 239

Agenda Item No: 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 247

Agenda Item No: 18



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 251



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 269

Agenda Item No: 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 273



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 275

Agenda Item No: 20



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 281



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 283



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 285

Agenda Item No: 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Pensions Committee Annual Governance
	Appendix A - Pensions Committee Terms of Reference
	Appendix B - Governing Bodies Training Policy

	7 Governance and Assurance
	Appendix A - Governance and Compliance Statement
	Appendix B - Representation Policy
	Appendix C - Strategic Risk Register
	Appendix D - KPI’s Quarter Four
	Appendix E - KPI’s year on year

	8 Statement of Accounts 2020-2021
	Appendix A - Draft WMPF Statement of Accounts 2020/2021
	Pensions


	9 Pensions Administration Report to 31 March 2021
	Appendix A - Process Summary
	Appendix B - Detailed Process Analysis
	Appendix C - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)
	Appendix D - Customer Service Statistics
	Appendix E - Admitted Body Applications
	Appendix F - Administering Authority Policy Statement 2021

	10 Customer Engagement Update
	Appendix A - Events attended and associated feedback Jan – March 2021
	Appendix B - 2021 Pensioner Newsletter
	Appendix C - 2021 Pensions Administration Strategy

	11 Annual Report of the Local Pensions Board
	Appendix A - Local Pensions Board Training Hours

	12 Internal Audit Annual Report 2020-2021
	Appendix A – Annual Audit Report 2020 - 2021

	13 Budget Monitoring and Quarterly Accounts to 31 March 2021
	Appendix A - West Midlands Pension Fund Quarterly Accounts to 31 March 2021

	14 Quarterly Investment Report to 31 March 2021
	Appendix A – Redington Economic and Market Update Q1 2021

	15 Responsible Investment Activities
	Appendix A - WMPF Engagement Activity
	Appendix B - WMPF Voting Activity

	17 Investment Strategy and Activity Update
	18 CEM Benchmarking
	Appendix A – CEM Investment Benchmarking Results for the 6-year period ending 31 March 2020

	19 Annual Report on the Investment Advisory Panel
	Appendix A – Joint IAP adviser review 2020/2021

	20 Fund Structure Update
	Appendix A – Fund structure as at June 2021
	Appendix B – Senior Management Team – external roles

	21 LGPS Central Pool
	Appendix A - LGPS Central Limited update



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




